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/ “Adniversal Health International Group Holding Limited (Stock code:

o

//2211) (“Universal Health International” or the “Company”) and

////j,té'l;s'u'bsidiaries (the “Group”) aims at huge market opportunities

:}ﬁ'the universal health industry, strives to be international brand
operator of universal health and become leading practitioner of
the strategy of “Internet + Universal Health” as well as pioneer
of the development of ecology in the industry chain by the way
of finance and capital.

Universal Health International is one of the leading pharmaceutical
retailers and distributors in the Northeast of the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"” or “China"”). The Group has distinguished
pharmaceutical retail chain network in the Northeast China and it
is also the largest privately operated pharmaceutical distributor in
the Northeast China. As of the date of this annual report, the Group
operated 849 retail pharmacies, mainly located in the Northeast
China, and had approximately 3,050 active distributors and 5,612
full-time staff. In addition, the Group has set up five large-scale
logistics storage centers in Shijiazhuang, Shenyang, Changchun,
Harbin and Jiamusi, and has established a high- quality distribution
system radiating across the country and covering the northeastern
region of the PRC.

As a basic business segment, the Group’s main product categories
for pharmaceutical retail and distribution (including import and
export trade) include prescribed drugs, non-prescribed drugs
(Chinese patent medicines, chemical preparations, antibiotics
and biochemical drugs), traditional Chinese medicine decoction
pieces, biological products, protein assimilation preparations,
peptide hormones, blood products, disinfection products, medical
equipment, family planning supplies (contraceptives and utensils),
prepackaged foods, dairy products (including infant formula milk
powder), nutritional foods, health care products, stereotyped
packaging cosmetics, daily necessities, etc.
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The Group will continue leveraging on the core advantages of

branded products, expanding the scope of cooperation on branded
products, leveraging on institute training, and providing more
value-added service to employees, customers and consumers. The
Group also enriches the product mix by introducing more health
care products based on the expertise in pharmaceutical retail
and distribution, so as to promote the concept of the universal
health industry. Meanwhile, the Group actively explores upstream
ecological chain, covering the construction for Chinese herbal
medicines base and the production of plant capsule.

The Group actively explores online pharmacies, cross-border
e-commerce and other “Internet*” areas, and advocates the concept
of “Specialization*” and introduces the development concept of
"Platform*”. Furthermore, the Group maintains upstream and
downstream ecosystem leveraging on industry advantage to cope
with the situation of “New Norm" in real economy, and takes the
lead in upgrading and digitalized transformation of the industry.
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~ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

 HBRE

L For the year ended 30 June
/ BEAA=HALEE
Unit 2020 2019 Change
#fr —BCEF —ENF 25
Revenue Wz RMB million 1,510.1 2,424.4 -37.7%
AREEHET
Gross profit EHH RMB million 188.5 326.8 -42.3%
AREHET
Operating loss L BB RMB million (510.5) (281.6) 2289
AREEET
Loss for the year FEBHE RMB million (493.5) (267.1) 2264
AREEET
EBITDA" EBITE R HAT TR RMB million (455.0) (252.2) -202.8
AREHET
Basic loss per share? BREAEE RMB cents (12.75) (8.58) 417
ARES
Gross margin ERE % 12.5 135 1.0 pp
R EERE
Operating loss margin mEEER % (33.8) (11.6) -22.2 pp
222D
Net loss margin FEEX % (32.7) (11.0) 217 pp
21 7B D E
As at 30 June
RAR=1H
Unit 2020 2019 Change
Efy ~BCRF —E-NF #
Current ratio® ML &0 times 2.8 48 2.0
‘v:j
Trade receivables turnover® YRR BE R days 38.9 28.7 +10.2
X
Inventory turnover® REREREO dlays 84.9 52.7 +32.2
X
Trade payables turnover® ERERREERE days 39.5 286 +10.9
x
Return on equity” BAREREN % (39.5) (15.4) -24.1 pp
241 EBNEH
Return on total assets® BEHERREY % (33.0 (133) -19.7 pp
197EAE D
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Notes:

EBITDA is calculated by adjusting loss before interests, tax, depreciation and amortisation,
excluding the effect of share of post-tax results of joint ventures, share of post-tax
results of an associate, share-based payment expenses, impairment loss or its reversal on
goodwill and other intangible assets and impairment loss or its reversal on investment in
an associate.

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing loss attributable to owners of the Company
by weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2020 was 3,855,613,000,
versus 3,097,517,000 for the year ended 30 June 2019).

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.

Trade receivables turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and
ending balances on trade receivables for the year, divided by revenue for the year,
multiplied by the number of days for the year.

Inventory turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and ending
balances on inventory for the year, divided by cost of sales for the year, multiplied by
the number of days for the year.

Trade payables turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and ending
balances on trade payables for the year, divided by cost of sales for the year, multiplied
by the number of days for the year.

Return on equity is calculated by dividing loss attributable to owners of the Company by
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

Return on total assets is calculated by dividing loss for the year by total assets.
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QHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEHE

Intelligence, adapt to the new situation

g2ee BEMRS
Focus, concentrate on universal health
B HEIXIKREE

£~

INTERNET+
BEN+

Dear Shareholders,

[, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, am glad to express my

sincere gratitude to the shareholders of the Company
Distribution

R

(the “Shareholder(s)”) and all who give strong support,

understanding and encouragement to the Company. |
would like to take this opportunity to present the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2020 (the

4 “Year").

Retail

Py
B B R
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EIR®|E

e

\\

/ / ~ MACRO ENVIRONMENT
/ /

/ In the second half of 2019, the economy of the People’s Republic
// / QfChma (the “PRC" or “China”) steadily grew in spite of the effects
7 /of trade friction. According to data from the National Bureau of
/ Statistics of China, the quarterly value of China’s Gross Domestic

\GQSS

Product (GDP) in the third quarter of 2019 was RMB25,220.87 billion
(RMB23,447.43 billion in the third quarter of 2018), representing a
year-on-year increase of 7.6%. The quarterly value of China’s GDP in
the fourth quarter of 2019 was RMB27,801.97 billion (RMB25,880.89
billion in the fourth quarter of 2018), representing a year-on-year
increase of 7.4%. The total retail sales of Chinese and Western
medicines reached RMB590.7 billion in 2019, representing a year-
on-year increase of 9%, showing distinct market growth.

In the second half of 2019, the Drug Administration Law of China
("Drug Administration Law”) was revised and promulgated,
and the Vaccine Administration Law of China was formulated
and promulgated. Relevant regulatory documents were issued
on promoting the inheritance, innovation and development of
traditional Chinese medicine, and further deepening the reform
of the medical and health system on aspects of centralized drug
procurement and use. By doing so, the management of the
pharmaceutical industry was further standardized, and the reform
of the medical and health system was further deepened.

In the first half of 2020, due to the impact of the COVID-19 epidemic,
the macro economic downturn was noticeable. In the first quarter
of 2020, China’'s GDP recorded negative growth. Meanwhile, the
government work report did not set a full-year economic growth
target, but concentrated on ensuring stability on “Six Fronts”
and “Six Priorities” to keep the fundamentals of economy stable,
as a way to promote economic growth with more proactive fiscal
policy and flexible, prudent monetary policy, as well as measures
to deepen reforms and expand opening up.

10 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’'s development has been greatly affected by the
COVID-19 epidemic. Although in some areas, it was designated
as procurement units for anti-epidemic supplies by the local
government, strict movement control also severely affected the
market consumption of medicines. In this regard, the Group
launched online publicity and marketing on the mobile internet
in a timely manner, and in some regions, cooperated with third-
party online service organizations (such as Meituan, Ele.me and
AliHealth) to provide home delivery service, which, to a certain
extent, alleviated a greater degree of downturn.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

In January 2020, China and the United States reached the phase
one trade agreement, but the prolonged, complex trade dispute
between China and the United States cast uncertainties on the
economic impact. In addition, the COVID-19 epidemic has pushed
the global economy into recession. Facing the new and complicated
international and domestic situation, China continued to hold the
basic idea of pursuing progress while ensuring stability for its
economy. In view of the greater resilience of China’s economy,
the reality of China’s aging population and the improvement of
people’s health awareness, coupled with the rigid consumption
in the pharmaceutical field, the pharmaceutical industry is still
expected to grow, and the universal health industry has bright
prospects.

The Group continues to follow the existing development strategies,
focuses on the pharmaceutical industry, and concentrates on the
universal health field. It will take internal and external factors as the
point of departure to actively respond to the adverse situation. The
first is to improve the operational quality of retail chain stores and
strengthen medical service capabilities; the second is to expand
the value-added service items of stores to meet various needs of
consumers; and the third is to vigorously strengthen the linking
capability of internet to physical stores to promote the online and
offline connectivity and integration. At the same time, through
the optimization and adjustment of the regional layout of the
chain system and distribution system, resources will be gathered
in regions with advantages, and continuous competitiveness will
be formed through innovation and cooperation.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EIR®|E
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_ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

o
/////KLuod waters and lush mountains are invaluable assets” has
//, A,

ot /

L
PN
T

// #

.
S

/

$ ibéﬁéme an important concept in China’s environmental protection
/ nd sustainable economic development, which embodies the

dialectical relationship between environment and economy.

The environment, society and governance are also the basis for
the Group to develop in a sustainable way and perform social
responsibility, and are taken seriously by senior management.
We will make efforts in aspects such as environment, employees,
customers, supply chain, anti-corruption and even community
participation, while creating economic value for each stakeholder,
to both improve governance and take into account the maintenance
of the natural environment and the social competitive environment,

so as to adapt to the global trend of coordinated economic and
social development.

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude
to the Board, management members and all staff for their
dedication and support to our Group's strategies and business
development.

Jin Dongtao
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 September 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE N DT

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In the second half of 2019, the global economy slipped below the
normal level in the growth area and fell into a geopolitical risk.
Facing the complicated situation of rising risks and challenges both
at home and abroad, China maintained the general development
strategy of seeking progress while maintaining stability for its
economic work, and continued to focus on supply-side structural
reform, in order to actively boost high-quality development.
Solid efforts were made to keep employment, the finance sector,
foreign trade, foreign and domestic investments, and expectations
stable. China’s economy was generally stable with the quality of
development steadily improving.

China kept deepening the reforms in the medical and health field,
making the entire pharmaceutical industry undergo significant
structural changes. However, from the overall trend, industry
development was still in a downward trend compared with that
in 2017 and 2018. In 2019, a series of policy adjustments such
as "4+7" quantity procurement, catalog of drugs under close
monitoring of rational drug use, medical insurance catalogue,
and encouraging the development of “Internet + medical health”
continued to promote the development and transformation of
the industry. In the second half of 2019, China issued a notice on
the Action Plan for Promoting the Quality Development of the
Healthcare Industry (2019-2022) ( {{RERREXSEELRITEIM
2£(2019-20224F)) ), which provided guidance for promoting the
high-quality development of the health industry.

In the first half of 2020, China continued to deepen reforms in the
pharmaceutical sector, and introduced a series of policies. On 5
March 2020, the Communist Party of China Central Committee
and the State Council issued the Opinions on Deepening the
Reform of the Medical Insurance System ( B R/t EBEIRFE ]
ERERER) ). On 14 May 2020, the National Medical Products
Administration of PRC issued Notice on Implication of the Quality
and Efficacy Consistency Evaluation of Generic Chemical Injections
((ERARCEERIFENREGENEY —BEFELENR
%) ). In response to the call of the Guiding Opinions on the
Classification and Management of Retail Pharmacies in China
(Draft for Comment) ( (FEEEZELESBHORERIRES R
(BkE R ) ), the establishment of a pharmacy classification and
management system is speeded up. It is expected that this year,
a classification and management system for retail pharmacies will
be basically established in most provinces and cities in China. In
the future, the service level and industry concentration will also
be improved to achieve more compliant development.
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/ /po||cy guidance, technological innovation and capital driving,
/ China’s pharmaceutical industry is bound to undergo continuous

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRR DM

_China's policy support for the pharmaceutical industry is also
o expected to be further enhanced, which will therefore further
/ |rﬁprove industry consolidation. Influenced by market demand,

structural adjustment, transformation and upgrading.

The world suffered from the impact of COVID-19 epidemic and
geopolitics in the first half of 2020, making the world economy
and globalization under unprecedented threats. China's Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) in the first quarter of 2020 fell by 6.8%
year-on-year. Ensuring the operation of the China’s economy in
the current situation and guarantee the “Six Priorities” became

the top priority of China’s economic development and reform.

China’s economy recorded highlights in areas such as consumption,
industrial structure, foreign trade and foreign investment, and
employment. Consumption is the first driving force for China’s
economic growth. Especially in the second half of 2019, the leading
position of the consumption engine was further consolidated.
From July to December 2019, total retail sales of consumer
goods maintained a year-on-year growth of 7.2% to 8.0%. From
January to June 2020, the total retail sales of consumer goods
were RMB17,225.6 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 11.4%,; while in the second quarter of 2020, the decline in the
total retail sales of consumer goods narrowed by 15.1 percentage
points as compared with that of the first quarter of 2020. In the
first half of 2020, China's economy gradually overcame the adverse
effects caused by the epidemic and achieved gradual recovery.

In June 2020, the added value of China’s enterprises of designated
size actually increased by 4.8% year-on-year, which was 0.4
percentage point faster than that in May 2020. From January to
June 2020, the added value of enterprises of designated size
declined by 1.3% year-on-year. In terms of pharmaceutical retailing,
as China intensified supervision over the pharmaceutical industry
and frequently issued new policies for the industry, pharmaceutical
retailing faced both challenges and opportunities. From January
to May 2020, the total profits of China’s enterprises of designated
size amounted to RMB1,843.49 billion, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 19.3%, a decline narrowed by 8.1 percentage points as
compared with that from January to April 2020. On the other hand,
China’s retail pharmacy terminals consist of physical pharmacies
and online pharmacies. In terms of pharmaceutical e-commerce,

users in China’s pharmaceutical e-commerce market continued to

14 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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increase. According to the data from Analysys Qianfan, in March
2020, the number of active users in the pharmaceutical e-commerce
field continued to rise, reaching 5.67 million, representing an
increase of 7.3% from the previous month, and a year-on-year
increase of 86.3% as compared with 3.043 million in the same
period of 2019.

The COVID-19 epidemic has had a great impact on global
macro economy and major industries. As the main force to fight
against the "epidemic”, the pharmaceutical industry has received
unprecedented attention while facing the challenges. Since the
announcement of the sequence of COVID-19 on 11 January 2020,
governments, enterprises, and scientific researchers around the
world have been actively involved in the vaccine development
for COVID-19. From the perspective of China’s domestic market,
the year of 2020 is considered as a critical time point for the
development of the traditional Chinese medicine industry in the
industry.

The pharmaceutical industry is closely related to the life and health
of Chinese people and is an inseparable part of their lives since
all men are equal when facing disease. Vigorously developing the
health industry is an important task for implementing the healthy
China strategy and maintaining and guaranteeing the health of
the people. It is both a need to improve people’s livelihood
and a need to build a modern economic system, thus being of
great significance. Especially after the outbreak of the COVID-19
epidemic in 2020, the pharmaceutical industry may usher in
another opportunity for development, which will also benefit the
development of the Group. The rigidity of domestic demand and
the flexibility of external demand for medicine will continue to be
maintained in the second half of 2020.
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~ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS -
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"~ BUSINESS REVIEW
/ /U'r'.)d'éf'the leadership of Mr. Jin Dongtao, the chairman (the

airman”) and chief executive officer of the Group, and with

the efforts of all employees, the Group anchors in and focuses
on the pharmaceutical healthcare field, and has been actively
promoting the development of traditional physical retail chain

stores and distribution network while facing intensive competition.

=
/i
o >

-

Meanwhile, the Group also endeavored to explore new business
model.

The sudden outbreak of COVID-19 delivers a major blow to
economic and social development. Compared with industries such
as catering, tourism, film and television, for which the pause button
is pressed, pharmaceutical companies have gained a breathing
space. The employees of the Group's retail chain stores creatively
use plastic film to isolate the display area from the salespersons’
activity area, and insist on providing medicine sales services to
local people. In some areas, telephone contact for home delivery
of medicine, or mobile internet reservation for epidemic products
were carried out to maintain business continuity. However, the
operation of the Group has still been adversely affected due to
movement control and sales control of common medications such
as those for fever and cough.
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The Golden Rules (FE#HE)

The Golden Rules, an operation philosophy with strategic vision,
is put forward by Mr. Jin Dongtao, the Chairman, of which "£" is
embodied as “1+1=1, 1+1=11, 1+1=101, 1+1==E, 1+1=H". The
Golden Rules advocates “Team-work” cooperation spirit, “Platform”
for multilateral cooperation, "Empathy” at multi-level and multi-
dimension, “Sharing” win-win cooperation strategy and “Partnership”
of seeking common development.

Chain Retail Business

During the Year, the Group aggregated strategic stores
("Retails 1) and non-strategic stores (“Retails II") into a single
reportable segment (“Retails”). In order to minimise the impact
on performance caused by the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group
bucked the trend and completed renovation work of some retail
stores and held various promotion activities so as to enhance the
Group's regional influence and chain competitiveness. Some stores
of the Group were designated by the government as procurement
and distribution units for anti-epidemic suppliers in the midst of the
COVID-19 epidemic, to effectively contribute to the fight against
the epidemic in the region by virtue of the Group's advantages. At
the end of the Year, the Group had a total of 849 chain stores (2019:
850 stores). However, the Group's retail business is still suffered
from the continuous downturn of regional real economy within
the northeastern region of the PRC and the impact of COVID-19
epidemic. The Group recorded sales revenue for retail business
of RMB714.4 million for the Year (2019: RMB1,096.0 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 34.8%.

Nationwide Distribution Business

During the Year, some distribution companies of the Group were
designated by local governments as procurement and distribution
units for anti-epidemic suppliers to contribute to the public health.
The Group has approximately 3,050 distribution customers and
5 large-scale distribution logistics centers. The Group made
appropriate promotion in its distribution system, continued to
optimise screening and maintaining of high-quality customers, and
held 5 associations in total with strategic cooperation distributors
before the outbreak of the epidemic. However, in the face of the
difficult economic environment, the Group’s distribution business
recorded sales revenue of RMB795.7 million (2019: RMB1,328.4
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 40.1%.
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_Direct-supply and Sales Model

g
//’ /" Ihe Group's direct-supply model effectively addressed the issue of

%’}fﬁa‘ditional heavily overlapped sales process, as well as simplified

/the supply chain to improve sales efficiency and profitability and
provided a higher profit margin from the high-margin products
of the Group. Meanwhile, the marketing model advanced to
accord with the “Two Invoices System” carried out by the Chinese
government so as to reduce the effect of the policy change of
the Group. During the Year, the Group’s management took all
necessary actions to safeguard the direct supply of branded
products, and its direct-supply model covered 29 provinces in China.

Branded Products Operation

The Group continued to maintain the operational pattern of
the original branded products and adjusted the brand structure
according to actual operational requirements to eliminate certain
non-applicable products and add new products, so as to maintain
the competitiveness of the original branded products, on the other
hand, increase the influence of new branded products. During
the Year, a net decrease of 416 branded products was recorded.
Hence, there were 677 branded products in total in operation for
the benefit of the Group at the end of the Year.

Intelligent Warehouse Construction

The Group has set up five large-scale logistics distribution centers
in Shijiazhuang, Shenyang, Changchun, Harbin and Jiamusi, and
has established a high-quality distribution system radiating across
the whole country and covering the northeastern region. During
the Year, the Group strengthened the hardware and software
maintenance and environmental construction of the logistics
centers. On the one hand, intelligent equipment and WMS
intelligent sorting software system were added to some pilot
logistics centers to increase the technological content of logistics
management and promote labor productivity. On the other hand,
the Group invested in beautifying the working conditions to improve
the work feelings of employees and customers, promote image
upgrading, and lay a solid foundation for planning the industrial
upgrading and intelligent transformation of the logistics park.
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Brand Image Promotion

With traditional advantages in continuous brand promotion
and marketing, the Group strengthened the influence and
competitiveness of the Company and mitigated the further decline
in operating performance. During the Year, promotional activities
had been launched for product brands and enterprise brands by
continuously leveraging on traditional media, including televisions,
broadcasts, newspapers, vehicle advertisement, billboards and
leaflets, along with new media platforms including the internet
and WeChat. In addition, the Group has participated in the public
charity. Especially during the COVID-19 epidemic period, it carried
out activities of free distribution of anti-epidemic supplies as a
way to enhance the reputation of the Company and practice its
corporate social responsibilities.

Institute Training

According to the characteristics of new era, new economy, new
technology and new retail, the Group continued to optimise
the training activities of the institute and made best use of the
business institute on the Group's business development, talent
nurturing and public welfare promotion. Moreover, the Group
took the advantage of the lead in establishing business institute
in the industry, strengthened its cohesion as well as enhanced
and transformed the mode of thinking of employees in response
to the transformation and upgrade of the Company’s business.
During the Year, 155 internal trainings in total had been held by
the Company.

Membership Service

During the Year, the Group had provided follow-up services and
promotion benefits for approximately 1.6 million offline members,
enhancing the sense of affiliation and positivity of members while
boosting their loyalty, and thus promoting a healthy image of the
Company. Meanwhile, the Group provided social value-added
services in various aspects such as the provision of public toilets,
cold shelters, lost children service centres and epidemic prevented
station for courier and continued to launch the public welfare
activities such as “Love China”, with a view to building up its
positive corporate image.
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EEEBNWMEDN
J/I/ .. A~
o
/ " Industry Alliance 1THmBB

A S . . . .
;/ "/ The Company had proactively participated in the alliance ARFRESMEETES - UERREIF
Z’ixé’gﬁvities, with the Chairman and vice chairman, chief operating & - BEBEESARKSEEBAKNHE

officer attended the tours and forums organised by the alliance 2% - 18 ' ILEBEHREREE  ZR1TEE
on behalf of the Group, to seize the theme of era development, &l * R RIEE RER © MNBA QR EITHE
keep abreast of the industry information, promote development BB EBEI R @ THIRAFE SN - [
of branded products, strengthen the Company’s interaction ' B EM[{EEPE | [EBFE] -
and exchange with industry alliance and constantly enhance the [—&—K|R[EFBXEE - /SHEHRE
Group's influence. Meanwhile, leveraging on the China’s national 5% |SBIREKER - WIKITELR
strategic guidance of “Healthy China (R B)", "Beautiful China  ERHTAIFT  HMERA QR EBER AL A #E
(GEEFE)", "Belt and Road (—#—#&)” and “Guangdong-Hong  —##i# -
Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area-Hainan Free Trade Port (/&
BAXERE—-BEBEMHRESHE)", the Company gathered industry
experience and focused on the technological innovation to seek
further transformation and upgrade of the Company'’s business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW B %5 (ol R

The Group recorded revenue of RMB1,510.1 million for the Year AFE @ AEBE&HFKE ARKE1,51018
(2019: RMB2,424.4 million). Loss attributable to owners of the &IT(ZZE—NF: AR¥242445E7T) °
Company was RMB491.4 million for the Year (2019: RMB265.6 ZAFE @ N alHEBARBEEEAARK
million). Loss per share for the Year was RMB12.75 cents (2019: 491488 T(ZZ—1F : AR265.6H
RMB8.58 cents). The increase in loss attributable to owners of the &7T) - NFE - FREEBAARE12.750
Company was mainly due to: (i) significant decrease in revenue ZT-NF : AR¥858%) - AREIHER
resulting from, including, the economic downturn; the weakened ~ AFE(GEIEIEIN - T EMRMN THIFE =M :
purchasing power of the people living in the Northeast of China;  ()&E 17 * FEIRILHbE A E 11855
and the weakened consumer sentiment attributable to the outbreak ~ KHE&H EXREFH B AZIEE B IBERE
of the COVID-19; (i) increase in relevant advertising and marketing ZREZEHWTZBER LD © ()BBR D HHE
expenses of products with exclusive distribution rights; and (i) EMmEREES &KEHEFA TGN 0 KA E
the Group made an impairment provision for goodwill and other EEMEE R EMAEIERBEEELRE
related non-current assets. Rtk -

Revenue g

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of RMB1,510.1 million AFE @ AEEHESKE ARE1,51018
(2019: RMB2,424.4 million). The decline in the performance of & (ZZE—NF: ARKE24244FET) °
the Group's retail and distribution businesses for the Year was ZAFE @ AEBZTERDHEEREE T EE
mainly due to the significant decrease in the revenue resulting ZHRMNEETTT » RFEIRILHEAHGEE N
from, including, the economic downturn; the weakened purchasing 355 & )B & & BB FE B A Z 158 FTR 55
power of the people living in the Northeast of China; and the ZHZAZUBALRERFEEETE -
weakened consumer sentiment attributable to the outbreak of

the COVID-19.
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Analysis of revenue by business segment

Revenue (RMB million)
Year ended 30 June

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BB EDE| 77 B9 2k W

Percentage (%) of total revenue
Year ended 30 June

KE(ARBEER) AR T 2 (%)
BEAA=TRLEE BEAA=TALEE
2020 2019 2020 2019 Change
ZECERE “E-NE —ECEE —E-NE B
Retails e 714.4 1,096.0 473 45 +2.1 pp
ZALEED
Distributions Gk 795.7 1,328.4 52.7 54.8 -2.1pp
2 MAEHE
1,510.1 2,424.4 100.0 100.0
Retail Business Segment TEXHTE

To better reflect current and future business development of the
Group, the Retails | and Retails || segments have been aggregated
into a single reportable segment in order to present a more
systematic and structured segment information on the performance
of different type of products for the Year. The segment information
for the year ended 30 June 2019 has been re-presented in order
to conform with the current presentation. The decline in retail
business performance was mainly due to the performance of
the retail channel lower than expected resulting from, including,
the economic downturn; the weakened purchasing power of
the people living in the Northeast of China; and the weakened
consumer sentiment attributable to the outbreak of the COVID-19.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had 849 (2019: 850) retail pharmacies
in total, of which 654 (2019: 654) located in Heilongjiang, 127 (2019:
128) in Liaoning, 67 (2019: 67) in Jilin and 1 (2019: 1) self-operated
retail pharmacy in Hong Kong. In addition, the Group had 1 (2019:
1) supermarket in Shenyang as at 30 June 2020, mainly for selling
healthcare products and consumer goods.

REIFRRAEE B B MARRNEHER
ZEIRZEBINHECEHB/E—HRENE -
IR AFENEREEMNEEZTIERZR
EREBINDMER - BE_T—LFAX
A=ZTHLEFENDHEREEIATAR
B2 - TEXBRATHRIZHNKLET
17 PERIEASBE DRSS REE
BERAMEMAREEMRBEEZRAERY
EFTERBNRRENEHMK -

R-ZBE-_TFEXA=Z1+AH AEENTEEH
JERBBESOR( T —NF 850K ) H
FOSAK(ZE—NF : 654K )R RFET -
121K (T —NF 128K )L NEE - 67
K(ZE—NF /)M REMRIR(Z
T-NF IR)BETEHEENURES o It
S RZE-ZFEXNA=Z1+AH AEEER
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Distribution Business Segment
////-‘Erqdent approach has been adopted in running the distribution
/,/'//b(_i,si'ness of the Group. The Group has taken appropriate actions

0 mitigate credit risks by strengthening the credit management
of sales and minimising trade receivables in order to lower the
risk of bad debts.

During the Year, the Group had a nationwide distribution network
covering approximately 3,050 active customers (2019: 3,800), among
which approximately 2,020 pharmaceutical retailers, hospitals and
clinics (2019: 2,500) and approximately 1,030 distributors (2019:
1,300).

Gross profit

Gross profit of the Group for the Year was RMB188.5 million (2019:
RMB326.8 million). Overall gross margin decreased from 13.5%
to 12.5%. The decrease in gross margin was mainly due to the
increase in procurement costs. Furthermore, the Group offered
discounts to customers to fight against the negative impacts on
consumer spending caused by the COVID-19 epidemic during the
Year, resulting in a decline in gross margin.

Analysis of gross profit by business segment

Gross profit (RMB million)

Year ended 30 June

D IHEFE B
AEBEERMEERELEE
SECREVEETTE - BRNBHEEEE
EREEERR - WRAE S RBKFIA - A
PRAKIE AR AL o

BEDHHER o K

AEE AEEE2BEESHEHREEEZY
30508 EREP(ZE—N4F : 3,8004) -
HA 42,0008 hEETER - B k2 AT
—E—NF 1 2,500%) & 491,030% 5D
E(=ZZ—NF :1,300%) °

EFHE

REE  FAEBENBAARKI18858E
T(ZE—NF: AR¥E3268EETT) - B
BEMNEKHIZSBTEE125% EFET
PREEARMNIRBRARIEN - URAFELRE
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Gross margin (%)
Year ended 30 June

ERBAR%EET) EFIE%)
HEAAZTHLEE BEAAZTHLEE
2020 2019 2020 2019 Change
—E-%F = i —2-%F —ENF g
Retails & 149.3 2512 20.9 229 20pp
20
Distributions ok 39.2 75.6 4.9 57 0.8 pp
08EENE
188.5 326.8
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Selling and marketing expenses

Selling and marketing expenses for the Year was RMB617.3 million
(2019: RMB551.0 million) and accounted for 40.9% (2019: 22.7%)
of the Group’s revenue. The increase in selling and marketing
expenses was mainly due to the increase of advertising and other
marketing expenses for the purpose of developing advertising for
new exclusive distribution products, which was partially offset by
the decrease of employee benefit expenses and transportation
and related charges.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year was RMB75.3 million (2019:
RMB79.5 million) and accounted for 5.0% (2019: 3.3%) of the
Group's revenue. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly due to no share-based payment expenses during the Year.

Finance income — net

Net finance income for the Year was RMB7.4 million (2019: RMB11.3
million). The decrease in net finance income was mainly due to the
increase in interest on lease liabilities and decrease in exchange
gains.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for the Year was RMB1.2 million (2019:
RMB3.2 million). The effective income tax rate for the Year was
0.3% (2019:1.2%).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's treasury function formulated financial risk
management procedures, which are also subject to periodic review
by the senior management of the Company.

This treasury function operates as a centralized service for
managing financial risks, including interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks, reallocating surplus financial resources within
the Group, procuring cost-efficient funding and targeting yield
enhancement opportunities. The treasury function regularly and
closely monitors its overall cash and debt positions, proactively
reviews its funding costs and maturity profiles to facilitate timely
refinancing, if appropriate.
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As at 30 June 2020, the Group's unpledged cash and cash

7

equsvalents were RMB131.3 million in aggregate (2019: RMB628.5

/ m’lhon) and the Group's net current assets were RMB434.0 million

2019: RMB1,018.0 million).

During the Year, net cash flows used in operating activities
amounted to RMB408.3 million (2019: RMB309.2 million). The
incessant increase in net cash flows used in operating activities
was mainly attributable to the Group's weakening operating
performance.

During the Year, the Group had capital expenditure of RMB95.7
million (2019: RMB3.9 million).

Having considered the cash flow from operating activities and
existing financial gearing, the management believes that the
Group would replenish liquidity in a timely basis to fund its day-
to-day operations, capital expenditures and prospective business
development projects. The Board will continuously and closely
monitor the Group's liquidity position and financial performance
and implement measures to improve the Group's cash flows.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, with most of its transactions
denominated and settled in Renminbi. The Group's currency risk
arises from certain bank deposits that are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and United States dollars. As at 30 June 2020, the
Group had cash and bank balances of RMB131.3 million, of which
the equivalent of RMB5.0 million was denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and United States dollars.

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purpose during the Year.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 30 June 2020, the capital structure of the Company was
constituted of 3,863,134,451 ordinary shares of USD0.001 each.
During the Year, 275,300,000 options had been exercised to
subscribe for 275,300,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
total consideration of RMB18.3 million, of which RMB1.9 million
was credited to share capital and the balance of RMB16.4 million
was credited to the share premium account. In addition, RMB9.6
million has been transferred from the share-based payment reserve
to the share premium account. Details of movements in the share
capital of the Company during the Year are set out in Note 22(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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As at 30 June 2020, the Group had no interest-bearing bank
borrowings and no bank borrowings carried annual interest rates
(2019: Nil).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2020, calculated as
net debt divided by sum of total equity and net debt, was N/A
(2019: N/A).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2019: Nil).

As at 30 June 2020, notes payable of the Group was secured by
the time deposits of the Group with net aggregate booking value
of RMB45.2 million (2019: RMB38.1 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had 5,612 (2019: 5,628) full-time
employees in Hong Kong China and the mainland China with total
employee benefit expenses amounted to RMB276.0 million for the
Year (2019: RMB308.2 million). Employees are paid according to
their positions, performance, experience and prevailing market
practices, and are provided with management and professional
training. The Group has implemented a number of initiatives to
enhance the productivity of its employees. In particular, the Group
conducts periodic performance reviews on most of the employees,
and their compensation is tied to their performance. Further,
the Group's compensation structure is designed to incentivize
its employees to perform well by linking a portion of their
compensation to their performance and the overall performance of
the Group. The performance-based compensation partly depends
on the employee’s job function and seniority. Employees in Hong
Kong are provided with retirement benefits under the Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme, as well as life insurance and medical
insurance. Employees in the PRC are provided with basic social
insurance and housing fund in compliance with the requirements of
the laws of China. Meanwhile, the Group endeavours to provide its
employees with a safe workplace and structured training programs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERENWE D

/FIGHTlNG AGAINST COVID-19
,The outbreak of COVID-19 has affected thousands of households.

he Group had made special arrangement for the employees

/to work on rotation during the Chinese New Year. Under the

guidance of safe protection, they hold tight to their posts, actively
organize supply of goods, arrange 24 hours to send medicine
in some areas and provide timely pharmaceutical care for the
customers during hard times. On the one hand, the materials to
fight against COVID-19 were timely supplied; on the other hand,
the operation of the Company was carried out normally. At present,
the Company is working overtime, trying every means to integrate
resources, mobilize urgently needed drugs and prevention and
control materials. In response to the call of the state, the Company
is determined not to increase the price of pharmaceutical care
in chain pharmacies. In February 2020, certain subsidiaries of
the Group in Jilin province, Shenyang area and Heilongjiang
area have been entrusted by the epidemic prevention command
department of the local governments as the designated units for
epidemic preventing medical supplies. In addition, the Company
has launched a public welfare support campaign to freely supply
over 110,000 masks and some disinfectant alcohol products to
community consumers, reflecting the humanistic feelings and
social responsibility of a pharmaceutical enterprise in serving
the society. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 10 February 2020.

FUTURE PLAN

Following the leadership of the Chairman in strategic plan and
taking the Golden Rules as its guidelines, the management of the
Group will adapt to the new situation, concentrate on universal
health, focus on the pharmaceutical industry, and deeply cultivate
the industry chain. On the basis of stabilizing and optimising the
existing retail chain network and distribution system, it will further
explore the structural transformation and digital upgrading of
the “supply-side” reform with focus on the development of the
following areas:
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"Specialization

+ 1

Firstly,

strategy is adopted to strengthen the
service professionalism and improve the Company’s operation
quality. Taking licensed pharmacists as the core and leveraging
on the advantages of the business institute, the Group aims to
train employees of the new era, and improve the level of pharmacy
services for the public from the aspects of corporate culture,
pharmaceutical knowledge, service skills, new marketing methods,
or introducing famous doctors, as a way to win customers and
develop markets with professionalism, and to shape professional
brands in retail chain pharmacies and distribution field.

Secondly, "Platform*" strategy is adopted to expand the value-
added service items of stores to meet the growing demand of
consumers. With the change in living environment, people pay
more attention to health, resulting in increasing demand for
prevention and treatment. In particular, the COVID-19 outbreak
has further reminded the public of the importance of health care
and immunity. The Group will adopt new technological methods
according to the new situation, such as introducing Al intelligent
diagnostic medical equipment, or introducing resources in the
field of universal health in the form of partners, to enhance the
service capabilities of terminal stores and adapt to the market
needs in the new situation.

Thirdly, "“Internet*” strategy is adopted to strengthen the linking
capability of internet to physical stores, and promote online and
offline connectivity and integration. According to the development
trend of technology and the internet, the Group will make full
use of the new situation of the popularization of mobile internet
terminals, including development of applets, use of short videos
and live commerce, moments promotion, group development
and bonding members, to develop a network for physical stores,
explore a new marketing ecosystem integrating “new business,
new retail, and new technology”, and build a dynamic and leading
competitiveness.

Therefore, by leveraging the network layout advantages of
traditional industries and grafting the new economic model, the
Group will make efforts to facilitate the optimization and digital
transformation of the Group's operation structure, and make plans
for a new development cycle with the wing of new engine for the
Company, so as to maintain the Group as one of the industrial
leaders in terms of the construction of industrial chain ecosystem
and operation channel innovation.
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Mith reference to its own experience, the Company primarily

/"é;d'é.pts the principles and basis of Environmental, Social and

/.

'J,G/_c:g,v'ernance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules

/ /overning the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

as its standards, with an aim to establish a sound environmental,
social and governance structure.

The Group is principally engaged in the distributions and retails
of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the northeastern
region of the PRC. The Group employs the Direct-supply Model
in the sales and promotion of high-margin products including
licensed products and the products with exclusive distribution
rights. The Group employs Original Equipment Manufacturers
(OEM) and does not directly participate in the production process,
therefore, there is no emission of waste and greenhouse gas, water
and land pollution and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, etc. in respect to production process. This report
elaborates the Group's performance in fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility arisen from operations in the mainland China and
Hong Kong of the PRC during the year ended 30 June 2020.
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The Group is committed to creating values for stakeholders and
the community by a responsible mode of operation, and its major
objectives are to maintain the sustainable development of the
following factors: (I) environmental aspect; (Il) working environment;
(Il) operational management; and (IV) community participation/ 4t

public welfare.

Stakeholders
BoE
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Issues of concern
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Communication channels

Government and market regulators

B R MG RERE

Compliance operation

BRKE

Tax payment

BATIR

Promote regional economic
development and employment

B ELERREIIE

On-site inspections and checks

BB E RS

Work reports preparation and
submission for approval

REWIRR TEREESH

Annual, interim reports and other
published information

Fif - PHHREREMBTIBEER

Shareholders and investors

RREIRES

Return on investment

& & B ¥

Information disclosure and
transparency

BRzHERERE

Protect of shareholders’ interests

R R 2

Annual general meeting and other
shareholder meetings

BRRBEREGNEMBRAS

Annual, interim reports and other
published information

Fi - PHREREMBSTIEER

The Company's website

RNl

The Company'’s contact information

AR AR T

Employees

{3=1

Career development opportunities
ERERKS
Health and safety

Training and incentive scheme
A A B ET 8l
Health guidelines

R L 2 Z x5l
Peer/industry associations e Experience sharing and e Industry alliance
GEYESES co-operations TR

REmoEMAE

Industry conference and seminars
TEARMEE LM E

Suppliers/partners
HEER, S ER

Long-term partnership
REBHBFR

Honest co-operation
ERalE

Fair and open

NS YN

Risk reduction

(8 iVE

Tendering process
ErEL S G

Regular meeting
EHEE

Strategic cooperation
REEAE

Synergetic development

1 Al 3 R
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RE - HEREBRS

Issues of concern

Communication channels

7

N

BHE BEEE BERE
Cudstomers e Safe and high-quality products e Customer service hotline
e RkamBEZEM B RGEAR
e Business ethics e After-sales service
[EEIEE ERRE
e Member activities
SEEY
Public and communities e Social responsibilities e Various charity projects
NI Ean nHeaME BHEAmEEIEE
e Community involvement e Concern on environmental impact
e BIRBTE

e The public welfare brand
"Love China” of the Group
REE [Z2OFE] BRmmE

() ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT

30

The Group only sells and markets our licensed products
under our Direct-supply Model. The Group believes that our
Direct-supply Model enables us to streamline our distribution
and supply chain by eliminating or reducing intermediaries
and enhance distribution efficiency and profitability, as
well as reducing environmental emissions in sale process.
The Group does not directly participate in manufacturing
drugs, and there is no productive resource consumption for
the Group. The Group actively responds to environmental
issues and is committed to reducing the impact of business
on the environment in its day-to-day operations through a
series of policies and measures. The following are the main
policies and measures of the Group for the implementation
of environmental protection.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Reduce Emission

In respect of drug storage, the Group abides by Good
Supplying Practice (“GSP") as required by competent authority
of China, the primary productive consumption is limited to the
use of electricity. In terms of transportation, the Group mainly
relies on third party transportation agencies in the process
of purchase. Under the conditions permitting, the Group will
give priority to cooperation with local suppliers to reduce
the energy consumption of the transportation process. Only
ordinary office work and storage and delivery of goods will
involve usage and consumption of resources of the Group
with a small portion of use of its own vehicles.

The pollutant emission generated by use of vehicles of the
Group

Emission during

B - g REBES

D B

BYFGTEIE AEBEREPRHE
ERBANERKEESEERE)
([GSP)) - FBELREFRERRE SN
WFER: BRAHE AEBENERRE
FTERBRE=FEGEE  AEET
EEFFFRI T - SELE BEAN R
B1E - LR ERIBIZELIRBERE o K
%l%ﬁfﬁ%@@%—&m%ﬁ =)
RRIECHAEEERMREXEY -

N E B (F BT EERTRY B
=P

Emission indicators
(emission/revenue RMB million)
HHEEE
(BEE WMEARYEEET)
For the year
ended 30 June

Reporting items Emission types the Year  During the Year 2019

BHE_ZT-hF
WESE HRESR rEEHRE REE NA=ZTHILLEE
Vehicle travelling #7758 Nitrogen oxides REILYI(NOx)  1,678.8 kg FT7= 1.112 0.771
Vehicle travelling BE#j7T8¢ Particulate matter fEHI ) 145,093.3 pcs #I 96 66
Automotive fuel BEIFAK}  Sulphur oxides i (E#1(SOx) 35kg T& 0.002 0.001
Automotive fuel EHEAL Carbon dioxide Z&(LHK(CO,) 558,362.3 kg T2 369.7 223.9
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BiE -2 RERHRE

32

Reduction of Greenhouse Gas Emission

Reduction of business trips

The Group understands that long travelling for business
trips will increase energy consumption and lead to an
increase in greenhouse gas emissions. Consequently,
the Group actively reduces the number of business
trips and alternatively uses other effective means of
communication by teleconference or video conference
to replace meetings and trainings which need long
travelling.

Promotion of Environmental Protection Education to
Stakeholders

At present, the Group engages various manufacturers
of pharmaceutical products and health care products
to manufacture our licensed products according to the
design and packing requirements specified by the Group.
The Group is committed to promoting the importance of
energy-saving and emission reduction to its manufacturers
and, therefore, the requirements on the manufacturers
should comply with national environmental protection
regulations and to use environmental friendly material
on packaging to the greatest extent. Among which, the
manufacturers of the licensed products have obtained all
necessary licenses, permits and certification.

The Group raises employees’ awareness of environmental
protection through induction training and slogan.
Moreover, training procedures are formulated to
incorporate the concept of environmental protection into
the employee’s annual training program, which ensures
effective implementation of the relevant energy-saving

and emission reduction measures.
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Resource Usage

e  Save electricity and water

The Group actively advocates the concept of “green
office” and implements a series of measures to save
energy in the office, including cultivating the energy-
saving awareness of employees and encouraging them to
save electricity and water voluntarily such as turning off
the power immediately after use and setting a reasonable
temperature of air conditioner, and reduce wastage.

e  Save paper

In daily operation, the Group actively promotes the
electronic use of documents, uses computer archives
instead of paper documents, and implements paperless
office as much as possible to reduce the use of paper
office supplies. The Company encourages shareholders
to support environmental protection by receiving the
corporate communication in electronic form of the
Company in the future. Meanwhile, the Group requires
employees to use double-sided printing and recycle used
paper that has been used on one side.

The management has regularly reviewed resource use policies
and usage, and does not find violations of waste.

The resources usage on operation of the Group

BRI - @ REBHE

ERER

BRI E ~ Ak
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Resources usage amount indicators
(Usage amount/revenue RMB million)

EREREER
(ERE BBEAR¥BEET)

For the year ended

Resources usage Usage amount during the Year During the Year 30 June 2019
HE-_T—NF

EREA rEEERE XFEE ANA=THIEFE
Electricity & 1,510,126 degree E 573.5 823.7
Petrol ¥ 236,594 litre Nt 156.7 94.9
Water 7K 7,347 m® MK 4.9 2.4
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i

A : s

4 // A The Environment and Natural Resources RERRARER

- :,/://The Company acknowledges that climate change and RRTER - RIREE REIRERE A

/ ” /" / resource shortages pose a major threat to human survival BAGFMERBXTEREE  (ERK

/ " and development. As an enterprise relying on the raw HRFHEEENRE - KRFIRD B
material supply chain, the Company is fully aware of the NEVETHRRERE LR SEN
need to understand and manage the impact of these risks HE -
on operations.
The Company supports the transition to a low-carbon RA B E I R EER - RAF]E
economy. The Company is working hard to understand and BN TR R FINRREE RRE
reduce our environmental impact and carbon footprint, B EERER D EHEERTKEIRNTE
which means cutting down the demand for energy and water KR ADRERBEELE -

resources, reducing waste and improving operations.

The Company formulated series of policies for energy and RRAREILT —RIINE KRR KK E
water conservation, which offer more specific advice and BB - BETRMETEAREREES
measures on management to employees. NAEHE ©
Measure Measure details
RSB BREAR
Green office e Encouraging paperless office for electronic documentation
BREPNE SEEACHD - MAEFUE
¢ Setting air conditioners to keep the temperature at 25T
REFFRE RER25E
e Turning off unused equipment or lighting system
MR )RR R e
Green operation e For the non-hazardous solid waste, such as domestic waste and waste
RELE packaging, etc., the Group will deliver them to Health Authority for

handling to prevent environmental pollution upon collection
AEEHELABETERBNERYNE  PIWARHRREZEEYSE X6
ErARRPIERIE - Fr IR SRR R
e Some unqualified products found in product test and the obsolete drugs
produced during the storage are destroyed under the supervision of the
quality department
HERBATRE -~ LTERARBFREANBHERMNE -  EE2 AN
EETREHS

Promoting environmental protection to ® Complying with environmental protection laws and regulations as well as

manufacturers and green purchase the environmental protection standards of the Group
MEEREERR R CRE BRREERERIAEERRRERTNITE

e Choosing local suppliers at priority and manufacturing licensed brand
products based on design and packaging requirements prescribed by the
Group when meeting the Company's requirements

ERARARIEZRBAT BEZEAMKERIIREAEETANRTREE
EREBERE M EM
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Measure Measure details
Biea BlRAR

Providing environmental protection e
training to employees
a8 TRERERE .

Providing environmental protection training for new joiners

H& R AR B TRARRE

Actively reducing the number of business trips and encouraging employees
to use teleconferences or video conferences instead of meetings which
need long travelling

BRRSBBERAY  SBHETEBEEAGRIGASENARENRITER

Encouraging employees to reduce the use of vehicles

HEE TR ERER

Warehouse Construction Bf#ER

The Group builds a logistics warehouse to analyze information REBZRMRER  BBRERICER
through modern system management, and realize the EBEOMEM - BRYROFEAKL - A
generalizable, controllable, intelligent and informative b &k Bt —FHERSE
logistics, on the one hand, to improve the turnover rate and EH AR N ERYE - B—HEEED
accuracy of warehouse; on the other hand, to reduce logistics MK RARTHEERE - B8 LIRS
cost and improve operation efficiency, so as to reduce RIBEKWE T - ReEGEFE - BR
environmental pressure as a whole, improve corporate profits FEENHEEE SLEERRE T
and realize more abundant social values. These infrastructure, s HERITBESRAIERFEEEA
management experience and expertise will be fully opened F - RS VEREHE - FREMIRBR -

to partners, enabling partners to reduce logistics costs.

g ﬁu.\:v}
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"~/ A1}y WORKING ENVIRONMENT

4 ,.-""',Employee and Labor Standards

As of 30 June 2020, the Group had 5,612 employees, of which
99.8% located in mainland China.

The Group is in strict compliance with local employment
laws and regulations, including but not limited to Chapter
57 Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, and Labor Law of
the PRC, Labor Contract Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on
Protection of Minors, Regulations on Prohibiting Use of Child
Labor (State Council Order No. 364) and Special Provisions on
Labor Protection of Females (State Council Order No. 619):

1 labor wages, overtime pay and related benefits in
compliance with the requirement of local minimum wage;

2 holiday andlegal holiday in compliance with the provisions
of the state;

3 equal treatment to every employee, without influence of
employee’s nationality, race, nationality, gender, religion,
age, sexual orientation, political parties, marital status
and other social identity on employment, payment,
promotion, etc; and

4 implementation of integrated computation man-hour in
compliance with the requirements of labor law.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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The working hours applied to the staff of the Group are in
compliance with the relevant requirements of the employment
laws and regulations. The Group's all businesses are prohibited
from employing child labor or forced labor. The Group has
complied with relevant laws and regulations of prevention of
child and compulsory labor. We perform strict examination
in the process of recruitment to avoid hiring child labor in
any workplace. Furthermore, we will hold regular meeting
with management of all departments to review whether there
exists forced labor and also understand the situation from
the employees. Any detected employment of child labor or
forced labor will be dealt with seriously, such as stopping the
work of child labor, criticism and reduction of wages or bonus
of the person in charge of the recruitment, as the case may
be, with respect to related department and even dismissal
in severe cases.

The Group has established and implemented a set of human
resources management policies and procedures in place with
the aim to provide ideal working environment to its staff.
Further, the Group's compensation structure is designed to
incentivize its employees to perform well by linking a portion
of their compensation to their performance and the overall
performance of the Group. The Group has adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of enhancing cohesion and maintaining competitiveness. In
July 2019, some participants exercised their share options.
The performance-based compensation partly depends on
the employee’s job function and qualification.

BRI - @ REBHE
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BiE  -deaRELESE

" Total number of employees by gender, category and age IR - 1B S IRH R F iR A FIE 5 61
B2
Age group Number at Number at
Gender Category (years old) 30 June 2020 30 June 2019
R-ZB-FHF RZZE—h&F
AA=+H ANA=+A
5 Rt FHAA R (5%) AE N
Female Management 50 or above
oy i3 BEAR 503k A £ 42 4
40-49 96 89
30-39 57 61
18-29 13 15
General staff 50 or above
—MET 508k A 272 263
40-49 1,505 1,487
30-39 1,951 1,931
18-29 827 884
Male Management 50 or above
S EEAB 508k A a1 41
40-49 63 62
30-39 54 55
18-29 10 1"
General staff 50 or above
—RBT 508k A 32 34
40-49 221 213
30-39 357 354
18-29 71 87
Total
B 5,612 5,628
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o
Employee turnover rate by gender, category and age group IR - B S IR R AF Boil I 2| 55 1 fE
Bkt &
Employee
Employee turnover rate for
Age group turnover rate the year ended
Gender Category (years old) for the Year (%) 30 June 2019 (%)
BHZE
—T-hEF
~A=+H
REE IEFE
4B fcRic) FlAa Bl (5%) MK (%) MK (%)
Female Management 50 or above
gk BEAB 503k A 0.0 5.0
40-49 0.0 7.3
30-39 5.1 17.9
18-29 14.3 5.7
General staff 50 or above
—RET 5084 0.0 2.4
40-49 0.0 9.1
30-39 0.0 9.6
18-29 6.7 4.9
Male Management 50 or above
S BEEAB 503k A k= 0.0 2.8
40-49 0.0 22.0
30-39 1.8 121
18-29 925 0.0
General staff 50 or above
—RET 50304 6.1 13.9
40-49 0.0 0.5
30-39 0.0 1.4
18-29 20.3 0.0
5 7.5
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Health and Safety

/" The Group establishes management policies and procedures
" for human resources, formulates system of occupational health

and safety and takes various steps, aiming to provide the
employees with an ideal and safe working environment. For
this purpose, the Group also persists in putting resources on
improving occupational safety and environmental protection
awareness as well as employee development. Our Code
of Business Conduct, available in the staff handbook,
communicates to our employees the Group's emphasis on
ethical business conduct. The Code of Business Conduct
applies to all employees and covers areas including, among
other things, health, safety and financial integrity, etc.

Working Environment

The Group assesses safety of working environment. The Group
implements relevant national regulations on occupational
safety and social insurance and formulates corresponding
operating rules to manage and control the health and safety
hazards posed to the employees, and also formulates relevant
contingency and precautionary measures. For example, in
business premises and offices, the Group provides relevant
staff with necessary labor protection resources, white gowns
for salesperson and the necessary education on computer
operation and water and electricity safety. Moreover, the
Group regularly monitors the compliance status including fire-
fighting equipment and regular cleaning of the air conditioning
system and replacement of relevant components to ensure
good in-door air quality for protection of employees’ health.
The Group should report and supervise rectification in event
of non-compliant situation. In terms of labor insurance, the
Group provides social insurance for employees, including
employment injury insurance. In terms of commercial
insurance, Directors and senior management are insured of
liability insurance.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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Work-Life Balance

The Group is not just concerned with the occupational health
and safety of the employees; it is also concerned with the
psychological well-being and need of private life of the
employees. Hence, the Group devises various categories
of leaves relating to an employee’s family life, and makes
provision for early leave, flexible vacation, etc. to align
with the roles of an employee in his/her family. In addition,
the Group will arrange a variety of activities to ease the
employees’ pressure and enrich employees’ life outside of
work, such as arrangement of festival celebration activities,
sport competitions, etc.

During the Year, no work-related death or injury occurred with
respect to any employees within the Group.

Development and Training

The Group has implemented a number of initiatives to
enhance the productivity of our employees. Among which,
Jintian Institute is an internal training institution first set up in
the industry, and subsequently introduced to China Business
School Education Group Limited, which established in Hong
Kong and is also our training institution.

BiR - HEREREE
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Jintian Institute

" Aintian Institute is an in-house training and development
/‘centre, providing systematic and comprehensive training to

our employees as well as our important distribution customers
periodically. These training courses focus on the promotion
of employee’s sales skills and deepening the understanding
of enterprise culture of the Group. Jintian Institute provides
certain training programmes and courses covering various
aspects of business operations of the Group, including
but not limited to, medical and nutrition knowledge, store
operations and procedures, sales and marketing techniques,
customer interaction and service skills. Jintian Institute also
provides training to our management team in areas such
as business process and planning, leadership development,
effective communication and management skills. Another
key function of the Jintian Institute is to organise events and
seminars to promote corporate values of the Group: goal-
orientation, teamwork and collectivism. In the meanwhile,
the Group also provides continuous training for Directors and
senior management on relevant laws and regulatory update
as well as business matters related to the Group, to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.

These trainings include seminars and workshop on leadership
development, corporate governance practices as well as
regulatory development and requirements. Through these
training programmes, our employees are able to master
standard operating procedures of the Group, communicate
effectively with customers and acquire a better understanding
of customers’ preferences. Jintian Institute also helps us to
build an experienced, loyal and focused workforce.

During the Year, the Group provided 155 sessions of training
to employees through Jintian Institute with up to 6,656
participants, with an aim to make active efforts for improving
staff quality and management performance, and adapt to the
new norm of the economic development.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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Details for employees receiving training from Jintian Institute

BRI - @ REBHE

EEZE X KB SBbigiliE Rk

Participants during
the Year ended
30 June 2019

Participants
during the Year

HE_ZT—NF
Category XEE AA=ZTAHLEFE
<Yl ZIAR ZAAR
Senior Management Personnel &R EIEA B 45 62
Middle Management Personnel FAREIE A B 101 116
Salespersons ¥ A8 6,510 8,738
Total &&f 6,656 8,916
Encouragement for External Learning HEIHER

While conducting internal training actively, the Group
also encourages its employees to participate in exams for
external higher education and professional qualification. By
sharing the resource of the Jintian Institute, we organize
employees to participate in the exams of licensed pharmacists,
undergraduate and postgraduate etc., encourage employees
to promote themselves from different aspects, and improve
business skills and comprehensive quality, etc.

Peer/Industry Associations

China Medical Pharmaceutical Material Association (- Bl &5 %%
ME#E) was established in 1989, which was a national, non-
profit making social entities Class | corporate organization
approved to be registered by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the PRC (FBIR EZB). Business supervisory unit is State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of
The State Council. The Group’s Chairman, Mr. Jin Dongtao
is vice chairman of the China Medical Pharmaceutical
Material Association. The Group's senior management and
employees participate in the training and offline activities of
the association on an irregular basis.
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/// /(lll) OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT

Supply Chain Management

In order to enhance operation and management, the Group
works on simplifying the supply chain management; as well
as diversifying supplier channels to reduce purchase cost and
building a structure that combines upstream and downstream
through mergers and acquisitions. Out of all the Group's
suppliers, 560 are manufacturers and 720 are distributors. For
the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, 30.9% and 26.7%
products were purchased directly from the manufacturers
respectively.

Product Quality and Safety

For the responsibility in product sales, the Group pays
attention to the quality management, complaint handling
and customer privacy protection.

At present, the Group engages several manufacturers
of pharmaceutical products and health care products
to manufacture our licensed products according to the
design and packing requirements specified by us. All the
manufacturers of the licensed products have obtained all
necessary licenses, permits and certification, including Good
Manufacturing Practice Certification. The Group also requires
suppliers to meet the national Good Manufacturing Practice.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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The Group strictly implemented the national GSP in the storage
and transportation of products, assigned special personnel to
supervise temperature and humidity and established effective
period warning mechanism for the purpose of strengthening
quality control. The Group strengthened the maintenance and
protection of intellectual property rights. In the procurement
procedures, we strictly follow the requirements of GSP and
require suppliers to avoid infringement of intellectual property
rights of third parties; otherwise, the liability for tort shall be
borne by the relevant supplier. The Group also strengthened
quality controls, promptly notify the supplier of any breakage
or other fault of products found during acceptance check and
require relevant supplier or transportation operator to make
compensation after distinguishing their respective liabilities.
The Group strengthened the management of product
circulation, in case quality issues with products were found, the
Group will take down from shelves and recall those products
in time according to the notice of competent authority and
notify the supplier to make compensation as agreed. In
addition, we strictly protect the privacy of consumer, all of
the members and consumers data will be under computer
encryption process. The Group also requires allied unit of
different industry (if any) to protect consumer privacy. In case
of adverse drug reaction, the Group will report to competent
authority of the industry upon receipt of any feedback from
customers.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to promoting ethical business
practices and full compliance with the law wherever we do
business. There are strict internal guidelines within the Group
which prohibit the employees’ involvement in illegal activities,
such as bribery, extortion, money laundering and fraud. The
Group often participates in the training plans provided through
Jintian Institute, which allows our employees to possess rich
experiences in many aspects of Direct-supply Model, such
as medical product manufacturing, purchasing and quality
control, pharmacy operation and marketing.
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The Group has in place a "whistle-blowing” policy and system

/" Aor our employees to report suspected criminal acts including
corruption, money laundering and fraud. During the Year,

there is no corruption case reported, or legal case regarding
corrupt practices or money laundering brought against the
Group.

(Iv) COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION/PUBLIC WELFARE

46

In order to increase the participation in social activities, the
Group endeavors to launch more activities for community
members and promote the development of public welfare
brand “Love China”. At the same time, the Group strives to
strengthen corporate governance and integrate its corporate
development with public welfare philosophy.

The Group is committed to creating sustainable development
value in economic, social and environmental aspects to fulfil
its corporate social responsibility and achieve long-term
sustainable growth of shareholder value. The management
of the Group reviews the policy implementation, monitors
and measures the progress from time to time to ensure its
stated goals achieved in an effective manner.

In order to expand membership base, we propagandize
membership programme through a variety of marketing
campaigns and also plans to strengthen the analysis of
members’ consumption patterns and preferences so as to
optimize the retail marketing strategy. At the same time,
we continue to increase the number of online members
through smart platforms such as applets. We will continue
to provide members with diversified incremental services, for
example, free drug delivery, and free consultation provided
to community through the Business Institute, free testing
provided to community residents by medical team, etc., and
constantly improve the service level.
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Member Activities

During the Year, the branches of the Group intensified
member activities, including ongoing member discounts and
festival activities, provision of cold shelters in winter, provision
of shelter and other support for the lost child as well as
other social value-added services, which further improved the
cohesion of the members and their willingness to consume.
As of 30 June 2020, we had approximately 1.6 million offline
members, the average consumption of members reached
RMB214 and the Group held 784 sessions of membership
activities in total.

Love China Public Welfare Activities (/0 FF B A #3255 &)

Aixin Chuanbo (Beijing) Wenhua Fazhan Zhongxin* (B /7%
& (dER) SYEEEH L) was established in 2011 for welfare
activities “Love + Health”, which was the nationwide fitness
and Love program under the name of “Love” and composed
of a series of commonweal undertakings, such as “Nationwide
Fitness Programme” of body building exercise, “Support and
Assist Students and Teachers Programme” caring for the
next generation, and "Programme of Army Wife Employment
Base” aim at supporting national defense, all of which were
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designed to pass on China’s five thousand years of culture,

*carry forward the spirit of love Party and patriotism, advocate
healthy philosophy of charity and spread healthy culture of

caring others. Love China activities are committed to building
the platform for the interaction and communication among
government, media, enterprises and charities, through which
we develop public welfare undertaking, converge love,
promote physical and mental health in the society and forge
Love China and Love World. The public welfare brand “Love
China” constitutes the best platform for the Group to fulfill
its social responsibility.

During the Year, the Group made medication donations.

In conclusion, the Group has been always adhered to the
environmental protection concept of environment caring
and sustainable development; while the management
strengthening corporate governance to achieve the best
operating practices with the combination of governance and
efficiency, actively assuming community responsibilities and
building the public welfare brand “Love China” as the best

platform for fulfillment of social responsibilities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRS

The Board has pleasure in presenting the Report of the Directors
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Group is principally engaged in the distribution and retail
of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the northeastern
region of the PRC. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group
during the Year is set out in the Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 117 to 118 of this
annual report.

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The key financial performance indicators of the Group for the Year
are set out in the sections of “Financial Summary” and “Financial
Highlights” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

During the Year, the Group has maintained a good relationship
with its stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers,
banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship
with each of its key stakeholders.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES THE GROUP FACING

The principal risk and uncertainties the Group facing are set out in
the sections of “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2020 (2019: Nil).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend
payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant laws,
rules and regulations and subject to the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”). Provided there are
distributable profits and without affecting the operations of the
Group, the Company may consider declaring and paying dividends
to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account, included but not limited to: (i) the general financial
condition of the Group; (i) working capital and debt level of the
Group; (iii) future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development needs; (iv)
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders; (v) the general market conditions; and (vi) any
other factors that the Board deems appropriate. The payment of
the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The business review and outlook of the Group for the Year is set
out in the sections of “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

One of the fundamental tasks of the senior management of the
Group is leading the Group to protect the environment. The Group,
as a corporate citizen, fulfills social responsibility, strengthens
corporate governance, promotes healthy and orderly development
of the Group, and further creates economic value and social
benefits for clients, upstream suppliers, downstream distributors,
Shareholders, potential investors, management, employees,
communities and even the environment and other stakeholders.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 7 December 2020 to Thursday, 10 December 2020,
both days inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the
Shareholders who are entitled to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 10
December 2020 (the “2020 AGM"). All transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 December 2020.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages 263 to
264 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the purchase from the Group's five largest
suppliers contributed 12.1% of the total cost of sales and the
sale to the Group's five largest customers contributed 2.0% of
the total revenue.

Save as disclosed hereinafter, none of the Directors or any of
their respective close associates or, so far as the Directors were
aware, any Shareholder who owned 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2020, had any interest in
any of our five largest suppliers or customers for the years ended
30 June 2020 and 2019.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out on page 120 and in Note
37(a) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Law of the Cayman Island, amounted to approximately
RMB972.0 million (2019: RMB964.1 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jin Dongkun (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Zhao Zehua

Mr. Sun Libo

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
Mr. Zou Haiyan
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In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, at
every annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM"), one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not
less than, one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Accordingly, Mr. Jin Dongkun, Mr. Zhao Zehua and Mr. Zou
Haiyan shall retire by rotation and being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 91 to 100 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the Company considers
such Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT
Executive Directors

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Jin Dongtao, Mr. Jin
Dongkun, Mr. Zhao Zehua and Mr. Sun Libo, has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for an initial term of three
years from 18 November 2013, 18 November 2013, 16 June 2015
and 23 March 2017 respectively. The appointment letters continue
after the initial terms until termination by either party giving notice
in writing to the other party.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Cheng Sheung Hing, Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie and Mr. Zou Haiyan,
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an
initial term of three years from 18 November 2013, 18 November
2013 and 20 July 2017 respectively, which continues thereafter
until termination by either party giving notice in writing to the
other party.
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Each of the Directors is subject to the provisions for retirement by
rotation and re-election at AGM in accordance with the Articles of
Association. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has
service contract or letter of appointment which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance between the Company or its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries for the Year.

During the Year, none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
has entered into any contract of significance for the provision of
services by any controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was
a party or were parties and in which a Director or any entities
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was
set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 36 and Note 28(a) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
during the Year.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, there was no changes to information which are
required to be disclosed and has been disclosed by the Directors
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO")) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register maintained
by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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Name of Director

Nature of interest

Number and
class of Shares/

underlying Shares

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

13 1EEA R 45
EEHE ERME HAERER BAERKRES L
Jin Dongtao Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 562,014,953 14.55%
(Long Position)
SHRE BIBEERIIA (H15E2) (#12)
Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 3) 71,668,000 1.86%
(Long Position)
EmEa A (MaF1k3) (5F2)
Interest of spouse (Notes 1 & 4) 7,234,000 0.19%
(Long Position)
BofdREm (Mfat1kk4) (&)
Zhao Zehua Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 5) 7,234,000 0.19%
(Long Position)
HHEE Exn#EAN (KF1K5) (7 E)
Jin Dongkun Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 6) 5,800,000 0.15%
(Long Position)
SRE EmEB A (Ma1X6) (212)
Sun Libo Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 6) 5,800,000 0.15%
(Long Position)
B BEmEa A (MaF1k6) (5F8)
Cheng Sheung Hing Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 7) 500,000 0.01%
(Long Position)
B EE S BExnBEAEAN (KE1k7) (&)
Chiang Su Hui Susie Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 7) 500,000 0.01%
(Long Position)
TIER Exn#EEAN (KF1Kk7) (7 E)
Zou Haiyan Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 8) 500,000 0.01%
(Long Position)
E7 7 ExEB A (M1a1X8) (47 E)
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Notes:

In September 2017, the Company granted a total of 200,000,000 share options (the “Share
Options 2017") to 20 eligible participants which include 4 executive Directors and an
associate (as defined under Rule 17.06A of the Listing Rules) of an executive Director.
All the Share Options 2017 were accepted by the grantees under the rules of the Share
Option Scheme.

In March 2019, the Company granted a total of 300,000,000 share options (the “Share
Options 2019") to 50 eligible participants which include 7 Directors and an associate (as
defined under Rule 17.06A of the Listing Rules) of an executive Director. All the Share
Options 2019 were accepted by the grantees under the rules of the Share Option Scheme.

Mr. Jin Dongtao is the settlor, protector and a beneficiary of a discretionary trust pursuant
to a trust deed dated 6 November 2013 with Credit Suisse Trust Limited acting as trustee
(the “Family Trust”), which holds the entire issued share capital of Global Health Century
International Group Limited (“Global Health”) through 1969 JT Limited. Global Health
holds the entire issued share capital of Asia Health Century International Inc. (“Asia
Health”), which held 562,014,953 Shares.

Mr. Jin Dongtao beneficially owned 68,868,000 Shares and was the grantee of 2,800,000
Share Options 2017 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, 2,800,000 Shares will be issued upon exercise of such Share Options.

Ms. Chen Xiaoyan, the spouse of Mr. Jin Dongtao, beneficially owned 4,434,000 Shares
and was the grantee of 2,800,000 Share Options 2017 under the Share Option Scheme.
Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, 2,800,000 Shares will be issued upon exercise of
such Share Options. Accordingly, Mr. Jin Dongtao was deemed to be interested in such
7,234,000 Shares.

Mr. Zhao Zehua beneficially owned 4,434,000 Shares and was the grantee of 2,800,000
Share Options 2017 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, 2,800,000 Shares will be issued upon exercise of such Share Options.

Both Mr. Jin Dongkun and Mr. Sun Libo beneficially owned 3,000,000 Shares and each of
them granted 2,800,000 Share Options 2017 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme, each of them is entitled to subscribe for 2,800,000 Shares
upon exercise of such Share Options.

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie were each granted 500,000 Share
Options 2019 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
each of them is entitled to subscribe for 500,000 Shares upon exercise of such Share
Options 2019.

Mr. Zou Haiyan beneficially owned 500,000 Shares which were exercised from the Share
Options 2019 under the Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, none of the Directors

and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to

have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares

or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept

under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s existing Share Option Scheme was approved
for adoption pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder passed on 18 November 2013 and amended on
20 December 2018 for the purpose of attracting skilled and
experienced personnel, to incentivize them to remain with
the Group and to motivate them to contribute for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them with
the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company, as well
as for such other purposes as the Board may approve from time
to time. The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years until 17 November 2023.

The maximum number of Shares that can be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of share options which may be granted by
the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme under the
scheme mandate limit refreshed in the annual general meeting
held on 20 December 2018 (the “Refreshed Scheme Mandate
Limit”) is 304,053,767, being 10% of the total number of issued
Shares as at the date of passing of the resolution approving
the said refreshment. As 300,000,000 share options have already
been granted under the Refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit, the
Company may only grant share options to subscribe for up to
4,053,767 Shares. As such, the Board proposes to further refresh
the aforesaid Refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit at the 2020 AGM.
A total of 275,300,000 share options had been exercised during
the Year, representing approximately 7.13% of the total number
of issued Shares as at 30 June 2020 and no share option had been
granted under the Share Option Scheme during the Year.
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As Rule 17.03(5) of the Listing Rules requires that the exercise
period of option must not be more than 10 years from the date
of the grant instead of the commencement date of the exercise
period, the Board proposes to shorten the expiry date of exercise
period of all outstanding 2019 Options from 3 April 2029 to 3 March
2029 (the “Shortening”), such that the term of the 2019 Options
complies with the Listing Rules.

Besides, in order to encourage long-term commitment of Directors
and certain employees to the Company and to align the interests
of them with the Company’s development, the Board proposes to
extend the expiry date of exercise period of all outstanding 2017
Share Options from 11 October 2020 to 11 September 2027 (the
“Extension”) such that the term of the 2017 Share Options aligns
with that of the 2019 Share Options.

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and Rule 17.03
of the Listing Rules, any alterations to the terms and conditions
of the Share Option Scheme which are of a material nature or
any change to the terms of the share options granted must
be approved by the Shareholders and as such, the resolution
approving the Shortening and the Extension will be proposed in
the 2020 AGM and details of the Shortening and the Extension
will be contained in the circular for the 2020 AGM.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, all principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme remain unchanged and are set out in
Appendix V to the prospectus of the Company dated 2 December
2013.
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RERE B AR AR IR BB A = 8 1 R T e RO P
RN AFEREBRESSIRE - 17

Particulars of Share Options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the Period and Share

Options granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Share

Option Scheme during the Year are as follows:

& - RGN BREFFITNOT -

Number of Share Options
BRESA
Closing Exercised Lapsed/
price Exercise Granted  duringthe  cancelled Outstanding
Date of per share price per  Exercise Outstanding ~ during the Year  during the as at
Grantees grant (Note 1) option  period as at 1/7/2019 Year (Note 2) Year 30/6/2020
SBBRH MEEE  RAEE  ROBCEE
bnR  SHBREZ RZ2-0F  RAER Bk B&W/ ~AZ1A
ARA ReiRH (Hit1) el fRom tR-RHRTE S (7 i HATTE
HKD HKD
BT AT
Director & substantial shareholder
ESRIERR
Jin Dongtao 12/9/2017 0.157 0.1648 12/10/2017 - 11/10/2020 2,800,000 - 2,800,000
R “E-tFAATCR “ELETATCRE
= =
4132019 0.083 0074 41412019 - 3/4/2029 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
“2-NE=ARA “Z2-)FMAREE
ZE-NFRAZH
Directors
g%
Jin Dongkun 12912017 0.157 0.1648 12/10/2017 - 11/10/2020 2,800,000 - 2,800,000
ERE “E-tEAATCR “RtETATCRE
“E-REtAT-R
41372019 0.083 0074 41412019 - 3/4/2029 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
“2-E=ARA “Z-)FMARAE
“E-WERAZR
Zhao Zehua 12/9/2017 0.157 (.1648 12/10/2017 - 11/10/2020 2,800,000 - 2,800,000
BEE “E-tFAATCR “ELETATCRE
Z2-2¢ AT
4132019 0.083 0074 41412019 - 3/4/2029 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
“2-E=ARA “E2-)FMARAE
ZE-NFRAZH
Sun Libo 12/9/2017 0.157 0.1648 12/10/2017 - 11/10/2020 2,800,000 - 2,800,000
R “E-tEAATCR “EHETATCRE
“3-3EEALA
4/3/2019 0083 0074 4/4/2019 - 3/4/2029 3,000,000 3,000,000 -
"2 NE=ARA 2 NERAMAZE
ZE-NFRAZH
Cheng Sheung Hing ~~ 4/3/2019 0083 0074 4/4/2019 - 3/4/2029 500,000 - 500,000
geE “E-NF=ARA “E-NEDARRE
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ExaRs
Number of Share Options
EREEA
Closing Exercised Lapsed/
price Exercise Granted  duringthe  cancelled QOutstanding
Date of per share price per  Exercise Outstanding  during the Year  during the as at
Grantees grant (Note 1) option period as at 1/7/2019 Year (Note 2) Year 30/6/2020
SREfR MAEE  REFE  ROBCEE
bwE  SHEREZ R=2-hE  REEE B BAW/ ~A=1H
ARA RHAS (Hit1) fiRE k88 tA-REAfTE S () il WA
HKD HKD
BT AT
Chiang Su Hui Susie ~ 4/3/2019 0.083 0074 41412019 - 3/4/2029 500,000 - - 500,000
2% “2-hE=ANA “E-NEMANAE
“2NEMA=A
Zou Haiyan 4132019 0.083 0074 41412019 - 3/4/2029 500,000 - 500,000 -
Fisk “2-hE=ANA “E-NEMANAE
“2NEMA=A
Associate of Director
EZZBBA
Chen Xiaoyan 12/9/2017 0.157 0.1648 12/10/2017 - 11/10/2020 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000
hespouecl -z rpptog A eE:
Jin Dongtao) o - e
@Tgigzggﬁg) 4132019 0.083 0074 41412019 - 3/4/2029 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 -
“2-hE=ANA “E-NEMANAZ
ZE-NFRAZRA
Continuous contract ~ 12/9/2017 0.157 01648 12/10/2017 - 11/10/2020 186,000,000 - - 186,000,000
employees
RERNES “2-tFAATCR “E-tFHATCRE
“E-ZE+A+-H
4132019 0.083 0.074  4/4/2019 - 3/4/2029 277,500,000 - 254,000,000 23,500,000
“Z-NE=A0H “T-NFHABAR
“E-NERAZR
Others 413/2019 0.083 0.074  4/4/2019 - 3/4/2029 6,000,000 - 5,800,000 200,000
it “Z-NE=HEA “T-N\FMABAR
“E-NERAZRA
Total 500,000,000 - 275,300,000 224,700,000
a3
Note: Bzt -
(1) The closing price per share refers to the closing price of the Share as stated in the daily (1) ~ SRARG KT ERER BER H B R B E BEBR

quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date immediately before the date
on which the Share Options were granted.

(2) The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options exercised 2
during the Year was HK$0.15.
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PR B R F# 2 Bt e (E

RAFRE - RITEBIRE B Br i ¥ 9 E 50.158
To

61



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company adopted the share award plan (the “Share Award
Plan”) on 23 April 2014. The purposes of the Share Award Plan
are to recognize the contributions by eligible persons to the
Group and provide them with incentives in order to retain them
for continual operation and development of the Group and to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Share Award Plan shall be valid and effective for a
term of 10 years commencing from 23 April 2014. As at 30 June
2020, the remaining life of the Share Award Plan is approximately
3 years and 10 months.

The Share Award Plan shall be subject to the administration of
the Board or the administration committee or the trustee of the
Share Award Plan in accordance with its terms. The Board or
the Remuneration Committee may select any eligible person for
participation in the Share Award Plan and determine the number
of awarded shares to be awarded to the selected person(s), subject
to any condition(s).

The Company has initially paid the trustee up to HKD50 million
to enable the Share Award Plan to operate. The Company may
at its discretion make further arrangements to fund the trustee
for acquisition of further shares. Subject to the instruction of the
Company, the trustee can use the money paid to it to buy shares
in advance in respect of which the Company can make awards
under the Share Award Plan.
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The Board shall not make any further award of shares under the
Share Award Plan which will result in the nominal value of the
shares awarded exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 23 April 2014. The maximum number of shares
which may be awarded to a selected person under the Share
Award Plan in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. Based on
the 2,000,000,000 shares in issue as at 23 April 2014, the maximum
number of awarded shares under the Share Award Plan would be
200,000,000 shares.

An aggregate of 16,993,000 shares has been granted without
consideration to an aggregate of 13 grantees under the Share
Award Plan since its inception. As at 30 June 2020, the trustee of
the Share Award Plan did not hold any shares under the Share
Award Plan, and no share has been granted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity linked agreements were entered by the Company or
existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2020, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

FERRAROREBRONVERR

N %4

RE

MEBEFEM RZZE_FFA=+AH"
IATAT(WIEFHIARRHZRITERAER)
A& AR AR 10 P B IR IR B S B HAE R
Bl EEXVER 82 %35 BB AR SC /A A1 AN 1 &) Je B
T E B BN AR TR B A S 5
FEIVFFEMNELMELERTAR ¢

Number and Approximate

class of Shares/ percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest underlying Shares shareholding

13 1EEA R 7 B

HE LB B1in, REmtE YA RER Bo

Chen Xiaoyan Interest of spouse (Note 1) 633,682,953 16.40%
(Long Position)
FRE BefBiEw (MaET1) (&)

Beneficial owner 7,234,000 0.19%
(Long Position)
EmEAA (4FB)

Asia Health Century Beneficial owner (Note 1) 562,014,953 14.55%
International Inc. (Long Position)
BEmiEa AT (F2)

Global Health Century Interest of corporation controlled by 562,014,953 14.55%
International Group Limited the substantial shareholder (Note 1) (Long Position)
ZF ERRERIEEE R (M) (7 E)

1969 JT Limited Interest of corporation controlled by 562,014,953 14.55%
the substantial shareholder (Note 1) (Long Position)
ZEZRFIEREB RS (M) (4F&)

Tenby Nominees Limited Nominee (Note 1) 562,014,953 14.55%
(Long Position)
KRB ANHEET) (IFE)

Brock Nominees Limited Nominee (Note 1) 562,014,953 14.55%
(Long Position)
=INC (FE)
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Number and
class of Shares/

ExaRs

Approximate
percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest underlying Shares shareholding
815 AEEA R BRI
"L BB Bin REEHE HERER Rl
Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee (Note 1) 562,014,953 14.55%
(Long Position)
RFEAHET) (#FE)
Huang Yanling Interest of corporation controlled by 547,296,781 14.17%
the substantial shareholder (Note 2) (Long Position)
=R ZEEZRFIEREBE RS (M 22) (5F8)
Harbin Tada Investment Beneficial owner (Note 2) 547,296,781 14.17%
Management Limited* (Long Position)
BREREREAEEARAR En#EsAMZ2) (#F%E)
Integrity Stars Limited Trustee (Note 2) 547,296,781 14.17%
(Long Position)
FEERAT ZEEA(HtEE2) (4FE)
Lee Funglun Beneficial owner (Note 3) 242,405,182 6.27%
(Long Position)
= Em=EAAH7F3) (5FE)
Notes: Bt -

PRBLEERRIGETENEIIA REARZHA © Z
{57EiiB1969 JT Limited#HGlobal Health®#BE 217
IR - @RBEENRBREFA LT TAREETNT
#5 A ° Global Health#HAsia Health®ZPE B1THRAS -
fAsia HealthRI#% 5 A 2 7)562,014,953 A% (7

2) FEARARARKREREREREETEAR QRIS
R IFH A A A547,296,7818 i 15 - HER Z-HFHM
BAREREETEERATT.7%6AE -

1) Mr. Jin Dongtao is the settlor, protector and a beneficiary of the Family Trust, which holds 1)
the entire issued share capital of Global Health through 1969 JT Limited. Ms. Chen Xiaoyan,
who is Mr. Jin Dongtao’s spouse, is also a beneficiary of the Family Trust. Global Health
holds the entire issued share capital of Asia Health, which holds 562,014,953 Shares in
the Company.

2) Integrity Stars Limited holds 547,296,781 Shares in the Company on trust for and on behalf
of Harbin Tada Investment Management Limited* (|8 E/EHRERE BIEHR A F]), which
is owned as to 71.7% by Ms. Huang Yanling.

3) As confirmed by Mr. Lee Funglun, the 242,405,182 Shares in the Company held by him 3)
was bought from Zhongrong International Alternative Asset Management Limited on 26
February 2019.

AN QBT A TR - ELPAHS A AN A §]242,405, 1828 i
7 DR-E—AF-A-+ A ABETRERSEE
EEEARAF -

*  For identification purpose only
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2020, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed

securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/her/its compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition (the
“Deed of Non-Competition”).

Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition, the independent non-
executive Directors are responsible for reviewing and considering
whether exercising any option and/or pre-emptive right (where
applicable), as well as entitled to conduct annual review of
implementation of the Deed of Non-Competition on behalf of
the Company. The controlling Shareholders have confirmed in
writing to the Company of their compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition for disclosure in this annual report for the Year. During
the Year, the independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed the implementation of the Deed of Non-Competition,
and confirmed that the controlling Shareholders have fully abided
by the Deed of Non- Competition without any breach of the Deed
of Non-Competition.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or their
respective associates has engaged in or has any interest in any
business which competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related parties transactions disclosed in Note 35 to
the consolidated financial statements, there were no contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding companies and
any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Directors confirm that the Group had not entered into any
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions for
the Year which are required to be disclosed in this annual report
pursuant to the Listing Rules. A summary of significant related
party transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the Year is disclosed in Note 35 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made medication donations.

During the Year, the Group continued to perform its social
responsibility by constantly organizing innovative caring projects,
such as Love China Charity Award Ceremony, Charity In Action,
Love China Medical Support, Love China Education Aid Program
and Love China Square Dance, so as to enhance its recognition
and reputation through charity activities.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, each Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zou Haiyan
(chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie. The main duties of the Audit Committee
are to examine, review and monitor the financial data and financial
reporting procedure of the Group, and overseeing the Group's
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems. The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited annual
results of the Group for the Year.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors'
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with such
code of conduct throughout the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of Shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company
has complied with all applicable code provisions under the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the "CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
throughout the Year, except for deviation from code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 70 to 90 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's
total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage
of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted
under the Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times as of
the date of this report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2020 AGM to re-appoint
Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”), Certified Public Accountants, as
the auditor of the Company.

SHARE ISSUED

During the year, 275,300,000 options had been exercised to
subscribe for 275,300,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a
total consideration of RMB18,323,000.

Details of the Company’s shares issued during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and Note
22 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had issued any of the Company's listed securities.

On behalf of the Board

Jin Dongtao
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 September 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
in the annual report of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code and
complied with all applicable code provisions under the CG Code
throughout the Year, except for deviation from code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee particular
aspects of the Company’'s affairs, the Board has established
three Board committees including the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”).
The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities
as set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual
basis.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely
Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman), Mr. Jin Dongkun (Vice Chairman),
Mr. Zhao Zehua and Mr. Sun Libo, and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing, Ms. Chiang
Su Hui Susie and Mr. Zou Haiyan. The biographies of the Directors
are set out under the section headed "Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

For the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Rules 3.10(1), 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise and the number of
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as
set out in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report, none of the Directors has
any personal relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship), with any other Director and
the chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as the
identities of the public companies or organisations and the time
involved, Directors have agreed to disclose such commitments (if
any) to the Company in a timely manner.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
training and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company’s performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
During the Year, all Directors participated in various continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company’s external lawyers had facilitated directors’
training by the provision of presentations, briefings and materials
for the Directors primarily relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company. All the Directors have
received such training.

The Company maintains records of training attended by the
Directors. The training attended by the Directors during the Year
is as follows:
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Internal training

AR H
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Jin Dongtao SRELE v
Mr. Jin Dongkun SRERE v
Mr. Zhao Zehua RIS A v
Mr. Sun Libo RIORSEHE v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EREERE S A 4
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRBR T v
Mr. Zou Haiyan FEHEE v
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code throughout the Year except for a deviation from
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. For the period from 23 March
2017 to the date of this report, despite the responsibilities of the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company vested
in Mr. Jin Dongtao, all major decisions were made in consultation
with the Board. The Board considers that there is sufficient balance
of power and the current corporate arrangement maintains a
strong management position of the Company.

Save as the deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG
Code, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the
Year and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best
practices of the CG Code.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Save for Mr. Zhao Zehua, Mr. Sun Libo and Mr. Zou Haiyan, each of
the Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company
for a term of three years commencing on 28 November 2019.

Mr. Zhao Zehua has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 16 June
2018, and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
appointment letter.

Mr. Sun Libo has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from 23 March
2020, and may be terminated in accordance with the terms of the
appointment letter.

Mr. Zou Haiyan has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company as an independent non-executive Director for a term of
three years commencing from 20 July 2020, and may be terminated
in accordance with the terms of the appointment letter.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall
submit himself/herself for election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and
new Director appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the next general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying Board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members
at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared
for the meetings. When Directors or Board committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters
to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings
are kept by the company secretary with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the Board committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which
the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open
for inspection by Directors.
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For the Year, 3 Board meetings and 1 general meeting were held
and the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings
is set out in the table below:
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BRAS - SEFHEZSGHOBELRR
T

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors BE= EHERE A ERE

Board Meetings General Meeting

EXEER BREAE

Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Jin Dongtao (Chairman) SHRBLE (FF) 3/3 1/1
Mr. Jin Dongkun eRELE 3/3 1/1
Mr. Zhao Zehua HEEE S 3/3 11
Mr. Sun Libo BRI E 3/3 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing B S A 3/3 11
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie LIRFZ+ 3/3 1/1
Mr. Zou Haiyan 2R EE 3/3 1/1

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiries have been made with all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model
Code throughout the Year.

During the Year, the Company has also adopted its own code of
conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model Code for
the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company in
respect of their dealings in the Company's securities.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, risk management and internal
control systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and
are encouraged to access and to consult with the Company'’s
senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and they are responsible
for the corporate governance duties. The Audit Committee will
develop and review the policies and procedures on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board. The
aforesaid duties include:

(@) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b) toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;
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(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board and report to the Board on matters;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

(f)  to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company's whistleblowing policy.

During the Year, the Company has updated the compliance
manuals on notifiable transactions and inside information in
accordance with the Listing Rules as guideline for its employees
to report unpublished inside information to the Company to ensure
consistent and timely disclosure and fulfillment of the Company’s
continuous disclosure obligations.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Jin Dongtao (executive Director), Mr. Cheng Sheung
Hing (independent non-executive Director) and Ms. Chiang Su
Hui Susie (independent non-executive Director), the majority of
them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Jin Dongtao
serves as the chairman.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:
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e To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) required of the Board and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes

e To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors

e To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of and succession planning for Directors

e To assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. Their written terms of reference are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Year, 1 meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held and the attendance record of the Nomination Committee
members is set out in the table below:

s EREZEMRE  ABKAK(BR
e - MR K& R) KBRS
REERE

s YEEABERESHHEEA

s HMEFEIIEENUETFINESES
REEBER
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REZEEHRHAE &R REMETE
B REERATREIR AR R R A4S H SR ERT
BIREASERE - ERIEZRZBESHAR
HERRERESEIMERE - AHZHR

TR B OB X P S AR A R AR UE T B
AEE RBZEECEHTIREHE  BSA
RESEREMNBFLHEHNTX

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors = EHERE T ERE
Mr. Jin Dongtao SRBLE 1/1
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EIEEE LA 1/1
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRBLZ+ 1/1

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee assessed the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, considered
the re-election of the retiring Directors and reviewed the time
commitment required from the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the board
diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and is of the view that
the board diversity policy is appropriate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code, listed
issuers are required to adopt a board diversity policy. The Board
has adopted the board diversity policy and summary of the board
diversity policy is set out below:
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The Nomination Committee is authorised to formulate nomination
policy for the Board's consideration and implement the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted to select and
recommend candidates for directorship. The objectives of the
Board diversity policy are to ensure the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives which are
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. It
also sets out that all Board members will be appointed based on
merit basis with due consideration to the Board diversity. While
selecting candidates for directorship, the committee has taken
into account of a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience and qualification, skills and knowledge. Currently,
the Board consists of 7 members having expertise in various
aspects of professional knowledge and experience which include
the familiarity with its business model, finance, accounting, taxation
management and compliance, etc. For details, please refer to the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this report
for brief biographies of the Directors.

In reviewing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
shall give adequate consideration to the Board diversity policy.
The committee believes that the current composition of the
Board is balanced and diversified with the high-calibre members
from different cultural backgrounds and possessing professional
expertise of various industries, which indicates that the diversity
policy has been well implemented. The main responsibilities of
the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least once a year and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to implement the Company’s
corporate strategy, and identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Directors and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
the appointment or re-appointment and succession planning for
the Directors. The committee is also responsible for assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing (independent non-executive
Director), Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie (independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. Jin Dongkun (executive Director), the majority
of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Cheng
Sheung Hing serves as the chairman.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for formulating such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her close associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions. It also makes recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. Their written terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

During the Year, 1 meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held and the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee
members is set out in the table below:
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Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors s B HERE A HERE
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BREERR S A 1/1
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRBLZ L 1/1
Mr. Jin Dongkun SRELE 1/1
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During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed
and reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, and made recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including adjustment on the
remuneration of some senior management for the Year. The
Board has adopted the recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee and resolved to approve the aforesaid adjustment.

The remuneration of one senior management of the Company,
whose biography is set out on pages 99 to 100 of this annual
report, falls within the band from RMBO million to RMB1.0 million
for the Year.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Zou Haiyan, Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and Ms. Chiang Su Hui
Susie, all of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Zou Haiyan serves as the chairman.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

e To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company's
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors before submission to
the Board

e To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor

e To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group's accounting
and financial reporting function
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e To review the Group's financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems

During the Year, 4 meetings of the Audit Committee were held
and the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is
set out in the table below:

o REUAKENMBIES - BREERA

FRES TR R4

REE  BERZEQCBT4REH B
ZESERENBRELHEHENTX

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors B EHERE T HERE
Mr. Zou Haiyan 2L A 4/4
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EREEE A 4/4
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IERBR L 4/4

During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial
reporting system, compliance procedures, risk management and
internal control systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group's accounting and financial reporting function) and
processes and the re-appointment of the external auditor. The
Board had accepted the recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection and re-appointment of external
auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year as well as
the audit report prepared by the Auditors relating to accounting
issues and major findings in course of audit. There are proper
arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
and risk management and other matters. Their written terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the Year which give a true and fair view
of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group's
results and cash flows.

The senior management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor of the Company
regarding its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 101 to 114 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
to maintain an adequate risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and the
Company's assets, and review the effectiveness of such systems
on an ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control
systems are designed for managing risks rather than eliminating
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board has delegated its responsibilities
(with relevant authorities) of risk management and internal controls
to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, oversees management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems, and management has provided a confirmation to the
Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of these
systems for the Year.
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Main features of the risk management and internal control systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main responsibilities
of each level of the structure are summarised below:

Board

e Determine the business strategies and objectives of the
Group, and evaluate and determine the nature and extent
of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives;

e  Ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems;
and

e Oversee management in design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Audit Committee
® Assist the Board to perform its responsibilities of risk

management and internal control systems;

e  Oversee the Group's risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis;

e Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems at least annually, and such
review should cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance control;

e Ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions;
and

e  Consider major findings on risk management and internal

control matters, and report and make recommendations to
the Board.
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Management

Review the risk management and internal control policy and
measures and submit them for Audit Committee’s approval;

Design, implement and maintain appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems;

Identify, evaluate and manage the risk that may potentially
impact the major processes of the operations;

Monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-
day operations;

Give prompt responses to and follow up the findings on
risk management and internal control matters raised by the
internal audit department; and

Provide confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Internal Audit Department

Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems; and

Report to the Audit Committee the findings of the review
and make recommendations to the Board and management
to improve the material systems deficiencies or control
weaknesses identified.

Supervisor and Staff

Consider how to conduct their responsibilities in light of
effectiveness of internal control; and

Discuss with management for strengthening internal control.
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Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
e Develop risk management plan; and

e |dentify risks that may potentially affect the Group's business
and operations.

Risk Assessment
e  Assess the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

e Consider the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response
e  Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

e Determine the risk management strategies, contingency plans
and internal control processes to prevent, avoid and mitigate
the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e  Perform ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensure that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

e Revise the risk management strategies, contingency plans and
internal control processes in case of any significant change

of environment; and

e Report the results of risk monitoring to the management and
the Board regularly.
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During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
all risk management functions and material internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance control. Based on
its management experience, the Group further strengthened the
establishment of internal audit system, outlined the internal control
functionsandenhancedriskmanagement. The Group alsoformulated
the “Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management — Hong

((RFAEERRBREEREFR (FEH20) ) ) to

continuously enhance the level of risk management and internal

Kong Branch”

controls. The Board therefore considered that the risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate during the
Year. In addition, it has also reviewed and has satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.

Internal Audit Function

The Group's internal audit function is performed by the Group's
internal audit department, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee. The Group's internal audit department plays a major
role in the assessment of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and reports directly to
the Audit Committee on a regular basis.

The internal audit department conducts internal audit reviews on
material controls and compliance with policies and procedures
of the Group at both operational and corporate level. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are identified
and communicated with operations management to address any
issues, non-compliance or deficiencies identified. The internal audit
department monitors the implementation of its recommendations
by the operations management and reports the outcome to the
Audit Committee.
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Handling and dissemination of inside information

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the SFO, the Group
has taken various procedures and measures, including arousing
the awareness to preserve confidentiality of inside information
with the Group, sending blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions notification to the relevant directors and employees
regularly, disseminating information to specified persons on a
need-to-know basis and regarding closely to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission in June 2012.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Mazars is the independent auditor of the Company. During the
Year, the professional fees paid or payable to Mazars for services
rendered are set out below:

BEREHEARHEE

SAARYR T AR B K 8 7 S {5 3 e B
fRRBEEME @ AREERRTRIERF &
i ERRESASEABEENREER
B EMRAREEMNES AL ERME
FRHRH BN EFEMBOER L
A E A B ER1E BIA MBS B <7 E 5
EERERZEEN T —_FAEMY
[AFRBEMERES] -

B B 35 B

PERREANR BB ILIZEED o KNEEF -
SATRERE DN HENTETIRNEXE
RBFIaR

Fee paid/payable

e ENER

RMB’000

ARETFT

Audit services ELTIRTS 2,010
Non-audit services for interim report FEEET RIS — R EIR S 537
Total CEl 2,547

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ge Junming, the sole company secretary of the Company,
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

During the Year, Mr. Ge Junming has undertaken not less than

15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

AGM(s) provide opportunity for Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman of the Company, the
chairmen of the Board Committees will attend AGM to answer
Shareholders’ questions. The external auditor will also attend
AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company
and Shareholders and maintains a website at www.uhighl.com,
where up-to-date information on the Company’'s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at Shareholders’

meetings, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted
on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in a timely manner after each Shareholders’ meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting forward proposals

Under the Articles of Association, any two or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth (1/10) of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meeting, and any one Shareholder
which is a recognized clearing house (or its nominee(s)) holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
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(1/10) of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meeting, can require an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM") to be called and put forward proposals
at the meeting. The procedures for Shareholders to convene and
put forward proposals at an EGM are stated as follows:

(1) The requisitionist(s) should sign a written request stating the
objects of the meeting to be convened, and deposit the same
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong situated at 2404, 24th Floor, World-Wide House, 19 Des
Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong for the attention of
the company secretary.

(2) Where, within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the Directors do not proceed to convene an EGM,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board, provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 2404, 24th
Floor, World- Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong or to email address: ir@uhi-group.com.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there is no significant change in constitutional
documents of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENEEE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. JIN Dongtao (£ %), aged 51, was appointed as the Chairman
of the Board and an executive Director on 12 March 2012 and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 23 March 2017. Mr. Jin
is one of the co-founders of the Group and has been Chairman
of the Group since its inception in June 1998. He has substantial
experience in the pharmaceutical retail and distribution sector
and is responsible for setting the strategic vision, direction and
goals of the Group.

Mr. Jin has over 26 years of experience in the pharmaceutical
distribution industry and marketing.

Other experience:

e 2010-September 2014: chairman of the Heilongjiang Alliance
of Pharmaceutical Retailers (88T /58 B8)

e 2012 - present: vice chairman of the China Medical
Pharmaceutical Material Association (9 B 228 Z2 %) & =)

Education:

e July 1991: graduated from Jiamusi United Workers University
(EARHTBMAERTIAR)

e December 2010: obtained a Master's degree in Business
Administration in a programme run by United Business
Institutes

Mr. Jin received the National Enterprise Management Specialist
Award by the China National Management Specialist Centre (F
EARZEMBEAZEILZBEAS REIF L) in 2006. He is qualified as a
practising pharmacist in China. He has not held any directorships
in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years.

Mr. Jin Dongtao is the elder brother of Mr. Jin Dongkun, an
executive Director and Vice Chairman of the Company.
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Mr. JIN Dongkun (2R E), aged 47, was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of the Board and an executive Director on 12 March
2012. He is one of the co-founders of the Group and has served
as business manager, general manager and vice president of
the Group since June 1998. He is responsible for overseeing the
Group's external affairs and relationships.

Mr. Jin Dongkun has over 21 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical distribution industry and in marketing.

Other experience:

e 2010 - September 2014: vice chairman of the Heilongjiang
Alliance of Pharmaceutical Retailers (2 8T %45 B B3)

e November 2014 - present: vice chairman of the China Medical
Pharmaceutical Material Association (F B %8 2% & 175 =)

Education:

e  December 1994: graduated from Harbin Engineering University
(B ERE T2 K2 with a major in Electric Technology

e July2013: obtained a Master's degree in Business Management
in a programme run by the Scandinavian Art and Business
Institute

Mr. Jin Dongkun is qualified as a practising pharmacist and a senior
economist in China. He has not held any directorships in any other
publicly listed companies over the past three years.

Mr. Jin Dongkun is Mr. Jin Dongtao’s brother. Mr. Jin Dongtao is

the executive Director, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.
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Mr. ZHAO Zehua (i### %), aged 52, was appointed as the general
manager of finance of the Group in October 2011 and was
appointed as an executive Director on 16 June 2015. He joined the
Group in January 2005 as financial controller and was promoted to
his current position in October 2011. He is responsible for financial
control and management. He has over 31 years of experience
in financial management, with particular expertise in financial
accounting, treasury and internal control.

Other experience:

e August 1989 — May 2001: head of finance at Hebei Chengde
Tianyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (At EAERREEEFR
yNG))

e June 2001 — December 2004: manager of finance and deputy
general manager of Hebei Chengde Tianyuan Pharmaceutical

Co., Ltd. (b EABRREZ AR A A)

e January 2003 - December 2004: manager of finance and
deputy general manager of Chengde Pharmaceutical Group
Liuhe Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (R{EZEHEEE NS REFR T
E/NG)!

Education:

e July 1992: graduated from Hebei Radio and Television
University (A 1E/EEE R AE) with a major in Finance and
Accounting

Mr. Zhao is a qualified accountant in China. He has not held any
directorships in any other publicly listed companies over the past
three years.
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Mr. SUN Libo (23 }¥), aged 47, has been the Deputy General
Manager of the Group since 2011 and was appointed as an
executive Director on 23 March 2017. He has extensive experience
and qualifications in pharmacy.

Other experience:

e 1993 -2005: Qigihar Second Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (B &4
58 — &5 R 2 7)) with the last position held as Department
Head of Administration

e 2006 - 2010: Heilongjiang Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical
Distribution Co., Ltd. (B IE & REDEZELEHAR A A
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with the last
position held as Deputy General Manager of the Administration
Department

Education:

e 1992 — 1995: graduated from Qigihar Medical University in
Pharmacy

e 2005: Qualified Medical Engineer issued by the then
Heilongjiang Human Resources Bureau, the PRC Mr. Sun
has not held any directorships in any other publicly listed
companies over the past three years.

Mr. Sun has not held any directorships in any other publicly listed
companies over the past three years.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Sheung Hing (8% ), aged 72, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2013.
Mr. Cheng is a senior economist of People’s Bank of China with
many years of experience in foreign exchange management and
management of pharmaceutical companies and listed companies.

Other experience:

e 1982 — 1985: in charge of the foreign affairs of Beijing
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Jt R E %42 /N 7)) and stores for
new drugs and specific drugs

e 1986 - 1995: deputy administrative officer of Non-trade
Department and Inspection Department of the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange (IR IMEE 1)

Directorships:

e 1995 - 2002: assistant to the general manager and assistant
to board chairman of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (3K
ZHRPEGERR)BR A F]), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01189)

e 2003 -2005: assistant to board chairman of Heng Fai Enterprises
Limited (1BEDZ LA BR A 7)) (now known as ZH International
Holdings Ltd. IE1EEIRR1ZAR B R 2 Bl), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00185)

e 2005 -2013: independent non-executive director of National
United Resources Holdings Limited (Bl Eft & BIRIZRBR A
A]) (formerly known as China Outdoor Media Group Limited
FRIFIMNEEE S B BRAR]), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00254)

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has not held any directorships
in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years.

Education:

e 1982: graduated from the formerly known as School of
Economics of Peking University (At R&EEEFT) (now known
as Capital University of Economics and Business & #PAL % &
5 RE) with a major in Trading Economics
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Ms. CHIANG Su Hui Susie (TE¥), aged 73, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2013. Ms.
Chiang has over 28 years of experience in governmental affairs,
treasury and cross-straits relations.

Other experience:

e December 1991 — March 1994: the representative of
Government Information Office of the Executive Yuan of
Taiwan (& /E1THHEB)

e March 1994 — December 2004: in charge of the Taiwanese
Kwang-hwa Information and Culture Centre (8 /& ZEHEX
EAL)

e April 2002: established the C S Forum (&F)L#%18) and the C S
Corp. Consultancy Limited (B/LEEM AR A 7l) in Hong Kong
with a goal of promoting cross-straits economic and trade
communications

Current positions:
e member of the Hong Kong-Taiwan Cultural Co-operation
Committee of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

(EEFRBAEEXILAERES)

e chairwoman of the C S Culture Foundation (/I X/t /RmE
&)

e chairwoman of the C S Corp. Consultancy Limited (&)LE[
BRAT)

e chairwoman of the C S Finance & Investment Company

Limited (B I &RV B EBERAT)

e honourary chairwoman of the Taiwan Business Association
(Hong Kong) Limited (BB RELEHS)

Education:

e July 1969: graduated from the Taiwan National Chung Hsing
University (8 /& Bl F #K22) with a major in laws

Ms. Chiang has not held any directorships in any other publicly
listed companies over the past three years.

96 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Annual Report 2019/20

AEBLZL: 73 R-T—=F+—A+
NEEZRERBILIFATES - THXLTHERK

FRET5 ~ B%5 M= B R 0T E R G 728 F 48

AT
« —AN—FE+-AE-AAME=A :
SBTRRHEREERE

e —NAEOF=ZRAE_TTNF+=A:
m/gtﬁ%ﬁiﬂj(ﬂﬁqub,v\}\

s —TTHFNA:REBRIEILREB
&%E@ﬁﬁ@ Al RE RREFR

B ER

s FAABREBNEGXILAIEZESEE

] BIXERRESSEE

s FHIERARABERE

s FBICEMUMBEEERABERE

s FEA/EIEBEREIRE

= — AN ELA %%5@/2
RBEBHE

7o

RBE=FA  ITXLWREEEFEME
M AR E RS



Mr. ZOU Haiyan (8i#),
independent non-executive Director on 20 July 2017. Mr. Zou has

aged 55, was appointed as an

over 33 years of experience in the financial services industry. He
has been a training instructor and guest lecturer of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong, International
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong, Hong
Kong Chinese Accountants Association, continuing education of
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics Institute, Hainan
Local Taxation Bureau, Huangshan Local Taxation Bureau, Qingdao
Provincial SAT Office and Shenzhen Municipal SAT Office; and an
associate professor of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Other experience:

e July 2001 — November 2003: certified public accountant of
Guangdong Kangyuan Certified Public Accountants (JE5 &
TR TR EIS )

e December 2003 — August 2009: chief partner of Guangdong
Gaowick Certified Public Accountants (B3 =13 & 51 A0 E 745 F)

e March 2001 — August 2018: managing director of China Tax
and Business Consultants Company Limited (B35 7575
BERAR AR

overlapping of business)

) (the company ceased business due to the
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Current positions:

* managing director of Kaowick Listing and Financial Services

Company Limited (& EM Rt ERE B R A RF)

e partner of Shenzhen Guangshen Certified Public Accountants

/7Kﬁ||r/§ﬁgu+ﬁﬂi$ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

e independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Asia
Electricity Co., Ltd., a company listed on National Equities
Exchange and Quotations in China (ZIIZEME KB ER A
al)

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zou has not held any directorships
in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years.
Education:

e July 1985: graduated from Guangdong Provincial Finance
School in Taxation (B3R & B ER)

e  January 2015: graduated from University of Electronic Science
and Technology in Human Resources Management (& FEHY

RE)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GE Junming (Bf&HH), aged 52, was appointed as a company
secretary of the Company on 18 November 2013 and is currently
the sole company secretary of the Company. He joined the Group
in 1998. Mr. Ge has worked in various other capacities in the Group,
including as an accountant, head of the planning department,
chief secretary to the Chairman, head of the legal department,
general secretary and director in various members in the Group.

Other experience:

e August 1988 — May 1994: a materials accountant, costs
accountant and head accountant of Jiamusi CNC Machine

Tools Factory (7R HTSA1ZEH# R i)

e June 1994 — August 1995: head accountant of Jiamusi Import
and Export Wood Products Company (fE/REf#E H O AREL A
al)

e  September 1995 — August 1996: chief of finance at Jiamusi
Forging Equipment Factory (FE/RHTH#R/ER 5% 15 R)

e September 1996 — April 1998: financial inspector at Jiamusi
Marketing Limited Company of the Sanzu Group (Z# 5% &
ERETEHFR AR

Education:

July 1988: obtained a Secondary Professional Degree in
Financial Accounting from Heilongjiang School of Machinery
Manufacturing (B B2/ L% RS2 K)

July 1993: graduated from the School of Economics at
Peking University (1t R R 248 £Px) with a major in Financial
Accounting, by way of distance learning

December 2016: graduated and obtained a Bachelor Degree
in Business Management (Business Administration) from
Peking University (JE R A Z) by way of self-study

December 2019: graduated from South China Agricultural
University (22 &% KX2) with Major in Regional Economic
Development and Management by way of self-study
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Mr. Ge is also a qualified senior accountant, senior planner,
pharmacist and nutritionist in China. Mr. Ge is a Certified Internal
Auditor, and has obtained qualification of practice in securities
and funds.

Mr. Ge received the National Enterprise Management Specialist
Award by the China National Management Specialist Centre
(FEARHENMBEASEHZE AL REF LY in 2005.

Mr. Ge has not held any directorships in any other publicly listed
companies over the past three years.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZEERE

MAZARS

To the members of
Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Universal
Health International Group Holding Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 115
to 262, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30
June 2020, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2020, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

ABREEBREEZERERAT FEHRE2019/20

Mazars CPA LiMITED
Vp 2 R0 B (ot ) v i A LA 7D

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
T W VA Y 1 8 R BR T 424
Tel & &f: (852) 2909 5555

Fax{#F: (852) 2810 0032

Email 7 %:info@mazars.hk
Website#H ik :www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

BEEEE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other related
non-current assets

Refer to note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Goodwill arises on the acquisitions of distribution and
retail businesses in prior years and other non-current
assets which are closely related were allocated to the
operating segments of Distributions and Retails, and were
monitored at the respective operating segment levels.

Goodwill is subject to impairment assessment at least
annually and when there is an indication of impairment.
For other non-current assets which are closely related
to Distributions and Retails, their carrying amounts are
subject to impairment assessments and when there is an
indication of impairment or an impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used
to determine their recoverable amount.

Management has performed impairment tests with
reference to a valuation performed by an independent
and qualified professional valuer and concluded that
impairment loss on goodwill of RMB8,918,000 and
impairment loss on other intangible assets (including
trademarks, licenses and brand loyalty) of RMB2,891,000
were provided in relation to Retails segment. No
impairment loss on goodwill and neither provision for
nor reversal of impairment loss on other non-current
assets in relation to Distributions segment was provided
for the year ended 30 June 2020. This conclusion was
based on the estimation of the recoverable amounts of
the cash generating units ("CGUs") using the value-in-use
calculation based on discounted cash flow model.

We identified this matter as a key audit matter because
of the significance of the amounts involved and use of
judgements and estimates in assessing the impairment
of the assets. These key estimates include forecasted
gross margins, forecasted growth rates and discount rates
adopted in the value-in-use calculations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ERNENAEERRETSE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following
key procedures:

a)

104

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer;

We performed procedures to understand the key
processes and controls relating to the assessment of the
recoverable amounts of CGUs supported by value-in-
use calculations based on discounted cash flow model;

We compared the cash flow projections used in value-
in-use calculations to the financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period;

We compared the future growth rates beyond the five-
year period used by management against the long-term
average growth rate for the businesses in which the
respective CGUs operate based on the available data
from the market;

We evaluated the achievability of budgeted gross
margins based on the Group’s past and current
performance, the management’s business strategy and
the expected market development;

We evaluated the reasonableness of key parameters
used by the management and the valuer for calculating
discount rates, including the Group's cost of equity,
gearing ratio and cost of debt. Such parameters were
benchmarked against market available data;

We tested mathematical accuracy of the value-in-use
calculations used by the management and the valuer

to determine the recoverable amounts of CGUs; and

We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure
in respect of the impairment assessment.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

BEEEE

Impairment assessment of a logistics building included in
property, plant and equipment - Distribution segment

Refer to notes 4(c) and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group had a logistics building
included in the property, plant and equipment with
carrying amount of RMB208 million located in Jiamusi, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

During the year, the Group had utilised certain areas of
the logistics building as warehouse for its distribution
business and continued to seek out its opportunities to
develop the logistics business. In view of the loss sustained
by the distribution business and the current low usage rate
as warehousing for the Distribution segment, management
considered that there were indicators of impairment of the
logistics building existed at 30 June 2020 and performed
an impairment assessment thereon.

Management performed an impairment assessment of the
logistic building with reference to a valuation performed by
an independent and qualified professional valuer by using
the fair value less cost of disposal model and compared
the carrying amount of the logistics building to determine
the amount of impairment which should be recognised
for the year. For the determination of the fair value less
costs of disposal, management used the depreciated
replacement cost method that reflects the cost to a market
participant to construct assets of comparable utility and
age, adjusted for obsolescence. Based on the results
of the impairment assessment, management concluded
that the recoverable amount of the logistics building was
higher than its carrying amount and no impairment was
required.

We identified this matter as a key audit matter because
of the significance of the use of judgements and
estimates in assessing the impairment of this significant
asset. These key estimates include the estimated useful
life and replacement costs adopted in the depreciated
replacement cost calculations.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ERNENAEERRETSE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following
key procedures:

a)

106

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer;

We evaluated the appropriateness of the
methodology used and the reasonableness of the key
assumptions applied in the depreciated replacement
cost calculations such as the estimated useful life and
replacement costs by referencing to available market
data;

We tested mathematical accuracy of the depreciated
replacement cost calculations used by the
management and the valuer to determine the
recoverable amounts of CGUs; and

We considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosure in respect of the impairment assessment.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

BEEEE

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate
Refer to note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group held 43.78% equity
interest in an associate, Jilin Jintian Universal Health
Capsule Limited (“Jilin Jintian”), with a carrying amount
of RMB318.3 million (including a goodwill with carrying
amount of RMB242.8 million).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out
reviews of the recoverable amount of the investment in an
associate. The recoverable amount, being the higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal, has been
determined by the Group’s management with reference
to a valuation report prepared by an independent and
qualified professional valuer using price-to-earnings (P/E)
multiple model.

As a result of the aforesaid impairment assessment,
management concluded that neither additional provision
for nor reversal of impairment loss was recognised for the
year ended 30 June 2020.

Impairment assessment of the significant carrying amount
of investment in an associate is highly judgmental and
involves a high degree of estimation uncertainty. We
therefore identified the impairment assessment as a key
audit matter.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ERNENAEERRETSE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following
key procedures:

a)

108

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer;

We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used by the valuer and management
to estimate the recoverable amount of the investment
in an associate;

We evaluated the reasonableness of the key inputs
adopted by the management and the valuer by
comparing to entity-specific information and market
data; and

We considered the adequacy of the Group's
disclosure in respect of the impairment assessment.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

BEEEE

Valuation of biological assets
Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group acquired a forest land use right and the wild
ginsengs planted in this forest land from an independent
third party in June 2017. Upon completion of the
acquisition, the forest land use right and wild ginsengs
are accounted for as land use right and biological assets
respectively. The wild ginsengs are measured at fair value
less costs to sell.

As at 30 June 2020, management estimated the fair value
of wild ginsengs which was revalued at RMB97.7 million
based on a valuation prepared by an independent and
qualified professional valuer which took into consideration
of factors related to the ginsengs as advised by ginsengs
expert who were employed by the valuer. A gain on
change in fair value of RMB4.0 million was credited to
profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2020.

We have identified the valuation of the biological assets
as a key audit matter considering the significance of the
balance and the extent of management’s judgments
and estimates used for the assessment of fair value of
biological assets. The most significant assumptions and
valuation parameters used in the valuation include the
estimated quantities, grade and the related market prices
of biological assets applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R R

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ERNENAEERRETSE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following
key procedures:

a)

110

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuer and the ginsengs expert;

We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used by the valuer and management
to estimate the fair value of the biological assets;

We engaged our own ginsengs expert to carry out
physical inspection of the wild ginsengs forest and
assist us in reviewing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and unobservable inputs applied to the
valuation model; and

We considered the adequacy of the Group's

disclosure in respect of the fair value measurement of
the biological assets.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information in
the 2019/20 annual report of the Company but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 September 2020

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Law Lai Ting

Practising Certificate number: P07322
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SHEERER

As at 30 June 2020
RZE_FTFRA=1H

2020 2019
—EEHF —T-hEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR FT ARBTFr
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment e N 7 340,821 255,811
Right-of-use assets EREEE 8 27,864 =
Land use rights b {5 A 9 - 5,354
Intangible assets B AE 10 567 14,476
Investments in joint ventures SENAIRE 12 9,349 9,246
Investment in an associate i NCIE S 13 318,301 307,524
Equity instruments designated as at fair EERBBEANEBEE
value through other comprehensive fre e T
income 14 15,474 23,319
Biological assets EYEE 15 97,662 93,621
Deferred income tax assets RIEFTEIREE 16 5,203 7,593
Total non-current assets FREEEARE 815,241 716,944
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b W SR IE 18 179,274 273,346
Income tax recoverable AU ] FriS AR 13,183 44,330
Inventories s 19 310,858 302,137
Restricted cash SRRHIRE 20 45,229 38,058
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEBY 21 131,317 628,525
Total current assets REEEHRE 679,861 1,286,396
Total assets BEEARE 1,495,102 2,003,340
EQUITY p
Equity attributable to owners of the RATEE AELER
Company
Share capital [N 22 24,833 22,942
Reserves = 23 1,723,185 1,720,044
Accumulated loss ZEHEE (504,220) (12,815)
1,243,798 1,730,171
Non-controlling interests IR S 1,556 3,622
Total equity M 1,245,354 1733793
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EHEERER

As at 30 June 2020
F—?—?fﬁ/\ﬂ +E

2020 2019
—EEHF —T-hEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE AR FT ARBTFr
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FERBAR
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFBRAE 16 - 1,179
Lease liabilities HEAE 8 3,930 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERAEE 3,930 1,179
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RE A R FRIE 25 235,607 268,354
Lease liabilities HEEaE 8 10,211 -
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFR SR & (& - 14
Total current liabilities REBAEAE 245,818 268,368
Total liabilities BEHEE 249,748 269,547
Total equity and liabilities EEREERE 1,495,102 2,003,340
The notes on pages 123 to 262 are an integral part of these OF 81 75 =

FI123R202E M E AZEES
consolidated financial statements. AR D EE—ED ©
HRE1S5EZ202EMNEHMBHENR_-E
—EFEAA TN BEREETSH S MR
17 WHNIEERREFTSEHRE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 115 to 262 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
24 September 2020 and signed on its behalf by

Jin Dongtao Zhao Zehua
Director Director
BF BEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Bt ElER

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_Z-_ZTFAA=tHLFE

2020 2019
bt St —ZE-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat ARETFT AE®TT
Revenue = 5 1,510,126 2,424,416
Cost of sales $HE KA 27 (1,321,626) (2,097,609)
Gross profit ERE 188,500 326,807
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R SHR 2 27 (617,318) (551,049)
Administrative expenses TS 27 (75,305) (79,510)
Impairment loss on goodwill and other MR REMEREEREEE
intangible assets 10, 27 (11,809) =
Reversal of impairment loss on Bt A Rl B R E A5 1R R O]
investment in an associate 13, 27 - 4,834
Other income Efth it A 1,930 464
Other (losses) gains — net Hib ( B518 ) Was — 55 26 (533) 10,954
Change in fair value of biological assets EMEEARBEE 15 4,041 5,931
Operating loss REER (510,494) (281,569)
Finance income BRI A 29 9,586 11,573
Finance costs B RS R 29 (2,198) (298)
Finance income — net BIFEUR A — H 58 29 7,388 11,275
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures AMEEERRIRTIBEE 12 103 363
Share of post-tax results of an associate DI N RIRTIEEE 13 10,777 6,065
10,880 6,428
Loss before income tax MRATE B AT 8 (492,226) (263,866)
Income tax expenses PRSI X 30 (1,245) (3,237)
Loss for the year FEEER (493,471) (267,103)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
aftaralak

Year ended 30 June 2020

BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

2020 2019
—E-EfF —ZE-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥FT AREFT
Other comprehensive loss Hitir &858
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or T2 E# 7B F182519E H
loss
Fair value changes in equity instruments 16 E AR AR EBER AR
designated as at fair value through other BWENERT A ARE
comprehensive income (=B 14 (8.579) (1,286)
Items that are or may be reclassified to profit 2 #%¥ap ] £ 1F 1£ B[] & 37 77
or loss in subsequent periods
Release of other reserves upon disposal of &} B A 7] [0 H b &
subsidiaries - (332)
Currency translation differences HNEE T (4,712) (5,994)
(4,712) (6,326)
Other comprehensive loss for the year FEHMGSEHER (13,291) (7,612)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FESEERAR (506,762) (274,715)
Loss attributable to: THI&FEEER :
— Owners of the Company S WNETEZ 2PN (491,405) (265,629)
— Non-controlling interests — JEIE AR e (2,066) (1,474)
(493,471) (267,103)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: THRFEIEREERELE
— Owners of the Company S VNGIEZ 2PN (504,696) (273,247)
— Non-controlling interests — FEIE AR R (2,066) (1,474)
(506,762) (274,715)
Loss per share attributable to owners of the FEARQAEE AEEERE
Company for the year (RMB cents) BAR¥ES)
— Basic and diluted —EARRE#E 31 (12.75) (8.58)

The notes on pages 123 to 262 are an integral part of these F123E262B M A% F S O B wm*x
consolidated financial statements. TR BB —FD o

118 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
BOEREFER

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_Z-_TFA=1THILFE

Attrloutable to owners of the Company

RATEEARL
Fair value
resenve  Share-based Non-
Share Share Capitel ~~ Statutory (non- compensation Other  Accumulated controlling
captdl  premum  resenes  reseves  recycling)  resemves  resenves loss Totd  interests  Total equity
MABERR

bR BEE  BAGRE  ERGR  (TUER) ROFMGRE  RMBR 2R i RERER R
RMBOO  RMBODD  RMBOOD  RWBOOO  RVBON  RWBON  RMBUN  RMBGD  RMBOO  RMBODD  RMBOOD
ARETT ABRTL ARRTT ARETR ARKTL AREFL ARETL ARMTI ARRTI ARETT  ARMTR
WNoteZ) (Note23d) Mote23b) (Note23c) (NoteZ3(d) NoteZ3)  (Note 23)

Wez)  (Kez)  (Kezsp)  (Keze)  (Weze)  (Rdse)  (Kziy)

Balance at 1 July 2018 REE-N\ECA-BH

i 19167 1719133 (154447) 65,059 - 1050 (5,367 D194 1916956 049 1937305
Comprehensive loss BekB
Loss for the year FEER - - - = = = = (205609)  (265,69) (1478 (267,103

Other comprehensive loss AHEAER
Fair value changes in equiy instruments mﬁ’ﬁ&ﬂﬁ [BEAL
designated as at fair value through other ~ ERANAHERT

comprehensive income ByRAEEEY - = - - (1,286 = - = (1280 - (1289
Release of other reserve upon disposal of i EMBRFEAEER

subsidliaries Bl - - - - - - (332 - (332 - (332
Currency translation differences NEEEE - - - - - - (5,99 - (5.99%) - (5.99%)
Total other comprehensive loss Hb&apRaEs = = = = (1,280) - (6,326) - 7612 - 7612
Total comprehensive loss GAFBEE - - - - (1,28 - (632 (5629 @A) (1418 (2471
Release of statutory reserve upon disposel 1 ENBLAREEAT

of subsidiaries i - - = (1) = = = 910 - = =
Transactions with owners in their HEEAEEREEA

capacity as owners 25025
Dividends relating to non-controlling 32 E& 7[R 8

interests - - - - - - - - - (14.142) (14142
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEAR - - - - - - - - - (1,181) (1,181)
Issuance of oralnary shares kAR 3705 124 - - - - - - 76017 - 76017
Equity setled share based transactions ~ H{REEERAARR L

% - - - - - 10439 - - 10439 - 10439
Total transactions with owners in their ~ EERA (M EEBERA

capacity as owners LER) %548 3775 1224 = = = 10439 = = 86,45 (1530 1133

Balance at 30 June 2019 RE-NERAZTA
if3 2942 1791375 (154.447) 04149 (1.286) 31,946 (11,69 (12815 173011 362 1733793
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SO EREER

Year ended 30 June 2020

BE—_Z_FTF NA=THILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FARRAARE
Fair value
reserve  Share-based Non-
Share  Capital ~ Statutory (non-~ compensation Other Accumulated controlling
Share capital ~ premium  reserves  reserves  recycling)  reserves  reserves loss Totl interests Total equity
MEESR
B&  RfEE  BABR  tERE  (TUER) ROEMRE  HbER  ZiER A FEREE  BESE
RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMB00  RMBOD0  RMBY00
ARBTE  ARETL ARBTE ARKTL ARBTE  ARKTL ARBTE  ARKTL ARBTE  ARKTR  ARETR
(Note 22) (Note23(a) (Note 23(b) (Note 23(c) (Note 23(d) (Note 23(e) (Note 23(f)
Wdz) (W23 (W) (W23 (W22d)  (KiEZse) (W20
Balance t 1 July 2019 HZZ-1ELA-A
i3 298 119135 (154447) 64,149 (1,286) 31,946 (11,693) (12815 1,730,171 3602 1733793
Comprehensiv loss hefs
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - - - - (91405 (491,405) (2066)  (49347)
Other comprehensive loss T i
Fair value changes in equity instruments KR ARA A BEFA
designated as at fai value through other ~ EftfrA MzM#E
comprehensive income (Note 14) RIRZDAERE
B9 - - - - B - - - B - B
Currency translaton differences NERE - - - - - - (4712 - 412 - N
Total other comprehensive loss RfpAgansg - - - - (8,579) - ) - (13,291) - (13,291)
Total comprehensive loss LoEREE - - - - (8,579) - (4712 (491405 (504,69) (2,008 (508,762)
Transactions with owners in their capacity EfBA(AEEEEA
2 OWners A2&#%5
Share issued under share option scheme R EEEE R BRI 1H)
(Notes 22a) RAkize) 189 26,012 - - - 9.560) - - 18323 - 18,323
Total transactions with owners in their ~ EERA(NERER
capactty as owners AZ58)%548 1891 26012 - - - (9,580 - - 183 - 1838
Balance at 30 June 2020 RZB-RERAZT
S U833 1817387 (154447) 64,149 (9,865) 20,366 (16,405) (5042200 1,243,798 195 124535

The notes on pages 123 to 262 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

TAS B —HS o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

ERERER
Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT_ZTFA=THILFE

2020 2019
2R —ET-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Hta AR%FT AREFT
Operating activities KRS
Cash used in operations KEFTRR® 88 (437,227) (309,719)
Interest paid EARALE (2,017) =
Bank charges paid BEfRITEA (181) (298)
Income tax refunded BREFE 31,099 807
Net cash used in operating activities RETEFTRAEESEHE (408,326) (309,210)
Investing activities BEEH
Change in restricted cash SIREIRE & H (7,171) 7,089
Interest received BEUF B 2,783 3,437
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BRERZHH
plant and equipment 1FHIE 33(a) 46 225
Purchase of intangible assets BERTEE - (18)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  HEIERE
equipment (95,723) (3,361)
Acquisition of additional equity interest  UEEHES & A 5] FUREINIZIE
in an associate - (509)
Settlement of consideration receivables — JEUWR{BLEE 3,925 -
Net cash inflow on disposal of HERBARRE
subsidiaries mMAFERR - 1,766
Net cash (used in) from investing BREZH(FMTAEEXERS
activities e (96,140) 8,629
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
EHBEERER

Year ended 30 June 2020

BE T -_ZTF HA=1THIEEE

2020 2019
—BECEF —ZE-NEF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat ARBTT ARBFIT
Financing activities R EE
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEEE 33(b) (11,239) =
Shares issued under share option RIR AR R 5T B TR AR
scheme 7 22 18,323 =
Dividends paid to non-controlling AT IR R R 2 R R
interests 33(b) - (204)
Net cash from (used in) financing BMETBHELE(FMA)RS
activities P 7,084 (204)
Net decrease in cash and cash e REeEBWRF
equivalents 5 (497,382) (300,785)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning WHEHIZBEERREE
of the reporting period EY) 628,525 929,161
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  SNEIE R & E) 2 22 174 149
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the HEHRZRERREE
reporting period LR 21 131,317 628,525

The notes on pages 123 to 262 are an integral part of these Z123E262B WM AZEE I BHRE
consolidated financial statements. TR DB —FH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
B R B RAR R

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_Z-_TFA=1THILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the distribution and retail of drugs,
healthcare products and other pharmaceutical products in
the northeastern region of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC" or “Mainland China”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
March 2012, as an exempted company with limited liabilities
under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company's registered office is PO
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1- 1104, Cayman
Islands.

The Company'’s shares have been listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 12 December
2013.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to both periods
presented, unless otherwise stated.

—REHR
ARERBEREBRZERERAATEA
A MEMBAR(SERIAEE]) X
2HEREARKEME([HE K PER
i) RAbR e FEEY) - RIEEMME
e BEEMN D HRTER

AARIRZZE—=—F=A+-B1REH
SEHBERAVA(ZE—=FEIREH
EREAMKIREREERAR - K
NAEFEMFERA I APO Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman lIslands °

KA R - E—=F+_H+_H
ERBBAERSMERAREIR LM o

SRR BREAEIN  ZFAHFMBHRKRTD
AARETET(TAR®TFTZS -
TERETHRME
mAEZEAMHMBRRAEANEIES

ATERREN T - RABHRAI - LF
BREMBEZMEANERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gk R e

Year ended 30 June 2020

=

—BoBESASTALSE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

124

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
("1ASs") and Interpretations and the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for equity instruments designated as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and biological
assets which are measured at fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& O AR R MY A

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1 RAEEE)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 BEERNEE KRR
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) AEBEHHET R AR
Group 1557728
The following new and amended standards have 6 B RN AT E
been adopted by the Group for the first time: F] MASIEETHER -

Annual Improvements — 2015-2017 Cycle

IAS 23: Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

The amendments clarify that (a) if a specific
borrowing remains outstanding after the related
qualifying asset is ready for its intended use
or sale, it becomes part of the funds an entity
borrows generally and (b) funds borrowed
specifically to obtain an asset other than a
qualifying asset are included as part of general
borrowings.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

IFRIC 23 supports the requirements in IAS 12
Income Taxes by specifying how to reflect the
effects of uncertainty in accounting for income
taxes.

The adoption of the Interpretation does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

AEFERERZRERAT FEHRE2019/20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gk R e

Year ended 30 June 2020

=

—E-F

— = —=

FRA=THILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

126

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

(continued)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (continued)
Amendments to IAS 19: Employee Benefits

The amendments require the use of updated
assumptions to determine current service
cost and net interest for the remainder of the
reporting period after a change is made to a
plan.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated

financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term Interests in

Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that long-term interests
in an associate or joint venture, to which the
equity method is not applied, are accounted
for using IFRS 9.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features

with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable
financial assets with negative compensation can
be measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income instead of
at fair value through profit or loss if specified
conditions are met.

Annual Report 2019/20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& O AR R MY A

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2. FEEFHERBEE)

2.1 RBREEE)
2110 BEFBERNEE RKE(E)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) KEBEEHHHET R AR
Group (continued) CHETNCD)

Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features

with Negative Compensation (continued)

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

IFRS 16: Leases

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 and related Interpretations
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019. It significantly changes, among
others, the lessee accounting by replacing the
dual-model under IAS 17 with a single model
which requires a lessee to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for the rights and
obligations created by all leases with a term of
more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. For lessor accounting,
IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly,
a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.
IFRS 16 also requires enhanced disclosures to
be provided by lessees and lessors.

AEFERERZRERAT FEHRE2019/20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRaRM

Year ended 30 June 2020

BE—_Z_FTF NA=THILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (continued)
IERS 16: Leases (continued)

In accordance with the transitional provisions,
the Group has applied IFRS 16 for the first time
at 1 July 2019 (i.e. the date of initial application,

the “DIA") using the modified retrospective

approach in which comparative information has

not been restated and continues to be reported

under [AS 17.

The Group also elected to use the transition

practical expedient not to reassess whether a

contract was, or contained, a lease at the DIA

and the Group applied IFRS 16 only to contracts

that were previously identified as leases applying

IAS 17 and to contracts entered into or changed

on or after the DIA that are identified as leases

applying IFRS 16.

128 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& O AR R MY A

Year ended 30 June 2020

&5—7—7¢/\H —i—EJJ:E'Eﬁ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBERMEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 f?ﬁﬂgﬁﬁ-(@%)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) K& BRI HET R AR

Group (continued)
IERS 16: Leases (continued)

As lessee

Before the adoption of IFRS 16, lease contracts
were classified as operating or finance lease
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies applicable prior to the DIA.

Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Group accounted
for the leases in accordance with the transition
provisions of IFRS 16 and the Group’s accounting
policies applicable from the DIA.

As lessee — leases previously classified as
operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases previously classified as
operating leases at the DIA, except for leases
for which the underlying asset is of low value,
and the Group applied the following practical
expedients on a lease-by-lease basis.

(a) applied a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics;

1E5T2E B (&)
!WWﬁﬁiﬁw%w

TERAA

TR A B B B 7 3R 5 2
Bl 1658 A1 » 1B IE & X

FEFA BEARTE A A A&
EgstkE HESLH
SRR ESIHERS -

TR A B PR B 7 3R 5 2
BIZE1655 1% » AEER
BREREREEAE
16 BEBRXREE
REFABERBERAMNA
SEeTHRREHES
TTAHR ©

IERABA LRI 78
REEHENHE
RERERBBH K&
B o BREER
EMNHERRBEHES
ENEERE  HEHEH
EEBERENHEER
Hhe REBERZEIAM
ERERMAUATAITHE
BAZE-

(a) HEHABALE
MmﬁAﬂAﬁ%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRaRM

Year ended 30 June 2020

=

130

—BoBESASTALSE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)
IFRS 16: Leases (continued)

As lessee — leases previously classified as

operating leases (continued)

(b) adjusted the right-of-use assets at the
DIA by the provision for onerous leases
recognised immediately before the DIA
by applying IAS 37, as an alternative to
performing an impairment review at the
DIA;

(c) did not recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities to leases for which the lease
term ends within 12 months of the DIA
(“short-term lease”);

(d) excluded initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use assets at
the DIA; and

(e) used hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options
to extend or terminate the lease.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& O AR R MY A

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBERMEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) K& BRI HET R AR

Group (continued)
IERS 16: Leases (continued)

As lessee — leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

At the DIA, right-of-use assets were, on a lease-
by-lease basis, measured at an amount equal to
the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the lease recognised immediately before the
DIA.

Lease liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the DIA. The weighted
average incremental borrowing rate applied to
the lease liabilities at the DIA is 8.63%.

1E5T2E B (&)
BB BT iR & CE R 16
cHE (&

IERABA —SEHI DB
RSEHENHE (&)
REXERBAH £/
REEAZBEHERE
RERHEREZSR
AFE UBMEEERERX
FERMB U ERANEE
B BA e (E ] TR A 3k e AT
HEFRSRELAE

HEBBEERBTHER
BREGNE RENE
FAHEERAAEALES
ERFENE - RE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IRk B

Year

@E

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

132

ended 30 June 2020
—E-FESNA=THLEEE

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (continued)
IERS 16: Leases (continued)

As lessee — leases previously classified as

operating leases (continued)

Reconciliation of operating lease commitments
disclosed applying IAS 17 at 30 June 2019 and
lease liabilities recognised at the DIA is as

follows.

2. FEEFBERBEE)

2.1 ﬁﬁﬁégi’%(ﬁ)

211 @3

(a) 755 [B R4 09 H7 5T K A%

1E5T2E B (&)
BB BT iR & CE B 16
5% HE (&)

IEBARFN — KI5 48
BIEETHENHE ()
R-FE—AFE~A=1
HEABEKBSELSE
1755 3 FR 1) 48 & MH B R
FEHREXERAH®
ROEEBENEERED
S

RMB'000
ARETT

Operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019

—NERA=THEK

MTH SR 78,362
Less: Short-term leases and low-value assets B EEHEERREEEE (49,624)
Gross lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 RZE-NFELA-—BHNHEE
BfERE 28,738
Less: Discounted using the lessee’s incremental & © R & X B #(F B
borrowing rate at the DIA HE BT ETIR (3,358)
Lease liabilities at 1 July 2019 RZZE-NFEA—BAMHEE
BfE 25,380
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#E-T

BRI

Year ended 30 June 2020

—E_FEENA=THLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 REEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 BEERNEE RFE(E)
(continued)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) K& BRI HET R AR
Group (continued) 1E5TE R (Z)

IERS 16: Leases (continued)

As lessee — leases previously classified as
operating leases (continued)

The following table summarises the impact on
the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position upon the adoption of IFRS 16 at the

BB BT iR & CE R 16
cHE (&

IERABA —SEHI DB
TERBAR ERERAB
HBR 4 B R B A iR
AIF 1658 B AR KB A ff

DIA: MM RRzE
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts

previously under
reported at IFRS 16 at
30 June 2019 Transfer 1 July 2019
R-Z—h
F+H—H
RZZE—N 30 B B 75 =R
FRA=T HAERIZE16
HERI2 R SRIE T 2 Bk
ZBREE (2052 H{&

Increase/

(Decrease)

=

Oa)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTIT AREFT ARYFIT

Non-current assets FREBEE

Right-of-use assets FREEE - 40,801 40,801

Land use rights T fE PR 5,354 (5,354) =

Current assets REEE

Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H b U GRIE 273,346 (10,067) 263,279

Current liabilities REBEE

Lease liabilities HEAE = 11,245 11,245

Non-current liabilities knRBERF

Lease liabilities HEAE = 14,135 14,135

AEFEREERZERERDE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

134

?

—FEFEFEAHA=THIEFE

(continued)

(b) New and amended standards issued but not

yet adopted by the Group

A number of new and amended standards
are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2020, and have not been
applied in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. The Group will apply
the new and amended standards when they
become effective. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the impact of the new
and amended standards and does not expect
that the adoption of these new and amended
standards will result in any material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.

2. FEEFBERBEE)

2.1 MBEAE(E)
2110 SEIHCRNEE R E(E)

(b) B 88 7 5 B j=f K £

MBYFTET RAZISET R
LI E] RS E] 2R
R—_EBE-_FF—H—H
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BEEF FS SRR BF I R T BA
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HYERMREKEME
REE -

Effective for annual years
beginning on or after

WA RE BRRER AR

Amendments to IASs 1 and §

Amendments to IAS 39 and
IFRSs 7 and 9

Amendments to [FRS 3
Amendment to [FRS 16

Amendments to IAS 39 and
IFRSs 4, 7,9 and 16

Amendments to IAS 16
Amendments to IAS 37
Amendments to [FRS 3
Annual Improvements to [FRSs
Amendments to IAS 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

BRI

Year ended 30 June 2020

E_T_TFRA=THILFE

2. FEEFHERBEE)

2.2 MEBLRA
221 AHFHERAE

MEARRASEREHHE
EERtIENER(BREERE
ER) EAKER2HER
MEEMERSBREAH
RO WREMEREY
ERNENIFELADR -
AEBENHZERBZ
E-MBEARREGEES
EREEEHAREHAR
WA E IR LS A ETE
BHARK

(a) XBEGf
ZNESETEP NG D7 S S
Ba st ARK - sLUE—
RXIMB AR BENKE
BPEWETHREES A
FTEREE FMELW
BEMAKEEZRITHR
RS RABE A
BEAREEEIANR
BRHMELENEIMFE
EXRENAAEE-
EXRBE T AKED
] 38Rl B B DA Ko P AR HE
MBEERKREE 7
FUEREBERHR
nEEFE -

ABREEBREEZERERAT FEHRE2019/20 135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

136

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

(a) Business combinations (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required
by IFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss or other comprehensive income
as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that
is an asset or liability is recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interests recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries would have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do notresultin loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any

retained interest in the entity is re-measured to

its fair value at the date when control is lost, with

the change in carrying amount recognised in

profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying

amount for the purposes of subsequently

accounting for the retained interest as an

associate, joint venture or financial asset. In

addition, any amounts previously recognised

in other comprehensive income in respect of

that entity are accounted for as if the Group

had directly disposed of the related assets

or liabilities. This may mean that amounts

previously recognised in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at

cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct

attributable costs of investment. The results of

subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on

the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries

is required upon receiving dividends from these

investments if the dividend exceeds the total

comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the

period the dividend is declared or if the carrying

amount of the investment in the separate financial

statements exceeds the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements of the investee’s

net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& O AR R MY A

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Associates 2.3 BENT

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of 20% or more but less
than 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investments in associates include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any excess of the cost
of the associate over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
represents goodwill which is included in the investment
in associate.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in profit or loss, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

140

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the excess of
the carrying value of the associate over its recoverable
amount and recognises the amount to “impairment loss
on investment in an associate” in profit or loss. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group's financial statements only
to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

The Group has applied IFRS 11 to all joint arrangements.
Under IFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations
entitled to each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and determined them to
be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Joint arrangements (continued)

2.5

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group's share of losses
in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the joint ventures), the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group'sinterestin the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors that makes
strategic decisions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

142

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial information of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The Group's consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the
Company'’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated

statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

144

POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly motor
vehicles, furniture, office equipment and leasehold
improvement are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Construction in progress
is recognised at the percentage completion of contract
cost.

Construction in progress (“CIP"”) represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP
until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned
are available for use, the costs are transferred to the
respective categories of property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other
than CIP is calculated using the straight-line method to
write down their cost less accumulated impairment to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

— Buildings 20 years
— Motor vehicles 4-8 years
— Furniture and office equipment 3-5 years

— Leasehold improvements shorter of lease period and

estimated useful life

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amounts.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised in profit or loss.

Land use rights

Before 1 July 2019, land use rights are up-front payments
to acquire long-term interest in land. These payments
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses (if any). Amortisation
of land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis
over the period of the leases. From 1 July 2019, those
payments are accounted for as right-of-use assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Intangible assets

146

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment tests are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value
of the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Annual Report 2019/20

2. FEEFBERBEE)

29 ERERE

(a)

mE

P W i BT /B8 R ) BF AT 7E A
BEREERNE  RBWE
TEFEERE RS BN R
T W B 5 {E fa] 2 B A A 4
sRKRBEN AR BEEL
PR Al Bl E EFEM E
B e

REREAMS  REHE
FRBNBERSEEED
REHOIHEUEE DN T
EReELAENTREE
GBS BHERTELE
- BEXSHEHBEDERDE
MEBLRRZERARAI
BERNMEEBENRKE
B - mERNKEEDEEmK

Bop o

BEREANASFET =X
EEEHRBERRERRA
REH IR ER - RIMEH B 48
ERs e BEERENREE
A B AR EE B A Y B 2
BELE . AIMEESRESE
FEEE R i EER D EK
REBHE o EADBRER K
BRAMAX  BHETSE
[B] o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

Trademarks, licenses and brand loyalty

Separately acquired trademarks, licenses and brand
loyalty are shown at historical cost. Trademarks,
licenses and brand loyalty acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Trademarks, licenses and brand
loyalty have finite useful lives and are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to write down the cost of
trademarks, licenses and brand loyalty over their
estimated useful lives of 5 to 20 years.

Contractual supplier relationships

Contractual supplier relationships acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value
at the acquisition date. The contractual supplier
relationships have a finite useful life and are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is
provided to write down the cost over the expected
life of supplier relationship of 10 years using the
straight-line method.

Computer software licences

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the
specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 5 to 7 years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

148

2.10

2.1

Biological Assets

Biological assets are the wild ginsengs that are measured
at fair value less cost to sell, see Note 15 below for further
information on determining the fair value.

Costs to sell include the incremental selling costs,
including the labour costs to collect and process the
wild ginsengs when harvested, the estimated costs of
transportation to the market, etc.

The wild ginsengs are accounted for as biological assets
until the point of harvest. Harvested wild ginsengs are
transferred to inventory at fair value less costs to sell
when harvested.

Changes in fair value of biological assets are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets that are not ready to use are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial instruments

(a)

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only
when (i) the Group’s contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire or (ii) the
Group transfers the financial asset and either (a) it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without
a significant financing component) are initially
recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade
receivables are initially measured at their transaction
price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity instruments
designated as at FVOCI; or (iv) measured at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVPL").
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (continued)

150

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and derecognition (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the Group's business model
for managing the financial assets and the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing them, in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which
a host is an asset within the scope of IFRS 9 are not
separated from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid
contract is assessed for classification.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
(continued)

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost
include trade and other receivables, restricted cash
and cash and cash equivalents.

Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of investment in equity instruments
that is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which IFRS 3 applies in
other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instruments-by-instruments basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group’s equity instruments designated as
at FVOCI are further detailed in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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ended 30 June 2020
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Financial instruments (continued)
(b) Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition
Financial liabilities are recognised when and only
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only
when the liability is extinguished, that is, when
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not
carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and
other payables. All financial liabilities, except for
financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

214 TRIEEREMIERRE

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses ("ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with IFRS 9. At each reporting date,
the Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset
at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk
on that financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial
asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
(i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the
expected life of the financial instruments.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows that
are due to an entity under the contract and the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instruments while 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instruments that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEZ)
POLICIES (continued)

154

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

(continued)

Measurement of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

() past due information

(i) nature of instruments

(ili) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors
(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instruments’ credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the financial instruments, except
in the case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in fair value (recycling).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

(continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that the
Group may not receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full if the financial instruments that meets
any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instruments has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instruments as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instruments as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. In particular, the following information is taken
into account in the assessment:
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

156

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

(continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (continued)

e the debtor's failure to make payments of principal
or interest on the due dates;

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instruments’ external or internal credit

rating (if available);

®  anactual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on financial instruments has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instruments are determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

(continued)
Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Other receivables and bank balances are considered to
be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default
and the counter party has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term (Note

3.1(b)).

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting
date that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)
Credit-impaired financial
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event.

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past
due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar
assets. The Group expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at transaction price or fair value as appropriate and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& R R AR MY A

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash at bank and on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or

less.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the

proceeds.

2.19 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance

sheet date.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings prior to their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Trade payables

2.21

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Group's entities operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

162

(b)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liability is provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference in respect of associates
and joint ventures. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits

164

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Pension obligations

The PRC based full-time employees of the Group are
covered by various government-sponsored pension
plans under which the employees are entitled to a
monthly pension based on certain formulae. Certain
government agencies are responsible for the pension
liability to these retired employees. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these pension
plans. Under these plans, the Group has no legal
or constructive obligations for retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. The assets of these
plans are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. Contributions
to these plans are expensed as incurred.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme"”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Housing benefits

Inaccordance withthe PRChousingreformregulations,
the Group is required to make contributions to the
government-sponsored housing fund of the specified
salary amount of its full-time Chinese employees. At
the same time, the employees are required to make
a contribution equal to the Group’s contributions
out of their salaries. The employees are entitled
to claim the entire sum of the fund under certain
specified withdrawal circumstances. The assets of
the housing benefits are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions to the housing benefits are expensed
as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Group operates anumber of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options and shares) of the
Company. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of options or
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options or shares granted:

e including any market performance conditions;

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions; and

e including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

Service and non-market performance vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options or shares that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

166

(c)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Share-based payments (continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during
the period between service commencement period
and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options or
shares that are expected to vest based on the service
and non-market performance vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.

Share Option Scheme
The Group operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) (Note 24(a)).

When the options are granted to identified
participants, the fair value of the option is recognised
as an expense over the vesting period. When the
options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Share-based payments (continued)

Share Award Plan

The Company adopted a share award plan (“Share
Award Plan”) (Note 24(b)). When the shares of the
Company are purchased by the Share Award Plan
from the market, the consideration paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is
presented as “shares held for Share Award Plan”
and deducted from total equity.

When shares are granted to identified participants,
the fair value of the shares awarded based on the
market value of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant is charged as employee expenses to profit
or loss of the Group.

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities

2231 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

168

2231

2232

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

Nature of goods or services
The nature of the goods or services provided by the
Group is as follows:

(a) Sales of goods — distribution
The Group sells a range of drugs and other
pharmaceutical products to distributors through its
distribution network.

(b) Sales of goods — retail
The Group operates a chain of retail pharmacies for
selling drugs and other pharmaceutical products to
customers. Retail sales are usually settled in cash or
by credit card.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@) agood or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same
pattern of transfer to the customer.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)

Identification of performance obligations (continued)
A good or service that is promised to a customer is

distinct if both of the following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources
that are readily available to the customer (i.e. the
good or service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of

the contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset
is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control

of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following

criteria is met:

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance

as the Group performs;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example, work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or

enhanced; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset, and customer acceptance.

Sale of prescribed drugs, non-prescribed drugs, healthcare
and other pharmaceutical products are recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control
of the promised asset, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and
the title is passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

172

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15
(continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components
When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer), in determining
the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
consideration for the effects of the time value of money.
The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense
separately from revenue from contracts with customers
in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of
the goods or services to the amount paid in advance or
arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the Group's
borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness
information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for the effect of the significant financing
component if the period of financing is one year or less.

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected distributors. The
Group estimates the volume rebates using the expected-
value method and assesses whether the estimated
variable consideration is constrained with reference
to the customer’s historical rebates entitlement and
accumulated purchases to date. Any significant estimation
variances will be analysed and taken into consideration
in the current estimation and assessment. Typically, the
estimated consideration is not constrained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

2.25

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the assets while it is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-impaired
financial assets.

Leases
Applicable from 1 July 2019 — as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-
term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to
a separate component are considered to be part of the
total consideration that is allocated to the separately
identified components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

174

2.25 Leases (continued)

Applicable from 1 July 2019 — as lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

comprises:

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset as follows:
Land use rights Over the lease term

Properties Over the lease term
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Leases (continued)

Applicable from 1 July 2019 — as lessee (continued)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the contract. The lease payments
included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise the following payments for the right to use
the underlying asset during the lease term that are not
paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual
value guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicitin the lease, or where itis not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BE T -_ZTF HA=1THIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Leases (continued)

Applicable from 1 July 2019 — as lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual
value guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments
or the future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In
case of a change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in floating interest rates, the Group remeasures

the lease liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises
any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit

or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease

if:

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying

assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the

circumstances of the particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Leases (continued)

Applicable from 1 July 2019 — as lessee (continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as

a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease

modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain
or loss relating to the partial or full termination of
the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by
making a corresponding adjustment to the right-
of-use asset.

Applicable before 1 July 2019
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and

rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are

classified as operating leases. Payments made under

operating leases (net of any incentives received from

the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line

basis over the period of the lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

178

POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders

is recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated

financial statements when the shareholders’ right to

dividends is established.

2.27 Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to

the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the

same group (which means that each parent,

subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to

the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or an associate or joint venture of

a member of a group of which the other entity

is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group. If the Group
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers
are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
itis a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gk R e

Year

@E

2.

3.

180

ended 30 June 2020
—E-FESNA=THLEEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate
includes subsidiaries of the associate and a joint
venture includes subsidiaries of the joint venture.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
regularly monitors its exposure and currently considers
not necessary to hedge any of these financial risks.

(@) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with
transactions denominated and settled in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency other than the entity’s
functional currency. These include mainly the
equity instruments designated as at FVOCI (Note
14), bank balances (Note 21) and the trade and
other receivables (Note 18) denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HKD") and US Dollars (“USD"). The
Group currently does not hedge its foreign exchange
exposure.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 30 June 2020, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the USD/HKD with all
other variables held constant, loss before income
tax for the year ended 30 June 2020 would have
been RMB1,027,000 (2019: RMB1,352,000) higher/
lower, respectively, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of USD and
HKD denominated cash and bank balances and
equity instruments designated as at FVOCI.

The Group will constantly review the economic
situation and its foreign exchange risk profile, and
will consider appropriate hedging measures in the
future, as may be necessary.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalent and restricted cash, which
is net of loss allowance, represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account the value of any collateral held or other
credit enhancements in relation to financial assets.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

Retail sales at the Group's pharmacies are usually
settled in cash or by debit or credit cards. For
distribution sales, there is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables, as the majority
of the Group's sales are settled upon delivery of
goods. The trade receivables are with credit periods
of not more than 90 days.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of receivables included in
the consolidated balance sheet are mainly generated
by the Group's distributions segment and represent
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to these financial assets.

Counterparty risk related to trade receivables is
limited due to the large number of customers in the
Group's customer portfolio and their diversification
throughout various business sectors as well as
geographic locations. As at 30 June 2020, the
exposure to the top 15 customers occupies 31%
(2019: 24%) of the gross trade receivables, with the
exposure to the largest customer representing 10%
(2019: 7%).

Annual Report 2019/20

3.

AR E

H(#E)

3.1 BREBREAZEE)

(b)

EERR(E)
=€), 1¢¢ |
AEENEETEHERT
UEE - BRERHERRE
THE - RLOHEEEMS
RN SE T PN ) S
RNEmKEE  WEFHE
1451 AR EEREERR
B 5 RYAER T ER
QOEI e

AEBVEEREREER
Rt AAHEERBRA
B UG IR R EEE B i
AKEDHDBESLE - KK
R E B F B A B P
RHRXEERR o

HRASERFAGATR

RZ B R ARER
TERRE REBEHE

WHIBREFTRARBR -

RZZE-_ZTFXA=1+8H"

1ISAEFPHE 5 EKFIEL
2 5 el SIE B EEN31% (—
T—NF :24%)  HFHEK
BEEME S EKRKEL10%
—E—NF 1 7%)°



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group’s customer base consists of
a wide range of clients and the trade receivables
are categorised by common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECL for trade receivables and recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment. The
expected loss rate used in the Group's estimation on
ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and
adjusted for current and forward-looking factors to
reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historical data has
been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables. The management
considered that these factors do not indicate any
significant credit risk and additional loss allowance
for provision for trade receivables as at 30 June 2020
and 2019 to be insignificant. There was no change in
the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the year ended 30 June 2020.
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, the ageing analysis
based on recognition date of the trade receivables

is as follows:

MHREBER(E)
3.1 MBEBEREGE)
b) EERRE)

ESEWHEE)

RZBE_ZEFR_Z-NF
NAZ+TH EREFREK
IR R H HH BR e 2 AT 40

T
2020 2019
—EBEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Up to 3 months 3E A AR 109,244 206,587
4 to 6 months 42 6(E A 1,768 1,035
7 to 12 months 721218 A - 2,506
Over 1 year FBIB1F - 160
111,012 210,288

As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, the ageing analysis

RIB_TFR-_ZT— h¢

based on past due date is as follows: ANA=1TH - ZIHAHE
ZERESTAT
2020 2019
—EC-EF —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AE#TIT
Not past due SRIEHA 109,244 206,587
Past due but not impaired BB RHE
Up to 3 months 3ME A AR 1,768 1,035
4 to 9 months 4Z29{E H - 2,506
Over 9 months R m1E A - 160
111,012 210,288
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The trade receivables as at 30 June 2020 and 2019
that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers for whom there is
no significant financial difficulty and, based on past
experiences, the overdue amounts can be recovered.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 related to a wide range
of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade
receivables as at 30 June 2020 (2019: Nil).

Other receivables

The Group considers that other receivables have low
credit risk based on the debtors’ strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and low risk of default. No loss allowance is

recognised based on the measurement on 12-month
ECL
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables (continued)

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into
account the historical actual credit loss experience
and the financial position of the counterparties,
past collection history, current creditworthiness,
adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of
the industry in which the counterparties operate,
in estimating the probability of default of these
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default.
The management of the Group considers the ECL
of other receivables to be insignificant after taking
into account the financial position, credit quality
and past settlement records of the counterparties.
There was no change in the estimation techniques

or significant assumptions made during the years
ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash is limited because the counter-
parties are state-owned financial institutions, the
state-controlled financial institutions, joint-stock
commercial bank and local banks with high credit
quality and good reputation. No loss allowance was
recognised for the years ended 30 June 2020 and
2019.

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
considered as adequate by management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to fulfil
its future funds requirements through cash flows
generated from operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Generally there is no specific credit period granted
by the suppliers but the related trade payables are
normally expected to be settled within three months
after receipt of goods or services.

As at 30 June 2020, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of RMB131,317,000 (2019: RMB628,525,000)
(Note 21) and trade receivables of RMB111,012,000
(2019: RMB210,288,000) (Note 18), that are expected
to readily generate cash inflows for managing
liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows.

BRI

Year ended 30 June 2020

BE_Z-_ZTFNA=1+BILEE

3. BXERER(EZ)
3.1 BIEBEZE)

(c)

TREN R ()

—RME HEBLERLY
HEGERY  BEREESE
RIE—RFAEHNKEE &
SRR =EARNEH -

RZE_ZEFA=+H8H"
AEBEFEEBAUBRES
WERANEEREMER
MR RREEEDARK
131,317,0007( =T — NLF -
A R #628,525,0007T ) (Bt &
20U RE S ERFIEARKE
111,012,0007( =T — NLF :
AR #210,288,0007T ) (Bt &
18) °

TROMAEEN SR E
B REERBRAERY
AHEMFRBREE D /B
AR HME R - RIEAMED
SRTENATERERE -

Total
contractual
On demand or undiscounted  Total carrying
less than 1 year  1to2years 2to 5 years payment amount
EHEYEES
REXI-Fh -FERE  WEERFE  BANER REAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  AREFr  AREFTT  AEETT  AREfT
As at 30 June 2020 RZZBZ2FXAZ+1H
Trade and other payables BORAMENTE 183,573 - - 183,573 183,573
Lease liabilities HERE 11,276 4,206 - 15,482 14,141
194,849 4,206 - 199,055 197,714
As at 30 June 2019 R=Z-AERB=1H
Trade and other payables BH REMENFE 215,675 = = 215,675 215,675
AREEREEZRERAT FEHSE2019/20 187
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—E-FESNA=THLEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(d) Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its restricted cash and bank
balances.

The interest rates and maturities of the Group's
restricted cash and bank balances are disclosed in
Notes 20 and 21 respectively.

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets and liabilities.

As at the end of the reporting period, if the interest
rates on restricted cash and bank balances had been
0.5% higher/lower than the prevailing rate announced
by People’s Bank of China, with all other variables
held constant, loss before income tax for the year
ended 30 June 2020 would have been RMB872,000
(2019: RMB3,304,000) lower/higher, respectively.

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group's strategy remains consistent throughout the
period.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

Consistent with peer participants in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as total equity as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.
The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a level
of not more than 50%.

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2020 and 2019 were as

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

MR EEE)

3.2 EXREBERE(E)
REBEZRBEANEFERERAE
LEERESERE RN o %t R AESFEE
BRIAERNREERTE - EFREUE
FRASKBASEEYE - AN
RENEHEEAGBRYITHER
BENERFEAE - AEBER
1S ERNE B BRI T EIB50%
H)ZKFE o

RZBE_BEFER-_F—AF A=

follows: THNEARBBLXRNT :
2020 2019
—EBCEF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AEBTIT
Borrowings &R - -
Less: cash and cash equivalents & : IR&EKRIBEEEY
(Note 21) (Ktat21) (131,317) (628,525)
Net cash W IFH (131,317) (628,525)
Total equity R ARRE 1,245,354 1,733,793
Total capital N L 1,116,428 1,105,268
Gearing ratio (Note) BRBELLE(HF) N/A TEA N/A i@ A
Note: As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, the Group was in net cash position and the Wit - RZZT_TFER_T—NFAA=FTH " ' &
calculation of gearing ratio is therefore not meaningful. %@E@%fﬁﬁﬁﬁ% C WETEERAEL R
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ended 30 June 2020
—E-FESNA=THLEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

(@) Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

The following table presents the financial assets

and liabilities measured at fair value or required to

disclose their fair value in these consolidated financial

statements on a recurring basis at 30 June 2020 and

2019 across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, with the
fair value measurement categorised in its entirety

based on the lowest level of input that is significant

to the entire measurement. The levels are defined

as follows:

—  Level1(highestlevel): quoted prices (unadjusted)

in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

that the Group can access at the measurement

date;

—  Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included

within Level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for

the asset or liability.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

BREREE(Z)
3.3 DREEMLF(E)
@ *MEEMBBEAAEBEM

(continued) sH(4&)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R E2MR #3R @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T ABHT T AB#TFTT
As at 30 June 2020 R-E-EFXA=1H
Assets BE
Equity instruments designated RERRAREBEFAR
as at FVOCI (Note 14) thir e MBS TR
(Hi14)
- Unlisted equity instruments —FtmEETA - - 15,474 15,474
As at 30 June 2019 RZB-RFERA=T1H
Assets BE
Equity instruments designated ~ fEEARAREEFAE
as at FVOCI (Note 14) fiRA e S T A
(Hit14)
- Unlisted equity instruments —JFEmHERTA - - 23,319 23,319

During the year ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair
value measurements and no transfers into and out
of Level 3 fair value measurements.

BE_ZT-_ZTFR-_F—N
FRNAZTHILFEE  B1H
WE2HM N R EEFEZHEL
meEE . NEFEINAAEE
SEEAREDL -
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BMEBEEEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREEMF(E)
(a) Fairvalue estimation of financial assets and liabilities ) sRMEERBGBEAAEBEM

(continued) sH(4&)
Financial instruments measured at fair value based REIMNMFTEN AR BEFE
on Level 3 measurement: ZEMIA :
The movements of the unlisted equity instruments HE_Z-_ZTEFR-_FT—N
during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 are FRA=ZTHIEFE kL
shown as follows: miEm T ENEEIT :

Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI
EERARAABEFARGGENENERTE

2020 2019
it St 23 —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFr
At beginning of the reporting period ~ R¥R& 7] 23,319 =

Reclassification upon adoption of IFRS 9 £ 43 B B B 7% ¥ & 2 B 559%% 6 &
Giipax | - 22,869

Total loss recognised in other REMEGRE KRR 2 EE

comprehensive income (8,579) (1,286)
Exchange difference ] 734 1,736
At the end of the reporting period RBREHR 15,474 23,319
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 3 fair value measurement:

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments are
estimated by an independent and qualified
professional valuer using price-to-earnings (P/E)
multiple model. It includes assumptions that are
not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The average price-to-earnings (P/E) multiples
of comparable companies of the corresponding
industries is 23.9 times (2019: 20.1 times) and the
discount rate applied for lack of marketability is
20% (2019: 20%), which is estimated based on Black

Scholes option pricing model.

ABREEBREEZERERAT FEHRE2019/20
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(@) Fairvalue estimation of financial assets and liabilities
(continued)
Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs
The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements are as

3. MKEBERE)
3.3 AREEMET(E)
@) SMEERBBEAAEBMEM
FT(#&)
FTELFTHETGAIE S
EZ#E
FEIMPAREBEFEZEER
ARG ASBEHRE S

follows: R
Impact on fair
value and the
Sensitivity of fair value to Group's other
changes in unobservable comprehensive
Fair value at Valuation inputs (assuming other factors Reasonably  income for the
Description 30 June 2020 technique Unobservable inputs remain unchanged) possible range period
R-B-EE HAHAAEE
AAZTEZ TUERRAHBANEESR REAR RAEEAMR
i DAEE HERE TUBRGARE E2B(BRHERZASTE) BHEE AhEz¥E
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFR AREFT
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI
EERRMARE ABESRENAATA
Unlisted equity 15,474 P/E multiple  Average P/E ratio of The higher average P/E ratio +/-15% +/-2,321
instruments comparable companies of comparable companies,
the higher the fair value and
vice versa
FrmERTA TEXRY  TENBRRRZTHTER AERRARPHTEZY
5 AABEES RZIA
Discount for lack of The higher the discount +/- 5% -[+ 967

marketability

BRZ SRS

rate applied for lack of
marketability, the lower the
fair value and vice versa
BemmnatrREls A
ABEHE - R27%
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BRI

Year ended 30 June 2020

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

(continued)

Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable

inputs (continued)

BHE_—

3. MERBREE(E)
3.3 DREEMLF(E)

7—7¢/\H "f'E!JJ:Eﬁ

) TMEENABAAEBER

(%)
FTETTETGAHBEHE
Ez28 (&)

Sensitivity of fair value to

Impact on fair
value and the
Group's other

changes in unobservable comprehensive
Fair value at Valuation inputs (assuming other factors Reasonably  income for the
Description 30 June 2019 technique Unobservable inputs remain unchanged) possible range period
RZF-NE BRHARBE
AA=TRZ FBEZHAREALBEYR AR RAEEHME
fast NAfBEE WERE FUBR@ARE RELSY(RREMRZESIZ) 298E alaEepE
RMB000 RMB000
AREFT NEETT
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI
ERARMEEF ARG RENERTE
Unlisted equity 23319 P/E multiple  Average P/E ratio of The higher average P/E ratio +/-15% +/- 3498
instruments comparable companies of comparable companies, the
higher the fair value and vice
versa
FEEmERTIA MREEH  TEUBRARZTHNER AEUBRARZTHNREES
MrEESR &ZW’S
Discount for lack of The higher the discount +/- 5% -[+ 1,457
marketability rate applied for lack of
marketability, the lower the
fair value and vice versa
A R Ak RemERBIETRELS AR
BEWE - R2A
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried b) eRMEERABZAAEBE
at amounts other than fair values DBEGR AR BEIINNSFET]
=

In the opinion of the management of the Group, no
other financial assets and liabilities of the Group are
carried at amounts materially different from their fair
values as at 30 June 2020 and 2019.
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ended 30 June 2020
—E-FESNA=THLEEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period are addressed below.

(a) Estimation of biological assets
Estimates and judgements in determining the fair value
of the wild ginsengs relate to quantities, grading and
market prices.

The quantities of the wild ginsengs are estimated based
on a valuation report issued by an independent and
qualified professional valuer using the statistical sampling
method and also taking into considerations of factors
related to the wild ginsengs as advised by ginsengs
experts who employed by the valuer. Based on the
valuation report, the samples are selected randomly and
the total quantities of the wild ginsengs are extrapolated
using a normal distribution model with an acceptable
deviation estimated by the valuer.

The wild ginsengs grow at different grading and there
can be a considerable spread in the quality and grading
that affect the prices achieved. According to the valuation
report, an average grading is assumed for the wild
ginsengs based on the laboratory test results on the
samples selected by a certified institution in accordance
with the standards issued by China Ginsengs Products
Standardisation Technical Committee.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(a)

(c)

Estimation of biological assets (continued)

The quantities and the grading of the wild ginsengs
cannot be measured at exact precision. The estimates
are based on many factors that require evaluation by the
ginsengs experts interpreting the available data, as well
as the market prices and other factors. The reliability of
these estimates at any point of time depends on both the
quality and quantity of the data, the expected statistic
deviation as well as the expert judgement.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and other non-current
assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and other
non-current assets have suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note
2.11.
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These

The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been

calculations require the use of estimates (Note 10). Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact carrying value of goodwill
and other non-current assets and impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

Estimated impairment of a logistics building included
in property, plant and equipment

Included in property, plant and equipment was a logistics
building located in Jiamusi, the PRC with carrying amount
of RMB208 million at 30 June 2020. The Group performs
impairment assessment when there is an indication
whether property, plant and equipment have suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in Note 2.11. During the year, the Group
had utilised certain areas of the logistics building as
warehouse for its distribution business and continued
to seek out its opportunities to develop the logistics
business. In view of the loss sustained by the distribution
business and the current low usage rate as warehousing
for the Distribution segment, management considered
that there were indicators of impairment of the logistics
building existed at 30 June 2020 and performed an
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

198

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of a logistics building included
in property, plant and equipment (continued)
impairment assessment thereon. The recoverable
amounts of the logistics buildings included in property,
plant and equipment have been determined based on
depreciated replacement cost (the “DRC") approach
based on a valuation performed by an independent
and qualified professional valuer. The DRC approach
requires an estimation of the new replacement cost of
the assets from which deductions are then made to allow
for physical deterioration and all forms of obsolescence
and optimisation.

Impairment of investment in an associate

The management of the Group carries out review on
impairment on the interest in an associate whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that its
carrying amount may not be recoverable by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of the value in use and
fair value less cost of disposal) with its carrying amount.

In determining whether the interest in an associate is
impaired, it requires an estimation of its recoverable
amount, which represents higher of the value in use
and fair value less cost of disposal. For the value in use,
it requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the operations of the investment
and from the ultimate disposal and a discount rate (that
reflects the current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the associate)
in order to calculate the present value. For the fair
value less cost of disposal, the valuation techniques
applied by the independent and qualified professional
valuer have been agreed with the management of the
Group. The management determined whether valuation
techniques and assumptions applied are appropriate
to the circumstances of the investment. The estimation
of recoverable amount of investment included some
assumptions not supported by observable market prices or
rates. Change in assumption could affect the recoverable
amount of the investment. Where the recoverable amount
of the Group's interest in an associate is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss may arise.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(e) Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for trade and other receivables by using various
inputs and assumptions including risk of a default and
expected loss rate. The estimation involves high degree
of estimation and uncertainty which is based on the
Group's historical information, existing market conditions
as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables.

Estimated useful lives of trademarks, licenses and brand
loyalty and property, plant and equipment

The useful lives of trademarks, licenses and brand loyalty
and property, plant and equipment are determined
by the management of the Group as further detailed
in Notes 2.9(b) and 2.7 respectively. This estimate is
based on the management’s experiences in the industry.
The Group will increase or decrease the amortisation/
depreciation charge where useful life is shorter or
longer than previously estimated. The estimate of useful
lives of the trademarks, licenses and brand loyalty and
property, plant and equipment and the amortisation/
depreciation charge could change significantly as a
result of changes in the pharmaceutical market, market
trend and competition. Management will increase the
amortisation/depreciation charge where useful life is less
than the previously estimated, or the trademark and
brand loyalty and property, plant and equipment will be
written-off or written-down to the recoverable amount
when there is an indication that the carrying amount is

not recoverable.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

200

(9)

Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be charged. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates
to discount future lease payments since interest rates
implicit in the leases are not readily determinable. In
determining the discounts rates for its leases, the Group
refers to a rate that is readily observable as the starting
point and then applies judgement and adjusts such
observable rate to determine the incremental borrowing
rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI

Year ended 30 June 2020

BE_Z-_ZTFNA=1+BILEE

REVENUE 5. s
The Group has recognised the following amounts relating to REED N ER AR T E AR
revenue in profit or loss: HWEH
2020 2019
—EIEF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT
Revenue from contracts with customers (a) K BZEF AL (a) 1,510,126 2,424,416

(a) Disaggregation of revenue

(a) Wmz#ln

To better reflect current and future business development
of the Group, the Retails | and Retails Il segments have
been aggregated into a single reportable segment as
further detailed in Note 6. Accordingly, the comparative
figures of the below disaggregation of revenue
information have been re-presented in order to conform
to the current year's presentation.

BE T RAEE H Bl MR RAE
HEE  TEIRTEINIE A O

RE—

ENE BE— LB

M6 o BEUL - ATz 2 45
BRI BRMFEEINATEARF
EL0ER I

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE_Z_ZFAA=+ALFE

Distributions Retails Total
2 Z2E€ wst
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARMT T ARMTFT
Major products FTEEM
Prescribed drugs BB 191,259 124,609 315,868
Non-prescribed drugs SRR T B 803,147 395,181 1,198,328
Healthcare products {REE R 125,369 160,683 286,052
Other pharmaceutical products Hb B %E M 57,303 33,922 91,225
1,177,078 714,395 1,891,473
Eliminations K 85 (381,347) - (381,347)
Revenue from external customers 2R B/MNIBE P R HES 795,731 714,395 1,510,126
Timing of revenue recognition: RS TSR RERS -
Products transferred at a point in EmAE—FEBER
time 795,731 714,395 1,510,126

AEFEREERZERERDE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W (&)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (continued) (a) Wmz#lin (&)
For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE_Z-—NFRNA=ZTHILEE

Distributions Retails Total
7 8H =8 #Et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFIT AREFT
(Restated)
(45 E3)
Major products FTEEM
Prescribed drugs BB 309,833 197,715 507,548
Non-prescribed drugs E Sk -2 1,316,759 609,250 1,926,009
Healthcare products {RIE R 185,151 242,999 428,150
Other pharmaceutical products H B 85 106,112 46,026 152,138
1,917,855 1,095,990 3,013,845
Eliminations i (589,429) - (589,429)
Revenue from external customers 2R B 5MBE P RIUES 1,328,426 1,095,990 2,424,416
Timing of revenue recognition: WS TR
Products transferred at a point in EmAE R BER
time 1,328,426 1,095,990 2,424,416
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEPEF
The Board of Directors is the Group’s chief operating BEEERAEENERKEERERE - &
decision-maker. Management has determined the operating BEERBEEFESMNIRERKLTHE
segments based on the information reviewed by the Board AMBEHHNEREELLD B
of Directors for the purposes of allocating resources and
assessing performance.
The Group is principally engaged in the distributions and AREEFEETBERILREFER R
retails of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the HipBEEERN D HRTERY - Bilg
northeastern region of the PRC. Individual financial information MHhprETEEH(BE) - JEBEK
and management reports of the retails with strategic stores Rz TEEH(EENDNERHY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

("Retails 1"), retails consisting of non-strategic stores (“Retails
I1"). To better reflect current and future business development
of the Group, the Retails | and Retails |l segments have been
aggregated into a single reportable segment in order to
present a more systematic and structured segment information
on the performance of different type of products for the
year ended 30 June 2020. The segment information for the
year ended 30 June 2019 has been re-presented in order to
conform with the current presentation.

Distributions and Others are presented to the Board of
Directors to assess their performance and for making
respective business decisions. Distributions, Retails and
Others are considered to be three segments in accordance
with IFRS 8 "Operating Segment”. The “Others” segment
mainly comprises investment companies.

The Group's principal market is the northeastern region of
the PRC. The Group has a large number of customers, which
are widely dispersed within the northeastern region of the
PRC, no single customer accounted for 10% or more of the
Group's total revenues for the years ended 30 June 2020 and
2019. Accordingly, no geographical segment is presented.

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost. The revenue from
external customers and the costs, the total assets and the
total liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with that
of the Group's consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted
loss before interests, tax, depreciation and amortisation
("Adjusted EBITDA"). The measurement basis of Adjusted
EBITDA excludes the effect of share of post-tax results of
joint ventures, share of post-tax results of an associate, share-
based payment expenses, impairment loss or its reversal on
goodwill and other intangible assets and impairment loss or
its reversal on investment in an associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
The segment information for the year ended 30 June 2020 HE_Z-ZTFA=THILEFEER
and as at 30 June 2020 is as follows: —E_TEERNAZTHNSBERN
T

For the year ended 30 June 2020
BE-T-BFAACSTRLEE

Distributions Retails Others Total
ik} ZE£ Hi% ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT AREFT ARBFT AREFT

Segment revenue DEW 1,177,078 714,395 - 1,891,473
Inter-segment revenue 2R (381,347) - - (381,347)
Revenue from external customers REINPE P Y 795,731 714,395 - 1,510,126

Adjusted EBITDA RABRRAERBHA
N (135,395) (313,017) (6,625) (455,037)

Impairment loss on goodwill and other EERHEMENEERE
intangible assets B8 - (11,809) - (11,809)
Depreciation and amortisation FrEREH (15,691) (27,957) - (43,648)
Finance income B A 954 1,841 6,791 9,586
Finance costs TR A (167) (2,027) ) (2,198)
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures  AMAGERARIEREE - 103 - 103
Share of post-tax results of an associate AEBERARTEEE 10,777 - - 10,777
Income tax (expenses) credit FiER(Ax )% (2,390) 1,145 - (1,245)
(Loss) profit for the year ER(B8)NE (141,912) (351,721) 162 (493,471)

Additions of non-current assets (excluding JFEREIEEREM(TEIE
financial assets and deferred tax assets) SREEREEFHIEE
E) 30,813 82,951 - 113,764
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IR R B L

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

6. PWERE)
As at 30 June 2020
R-ZE-ZFXA=1H

Distributions Retails Others Total
ik | 2E Hi % @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET ARETL AREFR
Total assets before eliminations KENEELRE 1,898,920 781,190 1,438,192 4,118,302
Inter-segment assets DBEEE (769,306) (521,178) (1,332,716) (2,623,200)
Total assets BERE 1,129,614 260,012 105,476 1,495,102
Total liabilities before eliminations BB EEE 1,116,682 838,069 24,491 1,979,242
Inter-segment liabilities HBEEE (985,469) (721,239) (22,786) (1,729,494)
Total liabilities BEARE 131,213 116,830 1,705 249,748
Investments in joint ventures BERTIMRE - 9,349 - 9,349
Investment in an associate BANFIRE 318,301 - - 318,301
AEEEREEZERERAT FEHRE2019/20 205



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER (&)
The segment information for the year ended 30 June 2019 HE_Z-NFRA=ZTHILEFEER
and as at 30 June 2019 is as follows: —E-NFRNAZTHHSHERD
T

For the year ended 30 June 2019
BEZZ-NERA=TRILEE

Distributions Retails Others Total
54 e Oy a3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Restated)
(#&5))
Segment revenue Piflzs 1,917,855 1,095,990 = 3,013,845
Inter-segment revenue AEbkaE (589,429) = = (589,429)
Revenue from external customers RENEEPHNRE 1,328,426 1,095,990 - 2,424,416
Adjusted EBITDA LA ERBHEATE (80,763) (129,967) (41,482) (252,212)
Share-based payment expenses RARAER (2,874) (5,042) (2,523) (10439)
Reversal of impairment loss on investment in an BEAFREREFEEE

associate (Note 13) (Hit13) 4,834 - - 4,834
Depreciation and amortisation FERBH (14,100) (9,652) - (23,752)
Finance income BEBA 3,456 1,789 6,328 11,573
Finance costs SRR (123) (161) (14) (299)
Share of post-tax results of joint ventures NERERTBRHESE - 363 - 363
Share of post-tax results of an associate MEBE RGBT EE 6,065 - - 6,065
Income tax expenses FERRY (644) (2,593) - (3,237)
Loss for the year FEER (84,149) (145,263) (37,691) (267,103)

Additions of non-current assets (excluding financial FERBEEREN(TEELEHE
assets and deferred tax assets) EREEREEE) 46 108 - 154
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IR R B L

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DWBER(E)
As at 30 June 2019
RZE-N& A=1H

Distributions Retails Others Total
K TE ELUES/ S @it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ANEETFT ANREFL AREFT AREFT

(Restated)

(42 Z5)
Total assets before eliminations HEMEELS 2,139,303 1,011,163 1,436,890 4,587,356
Inter-segment assets PHEEE (685,203) (578,485) (1,320,328) (2,584,016)
Total assets BELSE 1,454,100 432,678 116,562 2,003,340
Total liabilities before eliminations BENERER 1,273,368 721,087 28,701 2,023,156
Inter-segment liabilities PEEARE (1,099,843) (626,784) (26,982) (1,753,609)
Total liabilities Elerits 173,525 94,303 1,719 269,547
Investments in joint ventures BERARE - 9,246 - 9,246
Investment in an associate BENRRE 307,524 = = 307,524

The amounts provided to the Board of Directors with respect

to total assets are measured in a manner consistent with that

of these consolidated financial statements. These assets are

allocated based on the operations of the segment and the

physical location of the assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB HRaRM

Year ended 30 June 2020

BE—_Z_FTF NA=THILEE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

7. Y% BERRE

Furniture and Leasehold
Buildings ~ Motor vehicles  office equipment ~ improvements Total
g7 BH  RARBORE HEXE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFTL AEEFT AREF AREFT AREFTL
For the year ended 30 June ~ EIZ=Z—-NF A=THLE
2019 £g
Opening net book amount ~ H#IEEEFE 252,062 5,636 13,409 7,465 278,572
Additions 10 - - 136 - 136
Disposals RE - (288) (331) - (619)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - (747) (16) (763)
Depreciation (Note 27) FEHi#27) (12,746) (1,984) (4,279) (2,506) (21,515)
Closing net book amount AREEFE 239,316 3,364 8,188 4,943 255,811
As at 30 June 2019 RZZ-NERA=TH
Cost R 268,148 13473 42,485 74,968 399,074
Accumulated depreciation 2ETE (28,832) (10,109) (34,297) (70,025) (143,263)
Net book amount REFE 239,316 3,364 8,188 4,943 255,811
For the year ended 30 June HZE=F-FEAA=tHL
2020 FE
Opening net book amount R FE 239,316 3,364 8,188 4,943 255,811
Additions byl 21,350 - 1,253 91,161 113,764
Disposals BE - - (143) - (143)
Depreciation (Note 27) wEHF27) (12,745) (1,255) (3,819) (10,792) (28,611)
Closing net book amount BREARE 247,921 2,109 5,479 85,312 340,821
As at 30 June 2020 R-B-BEXA=1RH
Cost A 289,498 13,473 41,699 166,129 510,799
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (41,577) (11,364) (36,220) (80,817) (169,978)
Net book amount REFE 247,921 2,109 5,479 85,312 340,821
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IR R B L

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. Y% - BERRH(£Z)

Depreciation expenses have been charged to profit or loss BERNBRNITEERNAT :
as follows:
2020 2019
b St 1 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AT T

Administrative expenses THFRX 13,547 13,134
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R R 15,064 8,381
28,611 21,515

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 8. HAREENRHESR

Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land use rights Properties Total
TiERE IES A5t
RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFRT ARETR

For the year ended 30 June 2020 BE-Z-ZEERAZtHLEE

Opening net book amount HRREFE - - -
Recognition upon adoption of IFRS 16 FLANEIFR B 15 5 & 22 Rl 55165 1A FERR 5,354 35,447 40,801
Depreciation (Note 27) WE(H27) (134) (12,803) (12,937)
Closing net book amount AREEFE 5,220 22,644 27,864
As at 30 June 2020 R-E-ZFXA=1H

Cost AR 5,354 35,447 40,801
Accumulated depreciation 2EtHE (134) (12,803) (12,937)
Net book amount REEE 5,220 22,644 27,864
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=

210

ended 30 June 2020
—E-FESNA=THLEEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 8. FHA#ESERHBEEESEE(E)

(continued)

2020
—EEH
RMB’000
AR¥TFx

Lease liabilities HEAE
ENERER 7>

FEBNEREE

Current portion

Non-current portion

10,211
3,930

14,141

The Group's right-of-use assets in respect of land use
rights and properties represent the prepaid operating lease
payment of leasehold lands located in the PRC and leases
of various retail stores, offices and warehouses respectively.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 5
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain similar terms and conditions. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants.

Until 30 June 2019, lease of retail stores, offices and warehouses
were classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases were charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. Prepaid operating lease
payments in respect of leasehold lands were recorded in land
use rights and amortisation was charged to profit or loss on
a straight line basis over the period of the leases.

From 1 July 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group, except for
short-term leases and low-value assets. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. Prepaid
lease payments in respect of leasehold lands and properties
in the PRC previously classified as land use rights and
prepayments were also reclassified as right-of-use assets.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IR R B L

Year ended 30 June 2020
&E—?—?fﬁ/\ﬂ +E|Jt¢ﬁ

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 8. FHA#ESERHBEEESRE(E)
(continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued) EREEREE)
At 30 June 2020, the weighted average incremental borrowing RZZE_TFERA=1TH Ax&£EH
rate for the lease liabilities of the Group was 8.61% per annum. EEBEOMETHEEERFNER
8.61% °
The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year: REBDHER NI AFESHE :
2020 2019
ZECEF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ABR®TT

Lease payments: HERT
Short-term leases &,ﬁﬂfﬂﬂ 75,944 -
Low-value assets KEEEE 173 =

Rental expenses for lease previously ZRIIRIEEIBER 2T ERE 17D EALEE
classified as operating leases under FMEMHAEZHEFAL

IAS 17 - 96,648
Expenses recognised in profit or loss 1Bz NAERRAF X 76,117 96,648
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREEAE 11,239 =
Interests on lease liabilities HEAERNE 2,017 =
Total cash outflow for leases HERES L% 89,373 96,648
Commitments under leases HEAE
At 30 June 2020, the Group was committed to RMB44,561,000 NRTZE-ZTFA=+H  ANEERE
for short-term leases. HATR EAE AR #44,561,0007T °
At 30 June 2019, the future aggregate minimum lease payments N_ZE—NFRNA=TH  TRAEEL
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: EHEETHRERKERENFETEN

™
RMB’000
AR®Fr
Not later than 1 year 1FE AR 53,264
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1F A BB BERSF 25,098
78,362
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Year

=

10.

212

ended 30 June 2020
—E-FESNA=THLEEE

LAND USE RIGHTS

Land use rights represent cost paid for leasehold land in the

PRC. The cost is amortised over the leasehold period. Upon
the adoption of IFRS 16 at DIA, the land use rights in respect
of leasehold land in the PRC are presented under right-of-

use assets as set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial

T bt A

T E AR NP EAE LK
AR o ZEANHE S - REXER
B ERAABIBR I IS R S BRI 1657 1%
ERTEEEL L EREZIIRN
BH SRR T EE A EER

statements. e
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 10. B EE
Trademarks, Contractual
licenses and supplier Computer
Goodwill brand loyalty relationship  software licences Total
EiE - HRRkmE
B BHAE  ANEEEEER  SKEMTIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFT AREFTL AREFT ARET AREFT
(Notes (b), () (Notes (a), (c)) (Note (c) (Note (a))
(Hizt(b) +(c) (i) () (Hizt(c) (i)
For the year ended 30 June BZ=FB-AEAA=tHL
2019 FE
Opening net book amount R FE 8,918 6,544 = 1,098 16,560
Additions 1 - - - 18 18
Amortisation charge (Note 27) 5B (#/:#27) - (1,826) - (276) (2,102
Closing net book amount BREDFE 8,918 4718 - 840 14,476
As at 30 June 2019 R=Z-NERRZTH
Cost B 551,216 185,301 41,775 2,356 780,648
Accumulated amortisation RatEE - (50,491) (35,375) (1,51) (87,382)
Accumulated impairment ZERE (542,298) (130,092) (6,400) - (678,790)
Net book amount REFE 8,918 4,718 - 840 14,476
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

10. B EE(E)

Trademarks, Contractual
licenses and supplier Computer
Goodwill brand loyalty relationship software licences Total
B8 HERAR
HE THE  ANHEBEE ERE4STR b
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARBTFT ARETT
(Notes (b), (c)) (Notes (a), (c)) (Note (c)) (Note (a))
(Biztb) ~ (c) (Hizt(a) - (c) (Hiz(c) (Hiit(a)
For the year ended 30 June BZ-E-BEAA=tHL
2020 EE
Opening net book amount 4R 3 8,918 4,718 - 840 14,476
Amortisation charge (Note 27) ESEE R (#1#27) - (1,827) - (273) (2,100)
Impairment pENED (8,918) (2,891) - - (11,809)
Closing net book amount HRRHEE - - - 567 567
As at 30 June 2020 RZE-FEXE=1H
Cost S 551,216 185,301 4,775 2,356 780,648
Accumulated amortisation EHE 3 - (52,318) (35,375) (1,789) (89.482)
Accumulated impairment 2itRE (551,216) (132,983) (6,400) - (690,599)
Net book amount RERE - - - 567 567
(@) Amortisations of the Group's intangible assets for the (a) AEBRBE_Z_FTFA=T
year ended 30 June 2020 amounted to RMB2,100,000 HEFENREFEEHHARK
(2019: RMB2,102,000) have been charged to profit or loss 2,100,000 t( —F—NF : ARK

as administrative expenses.

2,102,00070) EfEATTEAY 818
B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020

@E—v—vﬁz/\ﬂ +E|_|J:£E}_\_

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

214

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and other related non-

current assets

Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of distribution and
retail businesses in prior periods and other related
non-current assets which are closely related (including
property, plant and equipment, rights-of-use assets and
other intangible assets such as trademarks, licenses and
brand loyalty and contractual supplier relationship) were
allocated to the operating segments of Distributions and
Retails (“CGUs"), and were monitored at the respective
operating segment levels.

The recoverable amounts of all CGUs are determined by
the management, with assistance from an independent
and qualified professional valuer, based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rates stated below. The growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for
the business in which the CGUs operates.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based
on past performance and its expectations of market
development and its business strategy. The weighted
average growth rates used are consistent with the
management forecasts. The discount rates used are
pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
business. The key assumptions used for value-in-use
calculations are as follow:

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20

0. B EE(E)

(b)

BERAEMEEERSEERE
A
RBERREWED H R TEXBE
EHEE LR YEEEME
RIFRBEE(BEYE  BER
R ERAREEREMELEE
(iR - SR G B E A &
BHRHRERERBE))GOEEDH
&?%2%« = 7 8B (FIHQEE
fr])  WIREZLEDABEm#E

ﬁl_T}L °

FIEREEEBEMRAIKEI 5T
HEREBEB NG ERERMAE
e B TIRIBEREETEM
B - BEGtEIREEERLEN
hFERMBEENRAIRERETR
Al - BRAFHNREREANIRT
AR RIS o RET
HEREeELBUKLERBHNRS
TR -

EEERBEBERENETISER

F TR R A B B 575 5K B SR TEDRI £ A

Ko FIERARINEFHERRET

BEMTARE— - FAIRAMITER

RBMBILL R - W = BRAERE RS EY

%EH - ERBEFEMMNE
EREWT



10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& O AR R MY A

Year ended 30 June 2020

&5—7—7¢/\H —i—EJJ:E'Eﬁ

BILEE(E)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and other related non- (b) BERHMEEFERBEERE

current assets (continued)

BRI (E)

Distributions 2020 2019
788 —ERCEF —F-NF
Gross margin FER= 5% - 10% 5.6% — 10%
Growth rate in the projection period  TEAIHAAIE KX 1.5% - 5% 1.5% — 8%
Long-term growth rate beyond the #BETERIHIZ RAPE RE

projection period 1.5% 1.5%
Pre-tax discount rate AT IR & 17% 17%
Retails 2020 2019
Z2E —E-BF —ZE-NEF
Gross margin EF = 23% - 30% 23% — 30%
Growth rate in the projection period — FEAIHI A & & 1.5% - 5% 1.5% — 5%
Long-term growth rate beyond the HAMETERIA 2 KREAIERE

projection period 1.5% 1.5%
Pre-tax discount rate BATHTIR & 17% 17%

Due to the economic performances of Retails segment
were worse than expected, impairment loss on goodwill
and other intangible assets which are closely related to
Retails segment for an amount of RMB8,918,000 (2019:
Nil) and RMB2,891,000 (2019: Nil) respectively were
charged to profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Following the decision on the provision for impairment
loss of goodwill and other intangible assets for the
year ended 30 June 2020, the Group reassessed the
depreciation policies of its property, plant and equipment
and estimated that their useful lives would not be affected.
No property, plant and equipment was impaired as at 30
June 2020 and 2019.

HREED AL ERB LTS
= BEZT-FTFAA=1+AHLE
FE BETEHBRYEB2HE
kEMEFEEREBERESBEAR
#8,918,0007L( =T — N5 : &)
&}\Eﬁgzsmoooﬂ:%—h
FE)BHRIE BNk

EEHZE—_ZT-TFA=TAHL
FEBENMAMEL EERERBE
BER AEEEHIGETEDY
¥ BEARBZWERK I
ﬁ#ﬁ#mTﬁ%¢%$@ﬁ%
2 - RN_ZT_TEFER_ZF-NAEFERX
= = ﬁﬂ%% B e 5t
IE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

(b) Impairment tests for goodwill and other related non-

current assets (continued)

The following is a summary of goodwill and other

intangible assets allocation for each operating segment

for the year ended 30 June 2020:

10. BMLEE (&)

(b) MERHEMARERDEERE
Al ()
BE_Z-_TFXAZ+ALF
B UTRSELHBOHERE
th R EE S RHME -

Goodwill Opening Impairment Closing
[i5E LRk WE AR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARMF T ARMFTT
Distributions 7 8H - - -
Retails e 8,918 (8,918) -
8,918 (8,918) -
Other intangible assets Opening  Amortisation Impairment Closing
HtBpEE LIk e B R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARMF T AREFTT AREFT
Distributions i - - - -
Retails =8 4,718 (1,827) (2,891) -
4,718 (1,827) (2,891) -
(c) Movement of accumulated impairment (c) BitFEZH

Trademarks, Contractual

licenses and brand supplier
Goodwill loyalty relationship Total

B8 HRR ARRE
HE mESHE BER @zt
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT AEETT AEETT ANEETT
As at 1 July 2018 R=Z-N\EtA-A (582,562) (131,200) (14,027) (727,789)

Realised upon disposals/de-registration % /M B A AEEH
of subsidiaries 40,264 1,108 7,627 48,999
As at 30 June 2019 and 1 July 2019  R=B-AEXB=tARK

ZE-NEtA-H (542,298) (130,092) (6,400) (678,790)
Addition & (8,918) (2,891) - (11,809)
As at 30 June 2020 R=ZZ-ZFXA=1H (551,216) (132,983) (6,400) (690,599)
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11. SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE_ZT

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
= = fE/\)ﬁ +E|Jt¢ﬁ

1. HBAF

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries at 30 AR ZZEZTFA=THHEAN
June 2020: TEENRBALAR :
Proportion of Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares  ordinary shares held
Place/date of incorporation  Principal activities and Particulars of issued ~ directly held by ~held by the Group by non-controlling
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation share capital  the Company (%) (%) interests (%)
HALEE/ AAERREE AREFREER FEREDFELE
£# BAREARREL TERBREENY BRTRARE BRI LA %) HREL A%
Hong Kong Health Century Hong Kong Investments holding and HKD1,001 100% 100% -
International Group Limited 15 September 2010 retailing drugs and other
Limited liabilities company pharmaceutical products
Hong Kong
BRERt AR EEERAA ?ﬂ% RERRREEENRAME 100157
5= @hﬂ+ﬂ5 2En
EREMLRA &%
Hebei Jintian Yan Xiao Pharmaceutical ~ the PRC Wholesaling drugs and other RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Co, Ltd. * 27 December 2005 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company  the PRC
AL ERHEREARAA A HEENRALERER ARH30,0000007
“EERFtCACtER HE
BREMRA
Heilongjiang Jintian Aixin the PRC Wholesaling drugs and other USD92,310,000 - 100% -
Pharmaceutical Distribution Co., 12 February 2004 pharmaceutical products
Ltd. * Limited liabilities company  the PRC
ERITAERELEEABARLA ¢ﬁ HEENRANERER 923100057
“EEQMECATCA hE
BREMRA
Heilongjiang Jintian Aixin the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB1,000,000 - 100% -
Pharmaceutical Chain Co,Ltd. * 23 June 2005 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company ~ the PRC
EETA RO EEERERAR ¢ﬁ SEENRANERER ARH1,000,0007
5 Eﬂﬂ t=B 4
BREAR
Jiamusi Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical  the PRC Wholesaling drugs and other RMB15,000,000 - 100% -
Co, Ltd. * 15 July 1998 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company ~ the PRC
EAEERBLEERRAT Gile7 HEBNR A EEED ABR#15,0000007%
—ANELATRR hE
EREMAR

AEFERERZRERAT FEHRE2019/20

217



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

11. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

1. HBAR(E)

218

Proportion of

Proportion of

Proportion of

ordinary shares  ordinary shares  ordinary shares held
Place/date of incorporation  Principal activities and Particulars of issued ~ directly held by ~held by the Group by non-controlling
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation share capital ~ the Company (%) (%) interests (%)
MRS/ ARUERREE AREMREER FERERAEEE
£# REREARREL TERHREENE BERTRAHE BIRLA%) tHi(%) TREEBI%)
Jiamusi Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical ~ the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMBS5,000,000 - 100% -
Chain Co,, Ltd. * 14 April 2004 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company  the PRC
ERARELERERARLT 9 SERNRAMESER  ARESHOONT
“TEMEMATHA i
EREAAT
Jilin Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical the PRC Wholesaling drugs and other RMB1,000,000 - 100% -
Distribution Co., Ltd. * 4 December 2007 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilties company ~the PRC
EMEEREDERLHARAT il HEFIRADERER ARE1,000,0007
ZERtETCARA i
EREALT
Jinzhou Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain  the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMBS500,000 - 100% -
Co, Ltd* 16 January 2012 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company ~ the PRC
AMeRELBEERERAR ik SERNRANEEER ARH500,0007C
“2-5-A1/H HE
EREEAT
Dagjng Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain  the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB3,000,000 - 100% -
Co, Ltd. * 6 September 2007 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company ~ the PRC
ARERELERERARAT R TERNREMEEER  ARE3000000T
“ERLEAARR e
EREARA
Harbin Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain -~ the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB5,000,000 - 100% -
Co, Ltd. * 18 April 2005 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company ~ the PRC
RRAE RO EREHARAA R TERNREMEEER  ARES00000T
“ZEREMATIA ke
BREMARA
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11. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

By B (4F)

Proportion of Proportion of Proportion of
ordinary shares  ordinary shares ordinary shares held
Place/date of incorporation  Principal activities and Particulars of issued ~ directly held by ~held by the Group by non-controlling
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation share capital  the Company (%) (%) interests (%)
MRS/ FRREREEE AREFMNEER FERERFREE
£# BRREARREL TERHREENE BERTRAHE BIRHLI) (%) HRb A
Shenyang Wei Kang Drug Store Chain ~ the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Co, Ltd. * 24 October 2001 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company ~ the PRC
B REEEHARA e SEENRAHEEER AR30,0000007
ZTT-ETACMA HE
EREAAT
Shenyang Weishi Pharmaceutical Co., ~the PRC Wholesaling drugs and other RMB5,000,000 - 100% -
Ld. * 27 October 2013 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company ~ the PRC
Bt EEARAA i HEBORAMERER  ARES0000007
“EEPACHER B
EREAAT
Suihua Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical — the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB3,800,000 - 99.04% 0.96%
Mall Chain Co,, Ltd. * 8 April 2003 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company  the PRC
ZeRFOESANEHERRE P8 SEENR A EEER AR 3,800,007
“EE-EMANA Giled
BREMRA
Tonghua Jinfeng Pharmacy Chain Co., ~ the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB1,100,000 - 100% -
Ltd. * 9 December 2010 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company ~ the PRC
Bl HEAEREHARAR GilE? SERNRANERER ARH1,100,0007
3-RELAAA B
ERERAR
Jiamusi Golden Sky Storage Co., Ltd *  the PRC Storage RMB1,520,000 - 100% -
07 June 2016 the PRC
Limited liabilities company
EREERERRARAT T A ARH1,520 0007
2 NE AR e
ERERAR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

in the opinion of the directors, are significant to the revenue

for the year or form a substantial portion of total assets of

the Group. The directors consider that giving details of other

subsidiaries would result in particulars of excessive length.

There were no material transactions with non-controlling
interests during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.

*

English translation for identification purposes only.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020

=

—E_EAASTALEE

12. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

220

2020 2019

— —E-hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

At beginning of the reporting period RS HIA) 9,246 8,883
Share of post-tax results DIEBIEEE 103 363
At end of the reporting period AREHR 9,349 9,246

Set out below are the joint ventures of the Group as at 30
June 2020 and 2019. The entities listed below have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held
by the Group. The country of incorporation or registration is
also their principal place of business, and the proportion of
ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting

NFRA=1TH

ELLBIAB[R]

TYXEHINAERR B _BFR_T—
B AR] o TS
EREFERLEAEERFEBERAORK
o FMATSEAMBER AL FEE
X2 mATF R REHIRER

rights held.
Place of % of ownership interest Carrying amount
business/ 52
country of L EER Measurement FHE
Name of entity incorporation 2020 2019 method 2020 2019
st/ ;
154 ERRLER k2 ZE-NE RERE k- k23 ZENE
(%) (%) RMB'000 RMB000
AEEFR NEETT
Yichun Nancha Haolianghe Limin Drug Store!  F&MAARER T EH R &R the PRC 30* 30* Equity method 708 724
HE Ewn
Jiamusi Jintian Aixin Medicine Limited EATEXZLEEERATAENL the PRC 50 50 Equity method 264 29
Fuyuan Wenmei Branch (formerly known BOR(GIERREEEE]) +E Enn
as "Fuyuan Drug Store")'
Jiamusi Jintian Aixin Medicine Limited Tieli ~ EAHEXRLEEERATERE the PRC 50 50 Equity method 667 683
Branch (formerly known as "Yichun NAEHERETEAREE ©E Eak
Nancha Huakang Drug Store”)’ G
Jianyikang Pharmaceutical Company Limited  Jianyikang Pharmaceutical Company ~ the PRC 50 50 Equity method 1710 7543
(formerly known as "Yichun Nancha Limited (ﬁﬂ%(@%ﬁﬁ@ﬁiﬁ e B
Jintian Drug Store frl)!
Total equity accounted investments RESINEAREEE 9,349 9,246
1 The English names of these companies represent management's best efforts at 1 ARZEARTEIME B BREL RS
translating the Chinese names of these companies as no English names have been T HEANEBAEEERNIBESEP LB
registered or available. AR
* The Company holds less than 50% of the equity interests in this entity. The * AREFEZEELDRS0%H AR - BEEER
management considers that this entity is jointly controlled entity of the Company R ZERERARANIERZHERE  REER
because its strategic operating, investing and financing activities are jointly HERGEE RERBREZHAAARRERE
controlled by the Company and the jointly controlled entity partners. HIE BB LI RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
All the joint ventures are engaged in the retail of drugs and
other pharmaceutical products in the PRC. They are strategic
partnership for the Group to fortify the market share and

regional development in the industry.

The joint ventures are drug stores and there are no quoted

market prices available for their shares.

The following amounts represent the Group's share of
assets, liabilities and results of the joint ventures that are

not individually material:

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
HE-_ZT-_TFEA=1+HIFE

12. BEQTRRE(E)

FiaA SARER B EEY b
BEEQTELYS - HEAKEEEA
FEIIBHERNRE SN E N
P o

WEELNRE AL  HRMHRE™
HIIE o

AEE LB EREANAE B AT
TEE  BRREESENT -

2020 2019
—g-%F  —2-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AT T

Assets BE

Non-current assets FERBEE 433 437

Current assets BN & E 8,937 9,019
9,370 9,456

Liabilities =N

Current liabilities mEAE (21) (210)

Net assets EEZFHE 9,349 9,246
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

12. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

12. RERRARE(E)

2020 2019
—g-gF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB‘000

AREFT ARETT

Revenue g 2,647 3,627
Expenses % (2,544) (3,264)
Profit after income tax BrATB R & FIE 103 363
There are no commitments and contingent liabilities relating to BEASBAAEER AR IE

the Group's interests in the joint ventures, and no contingent

liabilities of the joint ventures themselves.

13. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

CR-WNEIL
RSREE  TEARERRAGFEN

13. BELQRRE

2020 2019
—g-g8F  -T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARET T

At beginning of the reporting period %k Ei 4] 307,524 220,099
Addition 0 - 76,526
Share of post-tax results DIRBIREE 10,777 6,065
Reversal of impairment loss, net R (B 5 8 1 O] 5 5B - 4,834
At end of the reporting period ARREHR 318,301 307,524

As at 30 June 2020, Jilin Jintian Universal Health Capsule
Limited (“Jilin Jintian”) is an associate of the Group, in which
the Group owns 43.78% of equity interest (2019: 43.78%). Jilin
Jintian is a company incorporated in the PRC and its principal
businesses comprise manufacturing, sales and research and

development of hollow capsules in the PRC.

222 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20

R-ZF_FTEXA=TH &aHhEX
AEREEBRREARARATEME
RDAARESEBERR  ERAE
B % B43.78%M Em( —F — NLF:
43.78%) - HEME R — R B E M
XL Z AR] > EEBXBERENTEER
& HERAEELBE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the Group carried out reviews of the
recoverable amount of investment in an associate. The
recoverable amount, being the higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal, has been determined by the
Group’s management with reference to a valuation report
prepared by an independent and qualified professional
valuer using price-to-earnings (P/E) multiple model. The fair
value measurement for the Group's recoverable amount of
investment in an associate was categorised into Level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation technique
used. The average price-to-earnings multiples of comparable
companies of the corresponding industries is 36.97 times
and the discount rate applied for lack of marketability was
20%, which was estimated based on Asian Option Pricing
Model. Based on the results of the impairment assessment,
management concluded that neither additional provision for
nor reversal of impairment loss was recognised for the year
ended 30 June 2020.

In May 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of additional
7.4% equity interest in Jilin Jintin (the “Date of Acquisition”).
At the Date of Acquisition and 30 June 2019, the Group carried
out reviews of the recoverable amount of investment in an
associate with reference to the valuation reports prepared
by an independent and qualified professional valuer using
the P/E multiple model. The average P/E multiples of
comparable companies of the corresponding industries at
the Date of Acquisition and 30 June 2019 were 53.79 times
and 51.61 times respectively, and the discount rate for lack
of marketability of 20% was applied for both measurement
dates, which were estimated based on Asian Option Pricing
Model. Based on the results of the impairment assessments, a
net reversal of impairment loss of RMB4,834,000 (represented
an impairment loss of RMB22,596,000 was provided for the
additional 7.4% equity interest and a reversal of impairment
loss of RMB27,430,000 was recognised for the original 36.38%
equity interest for the year ended 30 June 2019).

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

13. BMELNARRE(E)

RZZB_ZTERA=1TH  AEEHH
ERERENAINO S EETES - 7]
YEeR(BERBERAABERY
ERAZEHE)CHASEEERER
2EBINAERNERGEMERT
BR(MAR)BHEVREHRZAER
EMETE - RIFFT A HE B H 83 A B
B AEBERBEARREN KD S
BMZARBEFEIERAABEER
FHE =R - HBETEABLBRARZ
FHHBXRFER36.97E - MEARZ
MG RA M ER TR K R20% - &
TyiR iz S\ B e (B R B fh 5T o EAOR
EFHEOER - BEEREL 82—
E_TFERNA=THILFEY EERR
SNRE BT 1R B f s B o

RZFE—NAFRATWKEBH] &
EETHKES NS REEEIN 4%
e AEBRBE —_T—NAFA=T
B AEBELREBINAGERHNEE
HEMERTARRGEEEARR Z (HE
HEHHE ARIREN IO S FEETT
B/E o AATENELRAFRIER
Wy —E-NFANA=ZtTHZFEITE
KAEB D R A53.7915 51.611% » RiZ
L2 ARrzmEnEEmEn
MITIR R 520% » HHiRE A BT
EBRAGE - ERRETENER - 8
E-E-AFEXRNA=THIEE B8t
BB O . A%RR FE E IR R (B B 1R 1 B ) 58
AR#4,834,0007T (FHE RNREBEA
R#22,596,0007C * A K 5t R 36.38% 0%
TETE SRR (A 5 18 7 B A R #527,430,000
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

13. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 13. BELARRE(E)
There are no commitments and contingent liabilities relating WRB BRSNS QAR 2 R
to the Group's interests in the associate, and no contingent RS REE  BWEBE NGRS 23k
liabilities of the associate itself. NEE -
Set out below are the summarised financial information for TXERINEHRERMBERE - Wik
Jilin Jintian, which is accounted for using equity methods. FRAEREARR -
Summarised balance sheet EESERME
2020 2019
—E-FF —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARKETT

Current B AR

Cash and cash equivalents BHeMREEEY 38,554 10,344
Other current assets Hitmns&E 52,961 64,277
Total current assets HREEEHAEE 91,515 74,621
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAM R FRIE 76,962 73,218
Total current liabilities mENEERE 76,962 73,218
Non-current JERNHEA

Intangible assets BIVEE 135,402 149,092
Other non-current assets HEMIEmBIEE 40,452 18,372
Total non-current assets FREEEARE 175,854 167,464
Non-current liabilities EmEIEE 17,938 21,014
Total non-current liabilities FREBEEERE 17,938 21,014
Net assets EEZFE 172,469 147,853
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

13. BMELNARRE(E)

GaE R E
2020 2019
—g-®F  -—T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBT T

Revenue Wz 112,485 81,234
Cost of sales SHE RN (61,185) (42,484)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAT (16,405) (15,004)
Administrative expenses THAX (1,202) (955)
Financial expenses — net W5 ERFE (87) (4)
Other income E A 212 6
Profit before income tax R BT 5% BT Al 33,818 22,793
Income tax expenses FifSHiAx (9,202) (5,951)
Profit and total comprehensive income FIER4&E WHEEHE 24,616 16,842

The information above reflects the amounts presented in
financial statements of the associate (and not the Group's share
of those amounts). The associate has adopted accounting
policies which are consistent with the Group’s significant
accounting policies. No dividends were received from the
associate during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.

BB R R BRER S N R SRR T2 5
ZER(ERKEALRDAEZELER)
ENRCRMEREEZTASAER
—HZEFHHR -BE_T_TFR-
E-NFRA=THLSFE  WRAR
B N AR R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

13. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
Reconciliation of summarised financial information
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in the
associate :

13. BWERRRE(HE)

B ERBR 2 YR
P25 15 B R 2 B H 0B 2 X R4
3 BRI E R $ B

2020 2019
—g-gF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARKTT

Net assets at beginning of the RBEMI 2 EEFE

reporting period 147,853 131,011
Profit for the year FEFE 24,616 16,842
Net assets at end of the reporting RIBEH KR 2 EEZFE

period 172,469 147,853
Share of net assets of the associate DEHEE N B & E/FE 75,507 64,730
Goodwill (EES 242,794 242,794
Carrying value BREE 318,301 307,524

14. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

14. BEEREAABEFARMERS

BmmEm TA
2020 2019
i —
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBT T

Unlisted equity instruments, at fair JEEM#EZET A @ BRAR(EE
value

15,474 23,319

The balance represents 11% equity interests in Wing Ming
International Group Holding Limited (“Wing Ming”) held by
the Group. The investment had been irrevocably designated
as at FVOCI following the adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.
The principal activity of Wing Ming is investment holding and
its subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacture and
sales of Chinese medicines and supplements in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

No equity instruments designated as at FVOCI was disposed
of during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019 and no
transfers of any cumulative gain or loss arising from equity
instruments designated FVOCI within equity during the years
ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were valued
by an independent and qualified professional valuer at the
end of the reporting period and a decrease in fair value of
RMB8,579,000 (2019: RMB1,286,000) was recognised in fair
value reserve (non-recycling) for the year ended 30 June
2020. The valuation techniques and significant inputs used
in the measurement of the fair values of the unlisted equity
investments are set out in Note 3.3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The carrying amount is denominated in the following currency:

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

14. BEEREIABEFARMRS

WENERTAE)

BE-_ZT-_TER-_F-NF A=+
HIEFE  #SMELEEEAREAREE
FAREMAE RGN ERTE - MEzE
—ECEFRIT-AFANA=THL
FE - BENERTERECARAR
BETAEMGERENESTAES
AR REH R B8 ©

FELTRERREZ AR BERBREHR
MBI REEBHNEEGHBEMMGE @ &
E_E-TFENAZTHIEFEE AR
BER D ARES,579,000c( = — 1
& AR¥E1,286,00070) ER AR EE
EE(TRIER)®R - ARGTEELT
EHIEE AR BENGERNTREKRES
ABBET R E I B HRERMEE33 -

FREEA T EBEHE :

2020 2019

—EEHF —ET-hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBTFT

HKD BIT 15,474 23,319
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Year ended 30 June 2020
@E—v—vi/\ﬂ +E_|J:£E}_\_

15. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

15. £EYEE
2020 2019
—E=-%fF —T—hiE
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETT

Wild ginsengs HEMKTS
At fair value BRAREE

97,662 93,621

On 21 June 2017, the Group acquired a forest land use right
and the wild ginsengs planted in this forest land from an
independent third party (the “Acquisition”). The forest land
is located in Tonghua City, Jilin Province in the PRC. Upon
completion of the Acquisition, the forest land use rights
and wild ginsengs are accounted for as land use right and
biological assets respectively.

The wild ginsengs are measured at fair value less costs to
sell. As at 30 June 2020, the fair value of wild ginsengs is
RMB97,662,000 (2019: RMB93,621,000). During the year ended
30 June 2020, the change in fair value of RMB4,041,000 (2019:
RMB5,931,000) is credited to profit or loss. Except for the
changes in fair value less costs to sell, there are no other
changes during the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019.

The fair values of the wild ginsengs as at 30 June 2020 and
2019 are estimated based on the valuation reports as of
respective dates issued by an independent and qualified
professional valuer using the statistical sampling method and
also taking into considerations of factors related to the wild
ginsengs as advised by ginsengs experts who are employed
by the valuer.

In determining the fair value of the wild ginsengs, significant
estimates and judgements in relation to quantities, grading
and market prices based on grading are involved in the
process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Valuation process

The Group engages a team of external experts, including
independent and qualified professional valuers and ginsengs
experts, to perform valuations of the Group's biological assets
for financial reporting purposes by using level 3 inputs. The
external experts report directly to the General Manager of
Finance (“GMF"). Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the GMF and external experts once
every six months in line with the Group's half-yearly reporting
requirements.

The main level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived and
evaluated as follows:

e The quantities of the wild ginsengs are determined
based on the statistical sampling method and also taking
into considerations of other factors related to the wild
ginsengs as evaluated by the ginsengs experts. As at 30
June 2020, the Group has an estimation of approximately
186,000 (2019: 178,000) wild ginsengs in accordance with
the valuation report issued by the valuer using statistic
techniques with an acceptable deviation estimated by
the Group.

e The wild ginsengs are graded according to quality of
growth and there can be a considerable wide spectrum
of grades that may affect the prices achieved. According
to the valuation reports as at 30 June 2020 and 2019, the
grading of the wild ginsengs is determined based on
the laboratory test results on the samples selected by
a certified institution in accordance with the standards
issued by China Ginsengs Products Standardization
Technical Committee.

e As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, the prices of the wild
ginsengs for various grades are quoted by reference to
the quotations obtained from certain trading companies
or pharmaceutical companies that purchase wild ginsengs
in their normal business.

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
HE-_ZT-_TFEA=1+HIFE

15. EMEE(E)

fHERE

AEBZE-XIIHERER(BES
URAEBNEREHEEMIMTZ2E
R) BBREAEMREBABRBEARE
BNAEYMEELTHE  (FHEHHRE
& o SN R E R MM AR ([ %
HEE RS - RNAAEEFYFER
EEVEK - MFAKIE RINEERE N
EABR—XEZ  SwbERZMAE
BAAER -

REBFT R EE 3% ABIE R
AN S IRGH REITRHE -

o HFEMNT2HHENREF HiE
EWEEMR T RER G A B
EMT2HEMERETE - R=ZF
—TEXNAZTH > AEERER
BERMEAZHERESERAAFEASE
B Gt 2 REEN AT BT
ETHEE 49186,0008( —F— NF :
178,0008% ) BFAEM T2 ©
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o HAMT2IREBEREEET
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Gk R e

Year

@E

455

230

ended 30 June 2020
—E-FESNA=THLEEE

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 15.

Valuation process (continued)

Changes in level 3 fair values are analysed at the end of each
reporting period during the valuation discussion between
the GMF and external experts. As part of this discussion the
external experts present a report that explains the reason for

the fair value movements.

Information about fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3):

EMEE(E)

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ(@
EIR2ABEEZHINEREN KA
PR AR AR IR I SRR B R R B (B 7T 7w HA A
ETHT - ERARRFTwWE—FED » Hb
MERRE-—NREFALABEE
RA e

EREANABRERGAZRBNAAEBE
FTEMRBEN (FE34R):

Range of inputs

Fair value as at Jun 2020 Unobservable (probability weighted average) Relationship of unobservable inputs to
Description RMB000  inputs As at 30 Jun 2020 fair value
R=B-2ERAZONEE BAREER(HENETY)
i ARETR FURRAAZE R-8-2FRA=tA TIREBANBRAABEZBR
Ginsengs 97,662 (2019: 93,621)  Selling prices at various grades RMBS00 - RMB30 per unit of wild The higher the grade, the higher the

ginsengs (2019: RMB500 - RMB650  selling price and the fair value
per unit of wild ginsengs)

T2 97,662 ZF-NE: 93621) TRERNER ﬁfﬁﬁE%TQ/\RWSOOfLi/\RW RRaE ERRAREEER
30T (ZF-NE : BEMELMT
ZARBS0TENRRON0T)
Quantity 186,000 wild ginsengs (2019: 178,000 The greater the quantity of wild
wild ginsengs) ginsengs, the higher the fair value
#E 1B 00RBEM TR (ZE-NE:  BENT2HSES ALEEER
178 00REEHT2)

Risk management strategy related to biological assets
The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its wild
ginsengs:

(a) Regulatory and environmental risks
The Group is subject to laws and regulations in the
PRC where it operates. The Group has established
environmental policies and procedures aimed at
compliance with local environmental and other laws.

(b) Climate and other risks
The Group's wild ginsengs are exposed to the risk of
damage from climatic changes, diseases, forest fires and
other natural forces. The Group has extensive processes
in place aimed at monitoring and mitigating those risks,
including regular forest health inspections and industry
pest and disease surveys.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IR R B L

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 16. IBIEFTEH
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred BEFEMEEMELEMERAES T
income tax liabilities is as follows: W
2020 2019
—ECER —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB‘000
AREFT AREFT
Deferred income tax assets EEFEHEE
- Deferred income tax assets to be recovered —R2EARREMEEREHEE
within 12 months 5,203 7,593
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFMEHEAR
- Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled ~— —RBB12{E AR EEMEENEHARE
after more than 12 months - (723)
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled  —FM2{E A RBERETHEHEE
within 12 months - (456)
- (1,179)
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B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

16. BEEFTSH (&)
FRELMEREERABNES N
TORFH R $H R — T 75 RDERE R A 45

during the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting

of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: fR):
Accrual for Accrual Deferred
employee forsales  advertising
Deferred income tax assets payroll  commissions expenses Provision Tax Loss Total
BEFMEHEE EiEEFE En#ERE BEREHEX B HEEE @t

RMBOOO ~ RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTL ARBTL ARBTL ARETL  ARETI

As at 1 July 2018 RZZ-/\§tA-H 9,699 - 550 349 900 11,498
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAF (642) - - - - (642)
Charged to profit or loss BE&R (2937) - - = (326) (3.263)
As at 30 June 2019 R-E-NFRA=TA 6,120 - 550 349 574 7,593
As at 1 July 2019 R=Z-nEtA-A 6,120 - 550 349 574 7,593
Charged to profit or loss BEER (1,467) - - (349) (574) (2,390)
As at 30 June 2020 R-B-ZEXA=1H 4,653 - 550 - - 5.203

Deferred income tax
liabilities arising from

Deferred income tax liabilities business combination

EBEHEED

ELEFEHAE ELEFEHEAE
RMB’000

AREFT

As at 1 July 2018 RZE—N\FtHA—H (1,636)
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE= 457
As at 30 June 2019 R-F-NFERA=TH (1,179
As at 1 July 2019 R=Z2-NFtHA—H (1.179)
Credited to profit or loss ST ABER 1,179

As at 30 June 2020

R=-ZB-_ZBFA=1H
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16. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
RMB304,312,000 (2019: RMB184,856,000) in respect of losses
amounting to RMB1,260,540,000 (2019: RMB781,786,000) that
can be carried forward against future taxable income. The
expiry years of tax losses for which no deferred tax assets

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
HE-_ZT-_TFEA=1+HIFE

16. EEEFTEBL(4E)

RNABIEphAEE 2 TR E B RERIRERT
SREE - HEUNBEBEREN S

BABERTRFSIRE AR - XEE
I AR 3L AT B A 18 FE R B UR A 188 2 518
AR #1,260,540, OOOR(_? NEF
A R #781,786,0007T ) ¥ R i & T 15

B E ARY304,312,000t( —ZE— A1
&F : AR#¥184,856,0007T) ° @%Iﬁﬁéﬂé

have been recognised at the end of the reporting period 2 8w F B (R & BRI R R IR
are as follows: MIBEE)INT :

2020 2019
ZBIRE —Z-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Tax losses without expiry date EIHA 2 HBEE 127,327 124,593
Tax losses expiring in year 2019 RZE—-NFIHz HIEEE - 43
Tax losses expiring in year 2020 RZZE-ZEI M HIEEE 5,800 5,800
Tax losses expiring in year 2021 RZZ=Z-F3H s HEEE 10,550 10,550
Tax losses expiring in year 2022 RZZ-—F3| B HEEE 362,645 362,645
Tax losses expiring in year 2023 RZZEZ=FI|H 2 HIEEE 278,155 278,155
Tax losses expiring in year 2024 B/Q\: “NEI B HIEBER 476,063 =
1,260,540 781,786

Dividends derived from the Company’s subsidiaries in the
mainland China earned after 1 January 2008 are subject to
withholding tax at the rate of 5%. For each reporting period,
the Group reassessed its needs to make distributions out of
its subsidiaries in the mainland China. As at 30 June 2020,
no provision for withholding tax has been made (2019: Nil),
as unremitted earnings of those subsidiaries in mainland
China are not expected to be distributed in the foreseeable
future. As at 30 June 2020, unremitted earnings amounted
to RMB637,638,000 (2019: RMB871,436,000).

RZZZENF—A—BERIRZEKEER
/J?EA$A AR BN B AR - WA
BRI - REWMEHHE - A
EEEGFEAFERNMHBATIEL S
ERER - RZE-FHEA=1A8 -
MR TEHARZ E B R K B A RlH R E
HRFHRAITE R SR DR - &
HENBELEARE(ZZ— LT :
m) c RZTETFA=+AH" 5&[
2 A AR 637,638,00070( ==
NE : AR¥5871,436,0007T) °
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

17. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

17. BT ESE

234

Financial assets
measured at

Designated FVOCI amortised cost Total
EEREANBERT REBHRATE
AR tRE WS HemEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
Financial assets SREE

As at 30 June 2020 R-ZE-ZEXA=1H
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEREIE - 119,643 119,643
Unlisted equity instruments FLmiERTA 15,474 - 15,474
Restricted cash XRAHRS - 45,229 45,229
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBLZEY - 131,317 131,317
15,474 296,189 311,663

As at 30 June 2019 RZZB-hAEXA=TH
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMEUGUR = 222,519 222519
Unlisted equity instruments JEEmiERTA 23,319 - 23,319
Restricted cash XRHEBEE - 38,058 38,058
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELZEY - 628,525 628,525
23,319 889,102 912,421
At amortised cost
REHR AT E
RMB’000
ARETFT

Financial liabilities SREME

As at 30 June 2020 R-ZE-ZEXA=1H
Lease liabilities HEBE 14,141
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFIE 183,573
197,714

As at 30 June 2019 RZZB-AFRA=1H
Trade and other payables 2o RAMENTE 215,675
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IR R B L

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EZ Rk H b EEW 1T
2020 2019
—E-BfF —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBT T

Trade receivables 2 5 WA
— Due from third parties —EWE = HIE 110,963 209,829
— Due from related parties — FEU B RS 77 TR IA 49 459
111,012 210,288
Prepayments SEUNE O
— Prepayments to third parties —TENE=H25E 56,074 48,659
— Tax input credits — value added tax —HEIEFIE — R ER 3,557 2,168
59,631 50,827
Other receivables H At peds50R
— Deposits —&® 2,666 2,898
— Consideration receivable — R E 913 4,838
— Others —HAh 5,052 4,495
8,631 12,231
Total 15T 179,274 273,346
Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of BEAEEE 5 KA EBFIAR AR
trade and other receivables is included in Note 3.1(b) to the B1E B R B & RIS & OF B 1 HR 2 B
consolidated financial statements. #£3.1(b) °
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@) The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

18.

BEZ RHEMBWREE)
(a) AKENE SR EMEEKARR
EAT OIS A :

2020 2019
—g-%5  —2-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARET T

RMB AR 177,616 267,975
HKD BIT 1,658 5,371
179,274 273,346
19. INVENTORIES 19. &
2020 2019
—B-BF —T-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARBT T

Finished goods LK m

310,858 302,137

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the cost of inventories
recognised as expense and included in cost of sales amounting
to RMB1,318,486,000 (2019: RMB2,091,598,000) (Note 27).

20. RESTRICTED CASH

20.

BE T -TFA=1THILFE W&
RERAZWAHENETNTFERE S
AR #1,318,486,000T( —FE— L4 :
AR#2,091,598,0007T) (Mf5£27) °

ZRERE
2020 2019
—g-gF —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARKTT

Restricted cash ZRHIRE

45,229 38,058

The balance of the restricted cash was pledged to secure
notes payable. As at 30 June 2020, the amount of trade
finance facilities utilised by the Group for issuance of notes
payables to its suppliers amounting to RMB45,229,000 (2019:
RMB37,941,000) (Note 25(b)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

20. RESTRICTED CASH (continued) 20. ZRFIRE (&)
All of the restricted cash was denominated in RMB. FIBEXRHIRESHAAREHE -
Interest rates on restricted cash, with maturities within one RZZE_EFA=1+H ' —FRF
year, ranging from 1.82% to 3.65% per annum as at 30 June HZREIRSHOFENEN F1.82%%F
2020 (2019: 1.30% to 4.20% per annum). 3.65% (ZE—NF : FRENF1.30%
£4.20%) °
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. BERRTEEY
2020 2019
—EB-FF —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBETT

Cash on hand EFRE 2,076 5,749
Bank balances IRITAEER 129,241 622,776
Total st 131,317 628,525
Bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on daily RITHERIRE BIRITERN E8)ZE A
bank deposit rates. SN
As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, the cash and bank balances R-EBE_FFER -_FT—AF A=+
were denominated in the following currencies respectively: B Re RRITERD BIA TG BT
=

2020 2019

—g=g8 -2 %

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ABR®TFT

RMB AREE 126,357 624,852
HKD BIT 3,835 2,678
usD eSS 1,125 995
Total 4t 131,317 628,525
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22. SHARE CAPITAL

22.

&N

Number of ordinary

Nominal value of

shares ordinary shares
EERYE EREREE
usD
E
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of USD0.001 each as at E",Y,?E& HE/\H TREREE
30 June 2020 and 2019 0.001ETThIE & 10,000,000,000 10,000,000

Issued and fully paid: BBITRAR :

Nominal value Equivalent

Number of of ordinary nominal value of
ordinary shares shares ordinary shares
ZEREE LTEREE SERZEEHE
usb RMB’000

E AREFT

As at 1 July 2018 R=ZZE—N\FtHA—H 3,040,537,670 3,040,538 19,167

Shares issued BT 547,296,781 547,297 3,775

As at 1 July 2019 —NFtHA—H 3,587,834,451 3,587,835 22,942

Shares issued under share RIEEREF S ETH RN

option scheme (Note (a)) (Kt7%(a)) 275,300,000 275,300 1,891

As at 30 June 2020 RZZE-ZFA=1H 3,863,134,451 3,863,135 24,833

Note: Bifat -

(a) During the year, 275,300,000 options had been exercised to subscribe for 275,300,000 (a) A F E 0 275,300,00017 B8 A% 4 © 17 LAR
ordinary shares of the Company at a total consideration of RMB 18,323,000 of which #5728 A 71275,300,0008% I i A% « B R B A A E
RMB1,891,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of RMB16,432,000 #18,323,0007T  H i A K #1,891 ooon,ﬁr/\ﬂx
was credited to the share premium account. In addition, RMB9,580,000 has been 7N AR AR 516,432,0007T 5 AR 7 3% (BAR ©
transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share premium account. ;)7\\ {éé 0,580,000 4 B 1+ 2 ot #8588 78 2 AR

7 (8
These shares rank pari passu with all existing shares in all ZERMEMARERNESHFEZES
respects. A% #am o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. RESERVES

(a)

(c)

Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds
from issuance of the Company’s shares over its nominal
value. Under the law of the Cayman Islands and the
Company’s Articles of Association, it is distributable to
the Company's shareholders provided that the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business after the distribution.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves includes reserve arising from (i)
deemed capital contribution from (distribution to) the
then controlling shareholder pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation for listing and (ii) transactions with non-
controlling shareholders in connection with changes in
the Group'’s ownership interest in subsidiaries which do
not result in loss of control.

Statutory reserves
PRC
companies are required to appropriate 10% of their

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations,

respective net profits to statutory reserve until such
reserve reached 50% of the companies’ registered capital.
The statutory reserve can be utilised, upon approval by
the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or
to increase registered capital of the companies, providing
that such reserve is maintained at a minimum of 25% of
the companies’ registered capital.

As at 30 June 2020 and 2019, all profitable companies
have already had their statutory reserve reached 50%
of their respective registered capital. According to the
relevant PRC laws and regulations, there is no statutory
requirement for these companies to further appropriate
their net profits to statutory reserve.

ABREEBREEZERERAT FEHRE2019/20

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
HE-_ZT-_TFEA=1+HIFE

23. fEtE

(a)

R DR E

B B AR R BT AT
RIFRBE L EEER S - RIZH
EREERRARFABERA
A MARR AR IKEENER
—REBBIETERZER - Bl
DK T ARRARR e

AR B
ENREHEERIOIREASE LTE
@ﬁﬁ*%?kk%¢ﬁ21m
(2K ) B (i) 5t < 5 [ 10 B I8
z&%%%&zm<zma$ﬁ
B AT HE) BIFERRR 2
x%%%%%ﬁ

EERE
RBERAFRENER LRGN - PERQ
RIARKER BN Z10%BEZ
EERBEEZRBEERZ AT
MEAR250% « EERBEERE
Bt &R A AR R BEIE
MARZEMER - EZREERE
BN Z AR M E AR Z25%K
F oo

RZEZEFR-T—NFERA=
+8 - 2EAI BT AR ZEEHE
EEERESEFMELRAS0% o
BIEEBEREDEE RO - SIEE
EHREBEKRZERFEE 2 HF
E—PREETHE -
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Year ended 30 June 2020

=

-

—=

—EFRA=THILFE

23. RESERVES (continued)

(d)

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)
The reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of Designated FVOCI at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted.

Share-based compensation reserves

Share-based compensation reserves mainly comprise
the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments.

Other reserves

Other reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

240

(a)

Share Option Scheme

The Company'’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved for adoption on 18 November
2013 and as amended on 20 December 2018 for the
purpose to attract skilled and experienced personnel,
to incentivize them to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to contribute for the future development
and expansion of the Group by providing them with the
opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company,
as well as for such other purposes as the Board of
Directors may approve from time to time. The Share
Option Scheme remains in force for a period of 10 years
until 17 November 2023.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Board of Directors may, at their absolute discretion, grant
or invite any person belonging to any of the following
classes to take up options to subscribe for shares: the
Directors (including executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), the directors of subsidiaries
of the Group, the employees, advisers and consultants
of the Group, providers of goods and/or services to
the Group and persons who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.
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(d)

R ABERE(TTER)
ZiEBEENRERREEA/ER
REEFAREMSEE REN AR E
BERFTEEFR - WRBRAD
SERTBREE -

I 1 5 BN £ 5
BOHFMEEIERER TASE
BB Z ARTTEBARE 2 BR KA
BB 2 AREE HEBHRN
NERMERAZ ST BRER

Hituf#
HoAth 7 o BRSNS B H5 SR 12
BEENMEINEER -

24. ROXNER

(a)

BT &

AR R e &) A8 IR R T
BR-_ZT—=F+—At/\H
EERW W —_F—\F+A
—+HKER] - B ERBREHAER
R R R I R 5| A FAE
MEERAR - MBI PIBERE
© SRS AN SR B R R B R
MERELER - ARHRERSA
RENEFHL 2 B B /Y - BERAERT
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+ B REITF -

ERBRET SN ESRR T - ES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

In 2018 annual general meeting (the “2018 AGM"), the
resolution for refreshment of Share Option Scheme
mandate limit (“Refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit") was
passed. The maximum number of shares that can be
allotted and issued upon the exercise of share options
which may be granted by the Company pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme under the Refreshed Scheme
Mandate Limit is 304,053,767, being 10% of the total
number of issued shares as at the date of the 2018 AGM.
As at 30 June 2020, a total of 300,000,000 share options
had already been granted under the Refreshed Scheme
Mandate Limit. Unless the Scheme Mandate Limit is
refreshed, the Company may only grant share options
to subscribe for up to 4,053,767 Shares, representing
approximately 0.105% of the number of Shares in issue
of the Company, pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
In order to provide the Company with greater flexibility
in granting share options to eligible participants under
the Share Option Scheme as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to the Group, an ordinary resolution
will be proposed to seek Shareholders’ approval at the
2020 AGM to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit to 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of passing of the
resolution.

Details of share options granted by the Company
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 30 June 2020 and 2019 are
as follows:

Number of share

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
HE-_ZT-_TFEA=1+HIFE

24. RIS BRH(E)

(a)

BBt EI(E)

RZE-—N\EFERERFER2([=
E-NERRBERE]) &3
AR T B R (| EH a8
REREDAZRESEA-
KR AR AR HE T 81 AT 5% 0 A B
AR EETTE R - A] TRLEE R EITH
IR B LR EFFTEI R
T8 | £304,053,7670% » BIRN =&
—N\FRRAFAEHHEEHTR
PRENI10% - R—ZE-TF XA
=+ 8 4 ££300,000,00017 8 %
EERBEE SR ERBER
o IRBREARERTE - A A RIER
& % R 884,053,767 I 1D B
B - AR RIEBITRHEE
B 40.105% @ MEFT SR ERTEE
HBRIN o BEARR A RBIEERE
FrEIA A ERSEER D EREE
BREHEAREBIEEER 2 Bk
RERARAZE G - KAAH
RZE—TFRRAFAS LIRS

BRRER L Eﬁk%&ﬁ%ﬁ
EIREREEMENRBRERAB
EHDEITROAI10% e

AR AIREB ARSI AR
EERZE—EFR_F—NFN
A=+ BERITERNERESFBD
—|T :

Grant date options granted Number of share options outstanding Exercise price  Exercisable period
RHEH EREBRERR HATEBRERE TR TSR
As at 30 June As at 30 June
2020 2019 HKD
R=2=%F RZB-NE
AAZTH ~A=TH BT
12 September 2017 200,000,000 200,000,000 200,000,000 0.1648 12 October 2017 to 11
October 2020
“2—tFNATZA “F-tFtA+=H
EZR-RFTAT-A
4 March 2019 300,000,000 24,700,000 300,000,000 0.0740 4 April 2020 to 3 April 2029
“E-NF=ARA “F-FENARA
EZT-AFMAZA
500,000,000 224,700,000 500,000,000
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Year ended 30 June 2020
—E-FESNA=THLEEE

=

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

242

(a)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 30 June 2020, the total number of Shares in respect
of which share options had been granted to its employees
and Directors was 500,000,000 (2019: 500,000,000),
representing 12.94% (2019: 16.44%) of the shares of the
Company in issue as at 30 June 2020.

The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options under the Share Option Scheme:

24. RS BRAE)

(a)

BEIRREST 8 (&)
RZE_ZFA=+H ' BEET
Hie 8 REZ ZERERS RIRMD
#8 27 5500,000,0008% B 7 ( —F —
FLEE : 500,000,0008%) © HEE R A
NIRRT _ZTFA=+AHE
BTN BI12.94% (—B— N4 -
16.44%) °

TREFALD BRIE BT
RRAESEIS -

2020 2019
i g 23 —TNE

Average Number Average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
per share outstanding per share outstanding
18 R AT W AR T1E
BRPHTEE BREHR SRTHTRE BRERE

HKD HKD

BT BT
At the beginning of year REHD 0.1103 500,000,000 0.1648 200,000,000
Granted B - - 0.0740 300,000,000
Lapsed B R - - - -
Exercised BATE 0.0740 (275,300,000) = =
At the end of year RER 0.1548 224,700,000 0.1103 500,000,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
of share options exercised during the year was HK$0.15
(2019: Nil). All options are vested as at 30 June 2020
and 2019.

The options outstanding at 30 June 2020 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 1.21 years (2019:
6.37 years). At the end of the reporting period, the
number of exercisable options was 224,700,000 (2019:
500,000,000) with a weighted average exercise price of
HKDO0.1548 (2019: HKDO.1103).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(b)

Share Award Plan

The Company adopted the share award plan (the “Share
Award Plan”) on 23 April 2014. The purposes of the
Share Award Plan are to recognise the contributions by
eligible persons to the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for continual operation
and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The
Share Award Plan, unless early terminated, will remain
in force for 10 years until 22 April 2024.

Under the plan, the Company has appointed a trust
in Hong Kong for administration of the Share Award
Plan. The principal activity of the trust is administrating
and holding the Company’s shares for the Share Award
Plan for the benefit of the Company’s eligible persons.
Pursuant to the Share Award Plan, the Company’s shares
will be purchased by the trust in the market out of cash
contributed by the Company and held in the trust for the
Company until such shares are awarded and vested in the
relevant beneficiary in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Award Plan.

As the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of the trust and can derive
benefits from the contributions of the employees who
have been awarded the shares of the Company through
their continued employment with the Group, the Group
controls and thus consolidates the trust.

During the years ended 30 June 2020 and 2019, no shares
were awarded under the Share Award Plan. As at 30 June
2020 and 2019, no shares were held by the trust for the
purpose of the Share Award Plan.

ABREEBREEZERERAT FEHRE2019/20

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

24. RIS BRH(E)

(b)

B% 5 52 B ot &l
ARARRZZE—WOFMNA=Z+=H
Rt 2B ET &1 AR 17 28 B 5t
B -BHOBRBFEEEXREA
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RIFELERERMBT - WRS
BEABMANKEESAERE
IR o BRIEFEATARLE - BRIAR(D
BEtEEREE—_E-_mEmA =
+ZHAE+FR—EEK -

RIEEE - ARFERE—RESR
ErtE AR REDFT & - ZIEFEM
IREBRA/ARRIAERALH
ML) B2t BB R A A
NEIRRAD o RIBAAD BREIETE] - 5%
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25. EZ REMENRE

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#FT ARETFT
Trade payables (a) B S EMNFIA (a)

— Due to third parties —ENE=E 115,080 170,382
Notes payable (b) TR (b) 45,229 37,941
Other payables (c) H M EFIE (o) 75,298 60,031

120,527 97,972
Total #Et 235,607 268,354

(a) Details of ageing analysis based on recognition date of

(a) ENEZENANER B kR

trade payables are as follows: DT
2020 2019
i —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FTT AE#BTIT
Up to 3 months 3ME A LAA 112,976 166,998
4 to 6 months 4Z6(E A - -
7 to 12 months 7ZE12{8 A - -
1 year to 2 years 1EE2F - 1
Over 2 years HBIA2F 2,104 3,383
115,080 170,382

(b) As at 30 June 2020, the entire balance of notes payable
was secured by restricted cash of RMB45,229,000 (2019:
RMB38,058,000) (Note 20). As at 30 June 2020 and 2019,
the notes payable is expected to be settled within one
year.

244 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20

b) RZZT=ZZTFA=+H" EH
ERNEEERIUNZREIRES A
R #45,299,000 fE#E (= F —
NE - AR¥538,058,0007T) (BizE
20) c RZEBE_FFR_F—NF
NA=ZTH  ENEREER—F
NEEE o
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 25. B REMENRIEE)

(c) Details of other payables are as follows: (c) EMENFRIBEFBAT
2020 2019
i Samp 35 —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AEBTFT
Salaries and welfare payable FE Fr & kA2 A 51,391 49,455
Construction payable FEART TR RIE 18,041 =
Sales commissions and marketing &S R EHAT
expenses 1,230 3,323
Other taxes 643 3,224
Others EAh 3,993 4,029
Total HEt 75,298 60,031
(d) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other (d) NEENE S KE AR RIERE
payables are denominated in the following currencies: BELA NS E¥EGHE
2020 2019
—B-BE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB‘000
ARMFT AEHTF T
RMB 235,553 266,700
HKD 54 1,654
235,607 268,354
26. OTHER (LOSSES) GAINS - NET 26. HAt(B1R) Wk — F8
2020 2019
i —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T AE®F T
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries & W B A AU - 7,869
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE « BE LR EEE
plant and equipment (97) (394)
Others (436) 3,479
(533) 10,954

AEFEREERZERERDE
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BB HRaRM

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

27. EXPENSES BY NATURE

27. BUEE T HIBX

2020 2019

—B-BE —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARHF T AE#HF T

Costs of inventories sold (Note 19) BEEFEEMRA(ME19) 1,318,486 2,091,598

Employee benefit expenses (Note 28) (B ERAFA (H1:£28) 275,990 297,810
Advertising and other marketing & R Fofth 5 A =2

expenses 215,406 117,334
Impairment loss on goodwill and other P& R E MM EERERBE

intangible assets (Note 10) (KtzE10) 11,809 -
Reversal of impairment loss on Bt N AR B R E B E R

investment in an associate (Note 13) (Ba£13) - (4,834)
Lease payments on short-term leases R HATHE 2 HEZIE (f/7#8)

(Note 8) 75,944 -
Lease payments on low-value assets REEERE < HEFIANFSE)

(Note 8) 173 -
Rental expenses for leases previously — ZBIRIEEIR @RI 1757548

classified as operating leases under RISEHENHEZHERAX

IAS 17 (Note 8) (Ktets) - 96,648
Transportation and related charges B NMIEEER 47,570 63,975
Depreciation of property, plant and W% - BB KREITE(HE7)

equipment (Note 7) 28,611 21,515
Depreciation of right-of-use assets e A& EHTE (Mf:18)

(Note 8) 12,937 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B A ESH(AEE10)

(Note 10) 2,100 2,102
Share-based payment expenses Wt <t &R (Afatz4)

(Note 24) - 10,439
Other tax expenses H AR 5,202 7,777
Office and communication expenses BN SR 11,256 10,014
Training fees HilE - 12
License fee of trademarks FIREES - (4,000)
Auditors’ remuneration A GIE 2,547 2,636
Electricity and other utility fees BERAMARREE 2,894 2,939
Professional fees HEEH 2,164 3,667
Travelling and meeting expenses ZER R B HAT 896 1,198
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 9) - b{ss FB#ER 8 (f/7E9) - 135
Donations B 9,782 -
Other expenses Hinfx 2,291 2,369

2,026,058 2,723,334
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

28. EEEFBMX

2020 2019

—z-%f =%

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMHF T AEEFT

Salaries and wages HeRIA 211,718 208,393
Contributions to pension plans RIS ET B 57,410 82,677
Other benefits H 1@ 7 6,862 6,740
275,990 297,810

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the PRC government
has introduced a series of relief policies on social welfare
contribution.

(a) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include three (2019: one)
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis
presented in Note 36. The emoluments payable to the

HEZZT-TFA=THLFE  H
BB 2 I — R 5t & 18 R
RBUE -

(a) ABBBFHAL
FEARBREREHALEE=
2 ZE-NEF: —R)EF HF
P 55 15 B0 B &E36FT 51 2 D 4T ©
FERNBTIME(ZT—hF:

remaining two (2019: four) individuals during the year MO ) AR FM T -
are as follows:

2020 2019
= —FTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBEFIT
Salaries and allowance e RIERG 962 641
Contributions to pension plans  RIREFTEI{EK 22 5
Share-based payment expenses A& A - 3,480
984 4,126
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B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
—E-FESNA=THLEEE

=

e

28. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued)

248

(a)

28. BEERAMX(E)

Five highest paid individuals (continued) (@) ABEBREHAL(E)
The emoluments were paid to the two (2019: four) highest XN FREA(ZE—NF - MOE)&K
paid individuals as follows: =HATHEMAT
2020 2019
—EIEF —Z=N4F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AER
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7T - 3
2 4

For the year ended 30 June 2020, neither the directors nor
the five highest paid individuals received any emolument
from the Group as an inducement to join, upon joining
or leaving the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office (2019: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IR R B L

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

29. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 29. MBWAR KA

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARMT T

Finance income WA
Exchange gains R 6,803 8,136
Interest income F B HA 2,783 3,437
9,586 11,573

Finance costs [27/pi: 35 %:
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGEF B (2,017) -
Other charges Hih &R (181) (298)
(2,198) (298)
Finance income — net B RUA — F 58 7,388 11,275

30. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 30. FTERAX
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr ARBTFor
Current income tax BNEAFT 1551

Hong Kong Profits tax BENEH - 102
PRC corporate income tax R EFTIS 34 329
34 431
Deferred income tax (Note 16) RIERTIS T (Mat16) 1,211 2,806
Total income tax expenses Frisfim L 4258 1,245 3,237
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B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020

=

30.

250

—E_EAASTALEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

The difference between the actual taxation charge in profit or
loss and the amounts which would result from applying the
enacted tax rate to loss before income tax can be reconciled

30. FiiSHipAX (&)
BaRNERTIIEE A MRS A S
BEREEB EAMSHRIENZ R LR
T

as follows:
2020 2019
ZEIERF —E=-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBFIT
Loss before income tax MrPETS AT E 18 (492,226) (263,866)
Tax calculated at a PRC statutory tax LA BUEER R 25% T AT 18
rate of 25% (123,056) (65,9606)
Tax effects of: AR B IENMIEHE
— Expenses not deductible for tax — AR
purpose 6,983 3,896
— Income not subject to tax — HARTAUA (1,998) (5,497)
— Tax losses for which no deferred — RERBELEFEHEEMNTIE
income tax asset was recognised it 119,751 70,572
— Effect of different applicable tax —ETHEB AR TREAREA
rates for certain subsidiaries 2a (86) 842
— Results of joint ventures and —BERNRIRBE R RINEE
an associate (2,720) (1,607)
— Others —HAh 2,371 997
Income tax expenses FriS iR = 1,245 3,237

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as there were
no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax for the
year ended 30 June 2020 (Hong Kong profits tax has been
provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong for the year ended 30 June
2019). The subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are subject
to corporate income tax at a rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on its
taxable income or deemed profit method as determined
in accordance with the relevant PRC income tax rules and
regulations.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2019/20

BE_T_TFAA=THLFELSE
BRMBANER ZERBEAE - Bt
TR IREABNEHERBBE=_F—
NERA=TBHILEFE RBEBELZ
AR BE 216.5% B KR EHE
BREMEHEE) - REEBETEMEG
BRAN AR - NEE R+ BB AR
7R L P HE SE B FE SR B A 3225% (—F
— L 25%) BB R iR E BT R
BABEREM -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

31. BREE

(a)

B_WN
BRENEBTIRARBER AR
MEEEBEERAFEEHTERK
IREFHEEE -

2020 2019
—ECEHF —ET-hHF
Loss attributable to owners of the NATEE AL EIE
Company (RMB’000) (ARKFT) (491,405) (265,629)
Weighted average number of B BT E B R INE AR E
ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (FAR) 3,855,613 3,097,517
Basic loss per share (RMB cents) EREARNEE(ARES) (12.75) (8.58)

Diluted
Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

As the effect of the assumed conversion of the potential
ordinary shares from exercising the Company’s share
options is anti-dilutive, the basic loss per share are equal
to diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 June
2020 and 2019.

32. DIVIDENDS
The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 30 June 2020 (2019: Nil).

AEFERERZRERAT FEHRE2019/20
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BREEE R EAFHBERITEIN
BRI PR - AR
BEEEELARmAtE -
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B BTEBRAEREEER @ i
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RS EEAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

38;

252

CASH USED IN OPERATIONS 33. REFTARSE
2020 2019
—B-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT AEEFT
Loss for the year FEBE (493,471) (267,103)
Adjustments for: HE
— Income tax expenses (Note 30) —FSREX (H230) 1,245 3,237
— Depreciation of property, plant and —W% - BERSEREN )
equipment (Note 7) 28,611 21,515
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets —EREEENE (W78
(Note 8) 12,937 -
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 9) — T R (7t 9) - 135
- Amortisation of intangible assets —EEEREH:10)
(Note 10) 2,100 2,102
— Loss on disposals of property, plant and —HENE  BE REEEE M Z26)
equipment (Note 26) 97 394
— Share-based payments —BHXNER - 10,439
~ Impairment loss on goodwill and other -HBRAMENAEREBEH10)
intangible assets (Note 10) 11,809 =
— Reversal of impairment loss on —~BERNAIREAESERR(fE13)
investment in an associate (Note 13) - (4,834)
— Change in fair value of biological assets —ENBERABEZE(HH15)
(Note 15) (4,041) (5,931)
- Gains on disposals of subsidiaries — WEMB R A (H7E26)
(Note 26) - (7,869)
— Finance income - net (Note 29) — A — B E(f1:229) (7,388) (11,275)
— Share of post-tax results of joint ventures  —21E&ERARAEE(Hzt12)
(Note 12) (103) (363)
— Share of post-tax results of an associate —DIEHERABIEFE (M 13)
(Note 13) (10,777) (6,065)
- Effect on foreign exchange rate changes ~ —JNEERZE) 7 & 1,183 257
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
— Increase in inventories —FEEm (8,721) (8,401)
— Decrease (increase) in trade and other —BH RAMEKFERS (E0)
receivables 80,080 (24,390)
- Decrease in trade and other payables —E SR EMERTIERD (50,788) (11,567)
Cash used in operations KEMARS (437,227) (309,719)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS (continued)

(a)

In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from
sale of property, plant and equipment comprise:

& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

33. KREFFARES (&)
@) RABBRESREXRT HEY
¥ R RSREBNERESE

2020 2019

—EDEF —ZE-hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fx AREFT

Net book amount (Note 7) AREDFE (M aE7) 143 619
Loss on disposals of property, plant &% « RE R&EESE (M=

and equipment (Note 26) 26) (97) (394)

Proceeds from disposal of property, &Y% - BE K& ETSHKIE
plant and equipment 46 225

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

(b) BEEBELHNEBELHRR
TRAJNAEEREZHELN
BEEY EERRSNMFREE
B-mMEEHELENBBER/EAK
RAREAHRASRERDERR
BEHELRSREZRERENX
AKBRERENEE -
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B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

33. CASH USED IN OPERATIONS (continued) 3. REFARS(#E)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (b) BEEEELNEBYHIRE)
(continued)
Dividends
payable to
non-controlling
interests Lease liabilities Total
PEAF SE 2 R FE
ZBRE HEAE E-E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®F T AE#HFT ARBTF T
(Note 8)
(Krat8)
As at 1 July 2018 R=FE—N\F+tH—H 204 - 204
Changes from financing cash BEE RS HEFE) :
flows:
Dividends paid BEAIARE (204) = (204)
As at 30 June 2019 and 1 July RZZT—NFASA=+HEK
2019 as previously reported ~ ZZT—NF+H—HiZZ
Al 2 3 - - -
Upon adoption of IFRS 16 ERANBIPR B 75 SR 2 RIS 16
(Note 2) SRR (HTaE2) - 25,380 25,380
As restated K& - 25,380 25,380
Interest paid EAHLE - (2,017) (2,017)
Changes from financing cash FEtE&ER & iEE
flows:
Repayment of lease liabilities (EEHEAE - (11,239) (11,239)
Other non-cash changes: Hh IR B H -
Interest expenses F BB - 2,017 2,017
As at 30 June 2020 RZZEZTFA=1H - 14,141 14,141
(c) Major non-cash transaction (c) I%?Ffﬁfﬁi%
During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Group BHE_ZT_TFAXA=THILHF
recognised additions of property, plant and equipment - RNEBERERENME - ﬁ’i%&
of RMB18,041,000 (2019: Nil), which were included in the & A R #18,041,0007T( —F —
construction payables as at 30 June 2020 in note 25(c) to NE: &) Eiﬁj\/—\fﬁﬁﬁfxﬁﬁ
the consolidated financial statements. 250N —E_ZFF <A

= T HAMENEEZIES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
& O AR R MY A

Year ended 30 June 2020
&E—?—?fﬁ/\ﬂ +E|Jt¢ﬁ

34. COMMITMENTS 34.

Capital expenditure commitments
The Group had no significant capital commitment as at 30
June 2020 and 2019.

35. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35.

The transactions with related parties are carried out on
pricing and settlement terms agreed with counterparties in
the ordinary course of business.

(a) Transactions with related parties

i
ﬁ$%§ﬁ#

:+EIﬁEﬂ§K§$%%o

BB LR5

TR 5 Ty — AT B R P i

FhHENEBMER

(a) BREBLHNRZ

1EFETT o

2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETF T
Joint ventures of the Company: RAREERT
— Sale of goods —HEEm 5,509 5,694
Companies controlled by a RAREFZEFINR
director of the Company:
— Lease payments on short-term  —SEHAE ZHEFHIE
leases 3,000 =
— Rental expenses for leases *ZHI BEBE R T 2ERIE 1758
previously classified as SRR EHENHE 2
operating lease under X
IAS 17 - 3,000
Director of the Company: KARIES :
— Lease payments on short-term  —fRHAIME 2 FHEFIA
leases 500 =
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B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

35. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

35. B AR Z (&)
(b) EREAEET HIASER

2020 2019
—B-EF —ZT-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AE#®FT
Joint ventures of the Company RAREERT
— Trade receivables (Note 18) —B SRR (H7E18) 49 459

(c) Key management compensation
Key management includes directors (executive and non-
executive), members of the Executive Committee, the
Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for

(c) FTEEEASHH
TEEEAEBREF(MTES
MIFRTES) MTZEEEN
8« REMENAGETEE - B
BERBDNIENEIBEEEAR

employee services is shown below: BT
2020 2019
—F-FF —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FTT AE#TIT

Salaries and other short-term e R EAth 52 HiE S 42 A

employee benefits 3,436 3,273
Post-employment benefits BB & 1@ A 32 32
Share-based payments B >z 1~ & - 1,897
3,468 5,202
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B O IR R B L

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
is set out below:

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Emoluments paid or payable to a person in respect of services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary

undertaking:

36. EERAM R Es
EERBEITRARZEHM

o

BREENRDITHRAER ZFHHESI

HE-E-FFAA=+ALFE

HEREF(ERARTLEMBAR)
ZIRIGZ I REN TFRA T2

Employer's

contribution

to retirement

Salaries and  Discretionary ~ Share-based benefit
Name of Director Fees allowances bonuses payments scheme Total

BXENE
EBpA Be  FHERIE BEL ROXNER TS @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  AREFr  ARETT  ARETn  AREFT  ARETx
Mr. Jin Dongtao LRERE 102 537 - - 5 644
Mr. Jin Dongkun LREEE 102 338 - - 5 445
Mr. Zhao Zehua HREAE 237 207 - - - 444
Mr. Sun Libo AV bk 108 206 - - - 314
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie* IRELL 161 - - - - 161
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing* R 161 - - - - 161
Mr. Zou Haiyan* P 161 - - - - 161
1,032 1,288 - - 10 2,330
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Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 36. EEERIREZR (&)
(continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued) EERESITHRABZHM(Z)

For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE_FE-NFA=1THIFE
Emoluments paid or payable to a person in respect of services HEREF(ERAQRHENERR)
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary 2RI NN TR AL 2 -

undertaking:

Employer's
contribution
to retirement
Salaries and  Discretionary  Share-based benefit
Name of Director Fees  allowances bonuses payments scheme Total

ExiEne
EE3.2 e  HERIZ REEA BROXNER BE 12 fat
RMBOOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETLT ARETL ARETL AREFL  ARETI

Mr. Jin Dongtao SRERE 9% 501 - 104 5 708
Mr. Jin Dongkun ERERE 98 319 - 104 5 526
Mr. Zhao Zehua BEEEE 145 199 - 104 - 448
Mr. Sun Libo A3 103 198 - 104 - 405
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie* IREXT 190 - - 18 - 208
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing* HEREE 190 - - 18 - 208
Mr. Zou Halyan* P 190 = = 18 = 208

1,014 1,217 - 470 10 2,71
X represent the independent non-executive directors. * BB IEITES -
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B O IR R B L

Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37. KA REEEBRLBEBEEEE

THE COMPANY A
Balance sheet of the Company AAREERER
Note 2020 2019
e —B-%F —FNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARZIEE 3,533 3,533
Loans to subsidiaries BEXTFH B AR 129,151 123,279
Equity instruments designated 1EE AE AR BERT AR
as at fair value through other FelamnEn TE
comprehensive income 14 15,474 23,319
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 148,158 150,131
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b e W oA 871,111 867,704
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 3,789 2,546
Total current assets REBEELRE 874,900 870,250
Total assets EEAR 1,023,058 1,020,381
EQUITY s

Equity attributable to owners of ZAT#HEHE A EILRER
the Company

Share capital R X 24,833 22,942
Reserves fEiE (a) 1,185,791 1,177,938
Accumulated loss ZEtEE (a) (213,787) (215,168)
Total equity R 996,837 985,712
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B O IRk B

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

. ARAREERERRFEHEEDE

THE COMPANY (continued) (&)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) AAREERER(E)
Note 2020 2019
MtaE —EEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARMFT
LIABILITIES afE
Current liability RENEE
Other payables H b e~ F00E 26,221 34,669
Total liabilities =Rt 26,221 34,669
Total equity and liabilities EnkAERE 1,023,058 1,020,381

The balance sheet of the Company was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 September
2020 and signed on its behalf by

Jin Dongtao
ERE
Director

EE

ARACBEERBEXRHEFEN —F—
FFENA TR MERKETZEL B
UTEERABEE

Zhao Zehua
Director

EZ
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& O AR R MY A
Year ended 30 June 2020
BHE_ZT-_TFA=THLFE

37. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37. A A REBEEBRREEEEIS
THE COMPANY (continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (continued)

(a)

Reserve movement of the Company

W (%)
RAREERERE)
(a) ARBRBEHEEBIEN

Share-based Fair value Other
Share compensation  reserve (non- reserves  Accumulated
premium reserves recycling) (Note) loss Total
MEERE Hitfhta
ROEE ROFGHEE (FUEH) (#zE) 2 ER g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT  ARETRT
Balance at 1 July 2018 R=F-\FtA—AMLsH 1,719,133 12,654 - (635,244) (170,151) 926,392
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (45,017) (45,017)
Fair value changes in equity EEREAR BB AL
instruments designated A ERERTIEZ AR
as fair value through  EEZH
other comprehensive
income - - (1,286) - - (1,286)
Issuance of ordinary shares /7 EER 72,242 - - - = 72242
Equity settled share-based MREEERNAER RS
transactions - 10,439 - - - 10,439
Balance at 30 June 2019 RZE-NEXA=ZTANE
£ 1,791,375 23,093 (1,286) (635,244) (215,168) 962,770
Balance at 1 July 2019 RoB-AELA-RNLEH 1,791,375 23,093 (1,286) (635,244) (215,168) 962,770
Profit for the year ERRT - - - - 1,381 1,381
Fair value changes in equity & ARAL BB AL
instruments designated AhaHERTIAZAR
as fair value through  EfEZ
other comprehensive
income - - (8,579) - - (8,579)
Share issued under share RIEEREEIZTHRG
option scheme 26,012 (9,580) - - - 16,432
Balance at 30 June 2020  R=F=FEXA=T+HNE
3 1,817,387 13,513 (9,865) (635,244) (213,787) 972,004
Note: Other reserves represent the deemed distribution upon the Group's Bt - BEtbfEEEAER tHEARBEADE -
reorganisation for listing.
AEREREEERERAR FEHRE2019/20 261



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Gk R e

Year ended 30 June 2020
BE_ZT-_FTFA=THILEEE

38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(@) Impact of COVID-19

After the outbreak of the COVID-19 in early 2020, a
series of precautionary and control measures have been
continued to be implemented in the PRC which has an
adverse impact on the market sentiments and posed
challenge to the industry. Given the unpredictability
of future developments brought by the pandemic, it
is difficult for the management of the Company to
precisely assess the financial impact on the Group's
financial performance at this stage. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the epidemic and
evaluate its impact on its financial position and operating

results.

(b) Proposed share consolidation

The Board proposes to implement share consolidation
of every ten (10) issued and unissued shares into one
(1) consolidated share (the “Share Consolidation”)
and change the board lot size for trading on the Stock
Exchange from 1,000 shares to 5,000 consolidated shares
conditional upon the Share Consolidation becoming
effective. For details, please refer to the announcement

of the Company dated 30 September 2020.
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38. HEMKRER

(a)

(b)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B ERBE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- TXEHIIAEENBEAFEGTBREEFEE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, WAREE - BERIEERESHE @ I
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, is B 2 T & BT HERE -

set out below.

RESULTS E 45
For the
eighteen
months
ended
For the year ended 30 June For the year ended
30 June 2018 31 December
BEAASTRLER B2 @Et-A=t-ALER
2020 2019 =F-NF 2016 2015
AAZTAL
“ZCEf% —Z-NF +N\BA ZZF —Z-0fF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ANEETTL AEKTT ANEETTL ARETL

Revenue Wiz 1,510,126 2424416 3,968,907 3,378,719 4,805,855
Gross profit e} 188,500 326,807 652,091 874,086 1,340,575
(Loss) profit before income tax BRETERA (BB )FE (492,226) (263,860) (963,678) (62,680) 106,851
Income tax (expenses) credit FER(AX)EE (1,245) (3,237) 39,087 (24,638) (72.977)
(Loss) profit for the
year/period /BN (BE)FE (493,471) (267,103) (924,791) (87,318) 33,874
(Loss) profit attributable to: T5| &5 (B8 I :
- Owners of the Company LYNGIE =N (491,405) (265,629) (917,007) (87,811) 31,163
— Non-controlling interests —ERER (2,066) (1474) (7,784) 493 2,11
(493,471) (267,103) (924,791) (87,318) 33,874
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
PMBERME

ASSETS, LIABILITIES

AND NON-CONTROLLING ¥E > BERFERER

INTERESTS
As at 30 June As at 31 December
RAB=1H R+=B=1-H
2020 2019 2018 2016 2015
ZBIEE Z-NE ZE-\F e Sy “Z-1fF
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETFTT ANRETFT ARETFTT NREFT
Total assets BEEE 1,495,102 2,003,340 2,229,330 3,302,839 3,207,944
Total liabilities BEEE (249,748) (269,547) (291,955) (569,389) (589,574)
Non-controlling interests R ER (1,556) (3,622) (20,419) (24,761) (29,720)
Equity attributable to
owners of the Company KARHE NEGER 1,243,798 1,730,171 1,916,956 2,708,689 2,588,650
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